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RMB’0000 O O OO

2017

2018 2019 2020 2021

00000 O00O0O0O OO0O0O00 00000 oOoOoOOoo

Revenue goo
Profit before tax gooo

Profit attributable to owners

Basic earnings per share

of the Company for the year ooono

Asset information O O 0O 0O

RMB’0000 O O OO

ooooooon

oooooo

2,828,225
157,085

238,904
0.19

2017

4,799,807 4,612,105 5,315,685 6,359,786
765,207 1,315,280 1,327,836 222,264

640,194 1,059,700 1,024,210 240,788
0.51 0.85 0.76 0.16

2018 2019 2020 2021

00000 00000 00000 00000 OoOoo000

Total assets oooo
Total liabilities ooono

Equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company

Share capital oo

Revenue O O O

RMB

7000

6000

5000

4000

3000

2000

1000

‘ooo,000 0 OOODO

5,316

4,800
4,612

2,828

2017 2018 2019 2020

oooooooooo

6,360

2021

14,208,856 13,844,278 15,351,947 19,025,895 19,108,177

6,155,086

7,832,164
1,247,202

7,567,945 7,880,073 7,336,905 7,584,862

6,099,612 7,348,360 11,569,392 11,411,354
1,247,202 1,247,202 1,467,296 1,467,296

Gross profit [0 [
RMB’000,000 0 0000 O

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

2,017 1,994

1,874
1,672
852
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

The Group’s financial statements for years 2016 and before were prepared in goooooooooooooooooo
accordance with the PRC GAAP and were not prepared in accordance with the jooooooooooooooooooo
IFRS. If the investor needs the relevant information, please visit the website at goooopocoooooooooooooo
http://www.cninfo.com.cn
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Li Li Chairman

FHEREFR

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of directors (the “Board”) of Shenzhen Hepalink
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”, or “Hepalink”), | am pleased to
announce the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”) for the year ended December 31, 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”). We have recorded continued revenue growth and non-API
business revenue accounting for more than 50% of the total revenue, which has
successfully consolidated and further enhanced the advantages and competitiveness
of the transformation, resulting in encouraging growth.

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic situation continued to recurrent with the variant
virus spreading rapidly. Although vaccination rates began to increase in various
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learning from historical experience to steadily move towards a better future, and
passed on its corporate values and embodied its entrepreneurial spirit on all fronts,
thereby achieving significant progress in business development and operation during
the year. In terms of the finished dose pharmaceutical products, the Group’s finished
dose enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical products has achieved commercial sales in
43 countries and regions and maintained market share and rapid growth in key
European markets, and achieved rapid expansion with over 300% year-on-year
growth in sales volume in non-European and U.S. regions. At the same time, the
Group’s self-operated sales efforts in the U.S. was also put into operation, actively
promoting sales. In addition, the Group’s enoxaparin sodium injection, Prolongin®,
has been included in the centralized procurement catalogue of various provinces in
Mainland China, which is conducive to the Group’s accelerated restructuring of the
new market landscape. In terms of CDMO business, under the Group’s leadership,
Cytovance has continued to achieve significant growth and has continued to produce
key enzymes for the two largest mMRNA vaccine manufacturers in the U.S.,
contributing to the building of “global immunity”. In terms of new drug research and
development, the Group continued to promote the clinical implementation and
execution of the drugs under development and continuously increased its investment
in research and development. During the year, a number of innovative drug projects
made significant progress, including the approval of the global multi-regional Phase
Il clinical trial of Oregovomab, an innovative patented drug for the treatment of
ovarian cancer, in Taiwan, China; the global Phase lll trial of Tosatoxumab (AR301), a
fully human IgG1 monoclonal antibody, achieved the first patient dosing in China;
and the self-developed innovative drug H1710, a key technology research project for
the treatment of pancreatic cancer, was publicly funded as a technology research
project by the Shenzhen Science and Technology Innovation Commission.

While consolidating and maintaining the strong competitiveness of its existing
business, the Group has continuously strengthened its development capability and
strived to meet the ever-expanding market demand. During the year, the Group has
been engaging in external cooperation, vigorously promoting digital operation and
management, strengthening technology-enabled industrial projects as well as
promoting rapid business progress with efficient production capacity. At the
corporate operation level, the Group launched the matrix operation of the SPL
organization to promote the integration of business strategies and the efficient
operation of production capacity, laying a solid foundation for business growth
next year. The addition of various senior executives has injected new energy into
Hepalink and promoted the realization of the Group’s strategic objectives. The
internal system of the Group has been improving with a number of functional
departments successfully established and upgraded to ensure the orderly and
efficient implementation of various tasks. Together, we would make Hepalink the
world’s leading innovative multinational pharmaceutical enterprise.
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Overview

Hepalink is a global pharmaceutical company with business spanning the
manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical products, development of Contract

Development and Manufacturing Organization (“CDMO”) services and innovative
drugs. Our sales of pharmaceutical products consist of (i) finished dose
pharmaceutical products, which mainly include enoxaparin sodium injection; (ii)
active pharmaceutical ingredient (“API”’) products, including heparin sodium API
and enoxaparin sodium API; and (iii) other products, mainly including pancreatin
API. We operate a CDMO business providing research and development (“R&D”),
manufacturing, quality management and program management services, through
our wholly-owned subsidiaries Cytovance Biologics, Inc. (“Cytovance”), which
specializes in the development and manufacture of recombinant pharmaceutical
products and critical non-viral vectors and intermediates for gene therapy, and SPL
Acquisition Corp. (“SPL”), which provides services in the development and
manufacture of naturally derived pharmaceutical products. The Group has obtained
exclusive development and commercial interest in Greater China for certain clinical
stage innovative drug candidates which are being developed for the treatment of
diseases with an immune system. We are also developing a self-discovered
proprietary drug candidate currently at preclinical stage.
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In 2021, the recovery of major economies continued to gain momentum as
vaccination rates increased and travel restrictions were gradually loosened,
particularly in China, the United States and Europe. However, uncertainties remain,
with economic growth clouded by lagging vaccination rates in some countries and
the quick spread of variant viruses such as Delta and Omicron in India and South
Africa, causing recurrent outbreaks worldwide.

China’s pandemic prevention and control are gaining positive progress, economic
activities returned to normal while domestic demand and external trade rebounded
steadily. Macroeconomic indicators performed well, with gross domestic product
(“GDP”) growing by 8.1% year-on-year in 2021, reaching up to RMB114.4 trillion.
By industry, the revenue of industrial enterprises above the scale, including the
pharmaceutical manufacturing industry, showed a higher year-on-year growth,
while upgraded consumer goods, service industry and internet-related industries
also rose significantly. In 2021, execution continued for the third batch of drugs
under the national centralized procurement program, the fourth batch was
implemented and the tendering for the fifth was completed, indicating that the
program has become a norm in China. The national medical insurance negotiations
and centralized drug procurement significantly shortened the time to market new
high quality products that have won the tender, which is expected to reduce the
promotion cost for the well-positioned enterprises to achieve rapid market entry
and volume sales for their products, resulting in accelerated improvement in
revenue and cost efficiency. During the Reporting Period, the Group further
developed its sales and marketing team in China in response to the healthcare
reform policy and actively embrace the opportunities brought by the policy to the
pharmaceutical industry.

The year 2021 was a challenging year for the Group. In particular, financial
performance was affected by a combination of challenges related to high unit cost
of raw material and rising operating costs for most of the year. Nevertheless, the
Group’s finished dose pharmaceutical products business, enoxaparin active
pharmaceutical ingredient (“API”’) and Cytovance segment all achieved outstanding
results with booming revenue growth. This reflects the advantages of the
management’s shift to finished dose pharmaceutical products as its core business in
recent years, and demonstrates the Group’s resilience to adversity.

During the Reporting Period, the sales revenue of the Group increased by 19.6% to
approximately RMB6,359.8 million (2020: approximately RMB5,315.7 million).
Earnings attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to approximately
RMB240.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately 76.5% as compared
to the same period of last year.
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and earnings per share were partly due to the investment income accounted for
under the equity method by the Company’s associates in 2020, the investment
income from the sale of financial assets and dividends, and the increase in the fair
value of the Company’s equity interest in Kymab. The sum of investment income
and fair value changes had an impact of RMB585.7 million on 2020 net profit; this
figure had a significant impact on the year-on-year change in net profit in 2021.
However, the Group believes that some of the equity investment impairments are
temporary adjustments due to certain market reasons and the impact of the
epidemic. The Group still supports and is optimistic about the development of
innovative drug business of its equity investments (including Resverlogix Corp.
(“RVX”)).

Excluding the after-tax impact of external investment-related projects on the
Group’s income statement (including investment income, gains from changes in fair
value, impairment of assets related to investment projects, etc.), and after-tax
structural foreign exchange gains and losses, basic earnings attributable to equity
holders of the parent in 2021 were approximately RMB557.3 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 9.5% as compared to the same period of last year. As
at the end of the period, cash and bank balances amounted to approximately
RMB1,479.6 million, representing an increase of approximately 11.2% as compared
to the same period of last year.

The impairment loss of associates mainly represents the impairment loss of
RMB223.1 million on long-term equity investments recognized by the Group during
the Reporting Period due to the existence of impairment indicators in the
associates, namely RVX and Shenzhen Asia Pacific Health Management Co., Ltd.
(“Asia Pacific Health™), for which an impairment provision of RMB186.1 million
(2020: nil) was made for the equity interest held in RVX and an impairment
provision of RMB37.0 million (2020: nil) was made for the long-term equity
investment in Asia Pacific Health. The recoverable amount was determined based
on the net of the fair value less disposal expenses. The above impairment was
one-off and had no impact on the cash flows of the Group.

The share of losses of associates is mainly attributable to RVX and Hightide
Therapeutics, Inc. (“Hightide”) which are considered to be associates of the
Group, are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, when
an associate achieves a net profit or incurs a net loss, the investor enterprise shall
calculate its share of the profit or loss according to its equity portion, and
recognized it as the share of profits and losses of associates. The share of losses of
associates had no impact on the cash flows of the Group.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately goooooooooooooOuoe,359.8
RMB6,359.8 million, representing an increase of approximately 19.6% as compared Jo0o00ooooooooD19.6%wb00O
to 2020. During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a profit attributable to joooo0oooooooooooouooo

equity holders of the parent of approximately RMB240.8 million (2020: go0opoz08000000000000O0
approximately RMB1,024.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 00102420 0000000 0O76.5%0
76.5%.

During the Reporting Period, operating income for each business segment is as goo0ooooooOoOooOoOoogoooo

follows:
For the year ended 31 December
gooooooooooo
2021 2020
Operating Operating
income income
goooo ooooo Year-on-year
oooo oooo increase/
RMB’000 RMB’000 (decrease) (%)
Business Segment oooo ooooo ooo000 0O000000%)
Sales of products ooood 5,504,926 4,456,472 23.5%
Finished dose pharmaceutical products oooo 2,638,151 1,510,731 74.6%
API API 2,721,733 2,700,886 0.8%
Others® ogw 145,042 244,855 (40.8%)
CDMO service cbMoOU O 813,104 797,387 2.0%
Others® oge 41,756 61,826 (32.5%)
Total oo 6,359,786 5,315,685 19.6%
Notes: ooao
(1)  Other products mainly include pancreatin API. (1) D00ODODOOOOOAPO
(2)  Other business mainly includes manufacture and marketing services, processing services, (2 OO0OO0OOOODOOOOODOOODOOOO
technical support services and other services. oooooboooooooo
Sales 00

The Group mainly operates four main business focus, including (i) the Finished Dose goooooooooooooooooaeo
Pharmaceutical Business; (ii) the API business; (iii) CDMO business; and (iv) the 0 0 00 () APIO O O (iii) cbMoO O O (iv)0
innovative drugs. ooo
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During the Reporting Period, the finished dose pharmaceutical products business of
the Group maintained a rapid growth trend with sales revenue increased by 74.6%
or approximately RMB1,127.5 million to approximately RMB2,638.2 million as
compared with the same period of last year, accounting for 41.5% of the Group’s
total revenue.

Since the starting of its overseas operations in 2016, the Group’s international
business of finished dose pharmaceutical products is now all across the world with
remarkable results, selling in over 40 regions and markets within five years, and
ranking top in terms of market share in the United Kingdom, Poland, Italy and
other markets. During the Reporting Period, the total sales volume of the Group’s
finished dose pharmaceutical products business exceeded 180 million units,
representing a year-on-year increase of 72.6%.

In 2021, the Group once again achieved impressive results in the European market.
During the Reporting Period, sales volume increased by 49.3% year-on-year with
the revenue increased 59.3% year-on-year.

The Group sustained a strong sales growth momentum in the European market,
and proactive sales strategy was adopted to successfully expand and strengthen
sales networks. During the Reporting Period, on the one hand, we further
consolidated our strengths in key European markets and local hospital channels and

Ooooo0o0oooooooooOoooooao
oo000booO0o0o0b0000074.6%00
ooboo0d11275000000002,638.2
0000000000 041.5%0
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holder of the marketing authorization for enoxaparin sodium injection was
approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”). During the
Reporting Period, the Group was the supplier of enoxaparin sodium injection to the
strategic partner of the United States marketing authorization holder for enoxaparin
sodium injection, who was responsible for sales and distribution, and sales of the
such products have commenced during the year. During the Reporting Period, the
Group recorded sales of over 13 million units of enoxaparin sodium injection in the
United States, paving the way for further penetration into the U.S. market. In 2021,
the Group’s subsidiary received FDA approval for its heparin sodium injection,
authorizing the Group to sell the product in the U.S. market. Meanwhile, the
Group'’s sales office in the United States will focus on and initiate the marketing of
heparin sodium injection in 2022 to prepare for future sales in the United States.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had been boosting its market presence
overseas and marketing efforts with satisfactory sales results. In particular, the
Group’s sales volume in the international non-European and American markets
grew significantly by more than 300% year-on-year during the Reporting Period
with the revenue increased 281.7% year-on-year. At the same time, the Group
added eight new countries to its list of sales, namely Canada, Brazil, Saudi Arabia,
Palestine, North Macedonia, Malaysia, Bosnia and Herzegovina and Bolivia, and
received approval for sales in Serbia.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s enoxaparin sodium injection was
registered in over 60 countries and was sold in over 40 countries and regions
worldwide.

In the face of the normalization of the centralized procurement in the
pharmaceutical industry in the PRC, the Group continued to reinforce the
establishment and integration of its marketing system during the Reporting Period
to support clinical medicine, market access and brand promotion, and to accelerate
the admission into the national and provincial and municipal medical insurance
drug catalogues. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s enoxaparin sodium
injection has been included in a number of centralized procurement drug
catalogues and the sales in China market was up 16.2% year-on-year. In addition,
the Group organized various medical conferences and participated in more than
400 academic conferences during the year to promote academic exchanges and at
the same time, provide feedback on the efficacy of drugs and clinical use
recommendations in hospitals to enhance the treatment level and brand influence
of thromboembolic diseases in China, which helped to rapidly establish a new
market landscape.
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molecular weight heparin (“LMWH?”) finished doses, which is widely used in clinical
practice. Its main indications include prophylaxis of venous thromboembolic disease
(prophylaxis of venous thrombosis), especially thrombosis related to orthopedics or
general surgery; treatment of developed deep vein embolism with or without
pulmonary embolism; used in hemodialysis and extracorporeal circulation to
prevent thrombosis, etc.. Finished dose enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical product
of the Group is the first generic drug in the European Union and was approved by
the European Medicines Agency (the “EMA”) through the Centralized Procedure
(CP) in 2016. According to the Clinical Guidelines issued by the World Health
Organization and the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence of the
United Kingdom, LMWH can also be used to prevent complications caused by
COVID-19.

In connection with the efficacy of enoxaparin sodium in the treatment of
COVID-19’s symptoms, the Group has completed clinical studies in Italy. In February
2021, the last patient enrollment was completed. Clinical studies have shown that
timely administration of the finished dose enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical
product can reduce the length of hospital stay by more than 20% and relieve
symptoms in more than 65% of cases. The clinical data indicates that in terms of
safety and clinical efficacy, the finished dose enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical
product is effective in limiting the pathogenic symptoms of COVID-19 when
administered before patients reach critical stages.

API Business

During the Reporting Period, heparin API business was stable with a slight increase,
and the sales revenue was approximately RMB2,721.7 million (the same period of
last year: RMB2,700.9 million), accounting for 42.8% of the Group’s total revenue,
and the gross profit margin was 26.6%. During the Reporting Period, the Company
further expanded the sales market of enoxaparin sodium API and strengthened the
marketing strategy of the existing enoxaparin sodium APl market. Becoming a new
growth point of the Company’s heparin industry chain business, enoxaparin sodium
API business’s revenue increased by 48.8% and the sales volume increased by
31.2% year-on-year.
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management, with strict guidelines on the selection of raw materials, supply chain,
production process and production stability to ensure a high standard of product
quality. During the Reporting Period, the Group actively gave play to the integration
advantages, so that the API business will maintain a stable development. During
the Reporting Period, the sales of enoxaparin API continued to rise, mainly driven
by the growth in sales of enoxaparin API, which became an additional growth
driver for the API business. The high consistency of the manufacturing process and
product quality of enoxaparin APl produced by the Group continue to consolidate
and maintain its leading advantage and prominent position in the market.

Heparin is a type of anticoagulant drug with various functions such as
anticoagulation and antithrombosis. The heparin industry consists of the initial
upstream procurement of porcine small intestines, the upstream extraction of crude
heparin, the midstream manufacture of heparin APIs and the downstream
manufacture and supply of enoxaparin finished dose. Heparin Sodium API is mainly
used for the manufacture of standard heparin finished doses and LMWH APIs,
which in turn are used for the manufacture of LMWH finished doses. The Group
has two major manufacture bases for Heparin Sodium APl in China and the United
States. Apart from being partly supplied to Shenzhen Techdow Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, the Heparin Sodium APIs are mainly
sold to overseas customers, including a number of world renowned multinational
pharmaceutical enterprises.

CcbMO

During the Reporting Period, sales revenue of CDMO business was approximately
RMB813.1 million (the same period of last year: RMB797.4 million). Gross profit
level improved significantly, with gross margin up 5.7 percentage points to 32.0%.

During the Reporting Period, with its good performance, sales amount of Cytovance
under the Group’s CDMO business was approximately RMB692.9 million, growing
by 17.3% year-on-year and gross profit margin of service revenue reached up to
45.5%; the scale of service revenue and gross profit of Cytovance increased by
25.3% and 85.2% compared to the same period of last year, respectively. Gross
margin of service income was up 14.7 percentage points to 45.5%. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s CDMO relied on its own core technologies and key
technology platforms to support the supply chain of mMRNA COVID-19 vaccines in a
rapid, efficient and scalable manner to better meet the global demand for the
large-scale production of commercialized mRNA vaccines worldwide. During the
Reporting Period, the Group established a clearer KPIs and quarterly incentive
system targeted on the two key indicators of the punctuality and success for CDMO
projects, ensuring that the milestone revenue from CDMO service can show a
better growth momentum as well as further improvement for the operation and
management efficiency of Cytovance.
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Outlook

In 2022, as the COVID-19 pandemic continued to spread around the world for two
years, countries are still looking for ways out of the pandemic’s predicament. While
many countries and regions worldwide took important steps toward normalization
in 2022, including the introduction of vaccination programs and the relaxation or
even lifting of restrictions, the emergence and spread of Omicorn variant led to a
quick resurgence of the pandemic and a divergent economic recovery. While the
global pandemic is not over and the rapid spread of variants has slowed the pace
of economic normalization in some regions, large-scale vaccination in all regions
helps speed up the return of daily life and economic activities to normalcy. The
global and Chinese economies are expected to continue to recover in 2022, and
China’s GDP growth is expected to be higher than the potential growth rate.

The year 2022 will be the starting point for the Group’s business segment
improvement and profitability enhancement, and we will present a very different
picture from 2021. In the year ahead, we are confident that we can accomplish our
goals of solid and sustainable revenue growth and, more importantly, improved
financial performance and profitability, as well as constant growth in corporate
value.

The Group will be building on its core strengths and industry-leading position in
the heparin chain and maintain faster revenue growth.

In terms of finished dose pharmaceutical products business development, we will
further expand our overseas markets and value chain with increasing scale of our
global business. Continuing to expand our market share through solidifying and
enhancing our leading position in the European market, we have been actively
exploring existing markets and heightening sales in the hospital and the retail
channel to increase unit selling price as well as profitability. In the U.S. market, we
will cooperate with our local partners to maintain our strong growth momentum.
Moreover, the Group has launched a business development plan and set up a new
sales office in the first half of 2022 to expeditiously promote the sales of heparin
sodium finished doses, and earnestly expand the sales and market coverage in
North America. In the PRC market, as the first pharmaceutical company to pass the
consistency evaluation of enoxaparin sodium injection, we will strongly support the
national centralized drug procurement policy in an attempt to drive out bad money
with good money, aiming to provide high quality drugs to patients in the PRC. In
addition, our experienced Chinese marketing team will seize the opportunity of
centralized procurement and achieve rapid market entry and sales upsurge with
low promotion cost, which will become a new growth driver for the Group’s
pharmaceutical sales.

|

gooooooooooOoooooao
goooooooooboOoooooao
gooooOO0oooOOoobOOooOooooao
goooobooboooobooboooao
gooooboobooboboooooao
OO0OmicornDOD0ODOOOO0OOOOO
goooooooooboooobobooobo
goooobobooobooooooaon
oooooboooooobooooo
goooooboooooooooan
ooooobOoooboOooboooo
oooooboooboooDbOoboo
gooooebhpoooooooono

oooooooooooooogoo O
OoOooodg

Do ooooootooooag

gooob0ooboobooooocoooooad
gooooboooooOoooboOooooo
gooooobobooooOOoOoO0obcOoOoOooOoo
gooooooooOooOoOoOoO0oCocboboooobo
gooooobooobOoobOobbooooo
ooooooocooooooooooooo

goooooooboOoooooooooo
0o0oo0o0ooooooooooooooooo

goooobDOooO0oOoDOO0OOoDO0OO0ODOO0OO
goooooooooooOoobboobo
gooooooooooOOOO0COO0O0oO0oo
gooooooooooboooooooooo
goooooooooOoOooOooooooo
goooobooooobOoooOooOoooo
gooooooooooooooobOoboo
gooooOoooboobOoooocobooooo
goooooooooOoOOOCOcbObOOoOobo
gooobooocoobOoocbooooobooo
goooooOooooobOoooOooooo
gooooobooooboobOoboooooo
goooobooobOOooDbOooooo0oo
gooooooooooooobooooooo
gooooooooboooooobooooo
gooooO0ooobOO0oOoDOOOoODO0OO0ODO0O0
goooobOoooooOO0oOoDOoOooOoo
ooooo

¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK Ay MACE BICAL Gy @ +C@., LED. 100000000l

ANN ALy -8 2021 0]



Management Discussion and Analysis

OOoooodoon

In terms of API business development, we will be amplifying the ability of resource
coordination to allocate resources in terms of the operating conditions. With
greater bargaining power, we will be able to efficiently meet customer needs and
maintain stable business growth. At the same time, we will optimize our product
structure and focus on promoting the sales of our high-tech, high-quality and high
value-added products, enoxaparin API, to secure exceptional development and
sustainable revenue growth of our API business.

In terms of CDMO business development, the Group will reinforce its technological
leadership to drive the development of its two business wings of mammalian cell
culture and microbial fermentation with high quality and efficiency. The constant
changes in disease treatment and the continuous upgrade of innovative drug fields
allow ample room for growth and good development opportunities for Cytovance.
The Group will maintain its technological leadership in mammalian cell culture and
microbial fermentation, enhance the two key indicators of the punctuality and
success for CDMO projects and further accelerate the scale of development of the
two business wings, consequently leading to the improvement of Cytovance’s
overall revenue scale and efficiency. In addition, the Group will actively plan for the
development of CDMO projects and the expansion of Cytovance to provide new
capacity and growth force for the future development of CDMO.

With regard to innovative drugs, the Group will continue to adhere to the principles
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Furthermore, aiming to achieve success, the Group has formulated corresponding
strategies to improve its performance. In 2022, we will increase the technical
investment and application of our global supply chain management system to
connect the business, information, capital and logistics data in different operating
regions of the Group, so as to realize the efficient operation of business, capital
and logistics. For one thing, resource allocation optimization, business restructure
and industrial upgrade and visual management of supply chain will give full play to
synergy and integration to attain efficient operation, realizing cost reduction,
efficiency and profitability enhancement. On the other hand, digital management
will provide a stronger basis for each of the Group’s business decisions and
negotiations to ensure that business decisions are made in the best interest of the
Group. At the same time, we are closely monitoring the significant easing trend of
raw material prices from the third quarter of 2021 onwards, which is expected to
reduce the pressure on production costs and will have a positive impact on earnings
and gross margin in 2022. We will actively promote the normalization of cost
reduction and efficiency improvement, and further optimize our production
capacity to attain economies of scale. Simultaneously, we will further promote
operational excellence and strengthen our basic management, especially in the
areas of raw material procurement, marketing expenses, per capita output and
logistics efficiency, for better management efficiency.

In 2022, the Group will be implementing and advancing its strategic plan with
steady business development. By further enhancing operational efficiency, the
Group persists in obtaining progressive growth in performance, and expanding
steadily with sufficient resources in the volatile market environment both
domestically and globally. The Group will continuously fortify its existing business
and actively seize appropriate opportunities. We are confident in the Group’s future
prospects and growth opportunities, and are committed to creating long-term
value for our shareholders.
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Financial Review

Revenue
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For the year ended 31 December
goooboooooooo

2021 2021 2020 2020
Sales amount % of  Sales amount % of Year-on-year
ooooag Revenue ooooo Revenue increase/
ooao goooag ooag O0O0O000Qg (decrease) (%)
RMB’000 oo RMB’000 00 O0ObOooooo
ooooo (%) ooooo (%) (%)
Sale of goods oooo 5,504,926 86.6% 4,456,472 83.8% 23.5%
Finished dose pharmaceutical products 0000 2,638,151 41.5% 1,510,731 28.4% 74.6%
API| AP 2,721,733 42.8% 2,700,886 50.8% 0.8%
Others® oo 145,042 2.3% 244,855 4.6% (40.8%)
CDMO services cbmMmoo O 813,104 12.8% 797,387 15.0% 2.0%
Others®@ go® 41,756 0.6% 61,826 1.2% (32.5%)
Total oo 6,359,786 100% 5,315,685 100.0% 19.6%

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of goods increased by RMB1,048.4 million
to RMB5,504.9 million, accounting for 86.6% of the total revenue during the
Reporting Period, as compared with RMB4,456.5 million or 83.8% of the Group’s
revenue in the corresponding period in 2020. The increase in revenue from
manufacturing and sales of goods was mainly due to the year-on-year increase in
sales revenue of finished dose pharmaceutical products during the period. The
finished dose pharmaceutical products business benefited from the rapid growth of
the Group’s sales in Europe, the United States and other overseas markets in 2021,
with a year-on-year increase in average sales price and a year-on-year increase of
74.6% in sales revenue of the finished dose pharmaceutical products business.

Cost of sales

For the Reporting Period, cost of sales increased by RMB1,067.4 million to
RMB4,366.2 million, as compared with RMB3,298.8 million for the corresponding
period in 2020. The increase in cost of sales was mainly due to the increase in cost
of sales of finished dose pharmaceutical products and APl during the Reporting
Period.
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Gross Profit

g

For the year ended 31 December
0ooooopDooooD

2021 2020

2021 Gross profit 2020 Gross profit

Gross profit margin Gross profit margin

ooooo goooo ooooo ooooao

oo ooo oo oood

RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)

ooooo (%) ooooo (%)

Sale of goods oooao 1,691,939 30.7% 1,755,073 39.4%
Finished dose pharmaceutical products oooa 973,785 36.9% 724,150 47.9%
API API 724,234 26.6% 1,078,164 39.9%
Others® ogw (6,080) (4.2%) (47,241) (19.3%)
CDMO services cbmMmoo o 259,803 32.0% 209,832 26.3%
Others® og@ 41,840 100.2% 51,931 84.0%
Total oo 1,993,582 31.3% 2,016,836 37.9%

Notes: ooo

@

Other products mainly include Pancreatin API.

@

Other business mainly includes manufacture and marketing services, processing services,
technical support services and other services.

For the Reporting Period, gross profit decreased by RMB23.3 million to RMB1,993.6
million, as compared with RMB2,016.8 million in the corresponding period in 2020.
For the Reporting Period, gross profit margin decreased by 6.6 percentage points to
31.3%, as compared with 37.9% for the corresponding period in 2020. The
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase in cost of sales as a
result of higher raw material prices for API.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly consist of interest on bank borrowings and
corporate bonds and other finance costs. For the Reporting Period, finance costs
decreased by RMB50.7 million to RMB210.1 million, as compared with RMB260.8
million for the corresponding period in 2020, representing a decrease of 19.4%.
The decrease in finance costs was mainly due to a decrease in interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings as compared with the corresponding period in 2020.
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Taxation

For the Reporting Period, income tax credit was RMB11.1 million, as compared with
an income tax expense of RMB306.2 million for the corresponding period in 2020,
representing a decrease of approximately 103.6%.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company

For the Reporting Period, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
RMB240.8 million, as compared with RMB1,024.2 million for the corresponding
period in 2020, representing a decrease of approximately 76.5%.

Earnings per Share

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of the Company in issue for the Reporting Period. The diluted earnings per share is
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue for the
Reporting Period (with adjustments made for all potential dilution effect of the
ordinary shares).

For the Reporting Period, both basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share were RMBO0.16, as compared with RMBO0.76 for the corresponding period in
2020, representing a decrease of approximately 78.9%.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
Treasury Policies

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maintain its ability
to continue as a going concern so that the Group can constantly provide returns
for shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders by
implementing proper product pricing and securing access to financing at reasonable
costs. The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments by taking into consideration the changes in economic
conditions, its future capital requirements, prevailing and expected profitability and
operating cash flows, expected capital expenditures and expected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group closely monitors its debt-to-asset ratio, which
is defined as total borrowings divided by total assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Ooooooon

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk arises from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. The Group has transactional currency
exposures and currency exposures from our interest-bearing bank borrowings. The
Group has a foreign currency hedging policy to mitigate our foreign currency risk
and monitor foreign exchange exposure from time to time to adjust our hedging
measures.

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a net foreign exchange loss of
RMB205.0 million, as compared to net foreign exchange loss of RMB248.8 million
for the same period in 2020. Currently, the Group does not employ any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency risk.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s liquidity remains strong. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
funds were primary from its ordinary business. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group’s cash and bank balances were approximately RMB1,479.6 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB1,330.2 million).

As at 31 December 2021, net gearing ratio (total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents (including restricted cash) divided by total equity) decreased to
approximately 22.45% from approximately 24.55% as at 31 December 2020. Total
cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash) amounted to approximately
RMB2,931.2 million, with total borrowings of approximately RMB5,518.4 million
and total equity of approximately RMB11,523.3 million.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded short-term loans of approximately
RMB3,268.2 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB2,482.0 million) and
long-term loans of approximately RMB2,250.3 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB3,085.9 million).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s assets of approximately RMB2,491.7 million
were pledged to banks and other financial institutions to secure the credit facilities
granted to the Group (31 December 2020: approximately RMB2,563.4 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, neither the Group nor the Company had material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2020: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OOoooodoon

Asset-liability Ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total assets amounted to approximately
RMB19,108.2 million, (31 December 2020: approximately RMB19,025.9 million),
whereas the total liabilities amounted to approximately RMB7,584.9 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB7,336.9 million). The asset-liability ratio (i.e.,
total liabilities divided by total assets) was approximately 39.7% (31 December
2020: approximately 38.6%).

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates to the
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with floating interest rates. The
Group’s policy is to manage our interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 93.7%
interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at fixed rates (31 December 2020:
approximately 86.7%).

Significant Investment Held

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not hold any significant Investment.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Future Plan For Material Investments or Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2021, save for the “Use of Proceeds”, the Group did not have
any existing plan for acquiring other material investments or capital assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Indebtedness 00
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
oooooo gooooo
ooooooo OoOoOooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo goooog
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ooooooooo 5,518,436 5,567,834
Lease liabilities oooo 135,755 77,243
Total financial indebtedness ooogoogod 5,654,191 5,645,077
Pledged bank deposits oopooooo (11,581) (80)
Net financial indebtedness oooooo 5,642,610 5,644,997
The maturity profile of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings is
set out as follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
oooooo gooooo
Joooooo Doooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo goooog
Repayable: ooooooooo
Within one year or on demand ooooooo 3,268,166 2,481,977
After one year but within two years oooooooo 1,604,635 885,698
After two years but within five years oooooooo 143,412 1,652,246
After five years oooo 502,223 547,913
Total oo 5,518,436 5,567,834

The Group’s bank lending as at 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB3,840.0
million (31 December 2020: RMB3,675.5 million). As at 31 December 2021, the

¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK 4dAy MACE BICALGy @ +CO., ED. OO 0000000000 0000

ANN ALy E-@4 2021 0000



3

=

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Oooooooooao

[

HRN

good
00000580000000000000

goooooooooOOO0OOCCOOOOo
Oob000o0D0O00o00O0o02s000000
gooooboooodoooooooboooo

€ HEN HEN HEALINK 4#Ax MACE BICALGy @ #CO., ED. 1000000000000 000

ANN Aln E4@ 82021 0000



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
OO0o0O0doooooaao

Ms. Li co-founded the Company and was appointed as our Director and deputy
general manager in April 1998. Ms. Li has also been serving as a director of
Topknow since August 2007; the managing partner of Jintiantu since August 2007;
a director of Hepalink (Hong Kong) since June 2014; a director of Shenzhen
Techdow since November 2010; a director of Hepalink USA, since October 2013; a
director of SPL since August 2015; and a director of Kymab Group Limited since
November 2016.

Ms. Li graduated from Chengdu University of Science and Technology (which later
became Sichuan University) in China with a bachelor of science degree in chemistry
in July 1987 and obtained the qualification of senior manager from the Vocational
Skills Identification Center in February 2005.

Mr. Shan Yu (0 0O), aged 61, brother of Ms. Li Tan and brother-in-law of Mr. Li Li,
is our executive Director, co-founder and general manager. Mr. Shan has over 25
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. He is primarily responsible for
the major decision-making of our Group and oversees the production capacity,
security, logistics and external affairs of our Group. Mr. Shan also actively
participates in the implementation of our Group’s business strategies, including our
strategies in the innovative drugs and CDMO sectors.

Mr. Shan co-founded the Company and was appointed as our Director and general
manager in April 1998. Mr. Shan has also been serving as a director of Shenzhen
Topknow Industrial Development Co., Ltd. since October 2000; a managing partner
of Shuidi Shichuan since August 2007; a director of Chengdu Sunrace Co., Ltd.
since November 2009; a director of Shenzhen Beidi Aoke Technology Development
Co., Ltd. since December 2009; a director of Shandong Ruisheng since July 2010; a
director of Shenzhen Pingshan New District Hepalink Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. since
July 2013; and a director of Hepalink USA since April 2014.

Mr. Shan graduated from Peking University in China with a bachelor of science
degree in applied physics in July 1982 and obtained the qualification of senior
manager from the Vocational Skills Identification Center in February 2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
OO0Oo0O0oooooaao

Mr. Zhang Bin (0O O), aged 45, is our executive Director (resigned on April 29,
2022). Mr. Zhang joined the Company and was appointed as an executive Director
in May 2021. Mr. Zhang holds a master’s degree, being a non-practicing member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a non-practicing
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. From June 2005
to August 2015, Mr. Zhang worked at KPMG’s offices in China and the United
States, and served as an inspection expert of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board of the United States from August 2015 to February 2016. Since
April 2016, Mr. Zhang has been serving as the financial controller of the Company
and concurrently as director of the wholly-owned subsidiaries or sub-subsidiaries of
the Company, Hepalink USA Inc., SPL Acquisition Corp. and Cytovance Biologics,
Inc. (“Cytovance”) since February 2018. He has been the CEO of Cytovance since
October 2020, and his primary responsibilities include overseeing the financial
activities of the Company, participating in the implementation of the Company’s
business strategies, especially in the fields of innovative drugs and CDMO.

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Lu Chuan (0 ), aged 52, is our independent non-executive Director. Dr. Lu
joined the Company and was appointed as an independent Director in December
2019. Dr. Lu has been serving as a vice president of Huan Yue Interactive Holdings
Limited since October 2019.

Dr. Lu served as an assistant engineer of Nanjing Jinling Shipyard Company Limited
from August 1991 to August 1994. From July 1997 to August 2005, Dr. Lu worked
at Shenzhen Nonferrous Metals Finance Co., Ltd. as a research fellow of the
investment bank department. From August 2005 to November 2018, Dr. Lu worked
as a managing director assistant and deputy general manager of Yinjian
International Industrial Co., Ltd. Dr. Lu served as a director of Shenzhen
Zhonggingbao Interactive Network Co., Ltd. (A share stock code on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange: 300052) from April 2008 to April 2012, a non-executive director
of China Geothermal Industry Development Group Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8128) from September 2008 to
March 2009, a non-executive director of E-Commodities Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1733) from
June 2010 to July 2016, and director of Ningxia West King Liquor Co., Ltd. from
October 2011 to February 2014.

Dr. Lu graduated from Wuhan University of Technology in China with a bachelor’s
degree in naval mechanical engineering in July 1991, graduated from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in China with a master’s degree in business
management in May 1997 and a doctorate in management in December 2006.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
OO0o0O0doooooaao

Mr. Chen Junfa (0 0O 0O), aged 57, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Chen joined the Company and was appointed as an independent Director in
May 2017. Mr. Chen has also been serving as an independent non-executive
director and an audit committee member of Lomon Billions Group Co., Ltd. (A
share stock code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002601) since April 2014; an
independent non-executive director and an audit committee member of Shenzhen
Mason Technology Co., Ltd. (A share stock code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange:
002654) since July 2014; the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Pengxin Asset,
Land and Real Estate Appraisal Co., Ltd. since April 2016; and an independent
non-executive director of O-film Light Group Co., Ltd. (A share stock code on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002456) since November 2017.

Mr. Chen previously served as an independent non-executive director and audit
committee member of Shenzhen Yitoa Intelligent Control Co., Ltd. (A share stock
code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 300131) from May 2011 to November
2017; and an independent non-executive director of Zibo Qixiang Tengda Chemical
Co., Ltd. (A share stock code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002408) from
March 2014 to April 2017.

Mr. Chen served as a project manager of Shenzhen Zhonghua Accounting Firm
from July 1993 to December 1997. He served as director, chairman of the board
and general manager of Shenzhen Zhongginxin Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd. from
October 2000 to June 2008 and served as the general manager of Shenzhen Jinkai
Zhongqinxin Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd. from June 2008 to December 2009.
Mr. Chen served as the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Dezhengxin
International Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd. from January 2010 to March 2016.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering from Beijing University of
Science and Technology in China in July 1988 and graduated from Nankai
University in China with a master’s degree in economics majoring in political
economics in July 1993. Mr. Chen became a non-practicing member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in October 1994 and first obtained the
People’s Republic of China Certificate of Certified Public Valuer in August 1997.

Mr. Wang Zhaohui (O O 0O), aged 44, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Wang joined the Company and was appointed as an independent Director in
July 2017. Mr. Wang has also been serving as the founding partner of Ruchuan
Capital Investment Fund since April 2016. From June 2001 to August 2009,
Mr. Wang served as a senior journalist of Chinese College Students magazine.
Mr. Wang served as the public relations manager of Innovation (Beijing) Software
Development Co., Ltd. from September 2009 to January 2011, served as the public
relations manager at Beijing Innovation Ark Technology Co., Ltd. from February
2011 to August 2015, and worked at Sinovation Ventures (Beijing) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd. as the director and deputy general manager from September
2015 to April 2016.

Mr. Wang graduated from the China University of Geosciences in China with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 2001.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
OO0o0O0doooooaao

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors, Supervisors and members of senior
management is related to other Directors, Supervisors and members of the senior
management.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Qian Fengqi (O O O), aged 36, is experienced in capital market research and
investment matters, in particular in the healthcare industry in the PRC. Mr. Qian
joined the Company as the president of investment center (0 O 0O O O O) in August
2021, primarily responsible for overseeing the investment activities of the Company
in the healthcare field. Mr. Qian served as a research analyst at Bosera Fund
Management from July 2008 to March 2010, a senior research analyst at Goldman
Sachs Group (China) from August 2010 to August 2013, and a fund manager of
Norges Bank, which manages the assets of the sovereign wealth fund of Norway,
from September 2013 to April 2016, each with a focus on investments in listed
securities of PRC-based healthcare companies. Mr. Qian also served as a managing
director of Lingfeng Capital Management Co., Ltd. (U0 OO0O0O0OOOO), a
private equity fund with a focus on the fintech sector in the PRC, from January
2017 to August 2019 and from November 2020 to August 2021, and the head of
Strategic Investment Department of We Doctor Group (Zhejiang) Co., Ltd. (0 O O
0@ 0O)oooo), adigital medical service provider in the PRC, from August 2019
to November 2020. Mr. Qian graduated from Fudan University with a bachelor of
economics (specialising in finance) degree in July 2008. Mr. Qian obtained the
board secretary certificate granted by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in September
2021.

Ms. Chan Sze Ting (O O ) is a Joint Company Secretary. Ms. Chan currently
serves as an associate director of corporate services of Tricor Services Limited, a
global professional services provider specializing in integrated business, corporate
and investor services. Ms. Chan has over 16 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field. She has been providing professional corporate services to multiple
Hong Kong listed companies. Ms. Chan is currently a joint company secretary of
Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 338 and listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600688), the company secretary of Sunfonda Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1771), Meta Media Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 72), Century Sage Scientific Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1450), Vico
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1621) and China Oral Industry Group Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8406). Ms. Chan is
a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an Associate of
both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor of laws
degree from the University of London.
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Directors’ Report
O0000

The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a joint stock limited company incorporated under the laws of the
PRC, the predecessor of which, Shenzhen Hepalink Industrial Development
Company Limited (0000000000 DOOQODO), was established under the4
laws of the PRC on April 21, 1998 with a registered share capital of RMB2 million.
The Company completed its initial public offering and listing of its A Shares on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002399) on May 6, 2010. The Company
completed its initial public offering and listing of its H Shares on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, (stock code: HK 9989) on July 8, 2020 (the
“Listing Date”). The Group is a leading China-based pharmaceutical company
with global pharmaceutical, innovative biotech and CDMO businesses.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are shown
under note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue and operating profit for the year ended December 31, 2021 by principal
activities is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report and note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year ended December 31, 2021, which
includes a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, an
analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2021, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, could be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report. The review and discussion form part of this Directors’ report. An
account of the Company’s key relationships with its employees, customers,
suppliers and others that have a significant impact on the Company is set out in the
environmental, social and governance report of the Company for the Reporting
Period to be published in due course.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out
on pages 91 to 92 of this annual report.

The Board proposed the distribution of a final dividend (the “Final Dividend”) of
RMBO0.35 (tax inclusive) per ten ordinary shares for the year ended December 31,
2021. If such profit distribution proposal is reviewed and approved by shareholders
of the Company at the 2021 annual general meeting to be held on Friday, June 10,
2022 (the “2021 AGM”), the Final Dividend will be distributed no later than
August 15, 2022 to H shares shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company’s H shares on Monday, June 20, 2022. The Final Dividend
is denominated and declared in Renminbi. The Final Dividend payable to the holders
of the Company’s H shares shall be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The amount of
Hong Kong dollars payable shall be calculated on the basis of the average closing
exchange rates for Hong Kong dollars as announced by the Foreign Exchange
Trading Centre of the PRC one calendar week prior to the approval of the Final
Dividend at the 2021 AGM.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 182 to 183 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment protection and has
not noted any material in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including environmental protection, health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

The Group has established detailed internal rules regarding environmental
protection, in particular, the discharge of air, water and solid waste and noise
control. During the year ended December 31, 2021, we did not incur any additional
costs specifically attributable to environmental compliance.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance will be
disclosed in the environmental, social and governance report of the Company for
the Reporting Period to be published in due course.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 226
to 227 of this annual report.
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RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 95 to 96 of this annual report. Details of the movement in the reserves of
the Company during the Reporting Period is set out in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 264 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2021, the Company’s distributable reserves, calculated in
accordance with PRC rules and regulation, were RMB1,207 million.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association, or
the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE H SHARE LISTING OF
THE COMPANY

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on July 8, 2020. Pursuant to the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus), the
Company issued 220,094,500 H Shares of the Company on July 8, 2020 with a
nominal value of RMB1 each at a price of HK$18.40 per H Share, the Company
obtained net proceeds of RMB3,538.3 million.

According to the plan on use of proceeds as set out in the prospectus,
approximately 30% of the net proceeds (or approximately RMB1,061.5 million) is
intended to be used for improving capital structure and repaying the existing debt;
approximately 30% of the net proceeds (or approximately RMB1,061.5 million) is
intended to be used for expansion of the sales and marketing network and
infrastructure in the European Union and other global markets, such as the PRC;
approximately 20% of the net proceeds (or approximately RMB707.7 million) is
intended to be used for expanding our development and manufacturing capacity
and broadening our product and services offering of Cytovance; and approximately
20% of the net proceeds (or approximately RMB707.7 million) is intended to be
used for investment in innovative drugs.
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The table below sets forth a detailed breakdown and description of the use of net

proceeds from the listing of the H Shares as of December 31, 2021:
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Net proceeds Utilised as at
from Global 31 December Remaining
Use of proceeds Offering 2021 amount  Expected time of use
ooooooo
0000 oOOoOoooo
oooooo oooooo ooo 0o 0ooooooo
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
0000000 0000000 OooOooOooo
Improving capital structure and repaying the 1,061.5 1,034.4 27.1  Within next three years
existing debt from the Listing Date
0o0o0oo0oooooooo oooooos30o
Expansion of the sales and marketing network 1,061.5 - 1,061.5  Within next three years
and infrastructure in the European Union and from the Listing Date
other global markets, such as the PRC
000000000 Ooo0o0o0oO0on oooooos3go
ooooooooooog
Expanding our development and manufacturing 707.7 - 707.7  Within next three years
capacity and broadening our products and from the Listing Date
services offering of Cytovance
OooOoooooooooo opooooos3go
00o0ooooooooooooooo
Investment in innovative drugs 707.7 76.7 631.0  Within next three years
from the Listing Date
oooooooo 0oooooos30o
Total 3,538.4 1,111.1 2,427.3
oo
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As disclosed in the Prospectus, to the extent that the net proceeds from the global
offering are not immediately required for the above purposes or if we are unable to
put into effect any part of our development plan as intended, we may hold such
funds in short-term deposits with licensed banks or authorized financial institutions
in Hong Kong so long as it is deemed to be in the best interests of the Company.
During the Reporting Period, the Company utilized part of the net proceeds for
subscription of short-term, principal-guaranteed, low-risk financial products for
interim treasury management purposes. The Company intends to use the net
proceeds in the same manner and proportion as set out in the Prospectus. Please
see the above table for details of the amounts utilized for subscription of short-term
financial products as of December 31, 2021.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this Directors’
Report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Li (Chairman)

Ms. Li Tan (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. Shan Yu (General Manager)

Mr. Sun Xuan (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on May 6, 2021)

Mr. Zhang Bin (appointed on May 26, 2021)
(resigned on April 29, 2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Bu Haihua (resigned on April 17, 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lu Chuan

Mr. Chen Junfa
Mr. Wang Zhaohui

SUPERVISORS

The Supervisors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this Directors’
Report are as follows:

Mr. Zheng Zehui (Chairman)

Ms. Tang Haijun
Ms. Su Jilan (Employee Supervisor)
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Mr. Li Li, Ms. Li Tan and Mr. Shan Yu, as executive Directors, each renewed the
service contract with the Company for a term of three years starting from August
31, 2020.

Dr. Lu Chuan, Mr. Chen Junfa and Mr. Wang Zhaohui, as independent
non-executive Directors, each renewed the service contract with the Company for a
term of three years starting from August 31, 2020.

Mr. Zheng Zehui, Ms. Tang Haijun and Ms. Su lilan, as Supervisors, each renewed
the service contract with the Company for a term of three years starting from
August 31, 2020.

The appointments of the Directors and Supervisors are subject to the re-election
upon expiry of their term of office according to the Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation).

CONTRACT WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period or subsisted at December 31, 2021 and no contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the
Reporting Period or subsisted at December 31, 2021.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the
Group which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director/Supervisor or any entity connected with such a Director/Supervisor had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at December 31, 2021 or
at any time during the Reporting Period.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and senior management is determined
with reference to factors including the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management, employment conditions of other positions in our Company and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 174 to 177 of this annual report.

For the Reporting Period, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any Director,
Supervisors or any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors
or Supervisors has waived any emoluments for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are payable, for
the year ended December 31, 2021, by our Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2021, none of the
Directors and Supervisors or their respective close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than being a
Director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have any other
disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION ARRANGEMENTS

Each of the Controlling Shareholders provided certain non-competition
undertakings in favor of the Company. Details of the non-competition agreements
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders

— Competition™ in the Prospectus.

The Controlling Shareholders confirmed that they have complied with the non-
competition undertakings for the Reporting Period. The independent non-executive
Directors have conducted such review for the Reporting Period and also reviewed
the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the non-competition undertakings
have been fully complied with.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts and appointment
letters, no contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or in
existence as at December 31, 2021 or at any time during the Reporting Period.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during the Reporting
Period.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not made any loan or provided any
guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company, the controlling shareholders of the Company (if any)
or their respective connected persons.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

The valid share incentive schemes of the Group as of the date of this report are as
follows.

Share Incentive Scheme Il (“Scheme 11”) and the Share
Incentive Scheme llI

The Company adopted the Share Incentive Scheme Il (“Scheme II”’) and the Share
Incentive Scheme Il (“Scheme IlI”, and together with Scheme II, the “Schemes”)
in November 2016 and December 2018, respectively. The Schemes are not subject
to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as the Schemes do not involve
the grant of options by the Company to subscribe for new Shares upon our Listing.
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Schemes:

(a)

(b)

P, . nge

The purpose of the Schemes is to promote the success and enhance the value
of the Company by linking the personal interests of the employees to those
of the Shareholders. It is intended to provide flexibility to the Company in its
ability to motivate, attract and retain the services of the employees upon
whose judgment, interest and special effort the successful conduct of the
Company’s operation is largely dependent.

S _e%fPa. [ci.an -

The participants of Scheme Il are our Directors (excluding our independent
Directors and external Directors), Supervisors (excluding our external
supervisors), senior management and core staff members of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The participants of Scheme Ill are employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries (excluding our Directors, Supervisors and senior management).
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Te.m«f he Scheme,r

Scheme Il was effective for an initial period of 36 months from December 12,
2016 to December 11, 2019. Scheme lll is effective for a period of 24 months
from December 28, 2018 to December 27, 2020. Within two months prior to
the expiration of the respective term of each Scheme, with the approval of
more than two-thirds of the votes of holders of the interests under relevant
Scheme (the “Holders”), who attend the Holders’ meeting, and subject to
the approval of the Board, the term of the relevant Schemes may be
extended, provided that each extension shall not exceed 12 months. Each
Scheme may be terminated upon expiry of the respective lock-up period as
detailed below when all the assets underlying such Scheme become monetary
assets. On December 6, 2019, the Company, with the Board’s approval,
extended the term of Scheme Il for 12 months, up to December 11, 2020.
On December 4, 2020, the Company, with the Board’s approval, further
extended the term of Scheme Il for 12 months, up to December 11, 2021,
and extended the term of Scheme Il for 12 months, up to December 27,
2021.

Sn, cenf Sha“e, . hde_. he Scheme,

The Shares underlying the Schemes shall be A Shares purchased from the
secondary market through bidding, block trade, share transfer or other
methods in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Maypim,. m N, mbe_~f Sha‘,e_,»

All the Shares underlying Scheme Il had been purchased as of March 9, 2017.
As of the date of this report, the total number of Shares underlying Scheme
Il'is 15,118,035 A Shares, accounting for approximately 1.03% of the total
outstanding share capital of the Company.

All the Shares underlying Scheme Ill had been purchased as of February 1,
2019. The total number of Shares underlying Scheme Il is 3,886,264 A
Shares, accounting for approximately 0.26% of the total outstanding share
capital of the Company as of the date of this report.

The maximum number of Shares to be granted to an employee under each
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total outstanding share capital of the
Company.

(c)
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Admini, 2 'pn'of be Scheme,

The Holders’ meeting is the highest management authority of the Schemes.
A management committee has been set up to oversee the daily management
of respective Scheme.

For Scheme I, the management committee has appointed Guolian Securities
Co., Ltd. to establish a single customer assets management plan. Guolian
Securities Co., Ltd. is responsible for the management of the assets
underlying Scheme I, including purchasing and holding the Shares and cash
under Scheme Il

For Scheme Ill, the management commit te e has appointed CMS Asset
Management Co., Ltd. to establish a single customer assets management
plan. CMS Asset Management Co., Ltd. is responsible for the management
of the assets underlying Scheme lll, including purchasing and holding the
Shares and cash under Scheme lII.

S%, cenfF, nd, % be U,ed % P, “cha,e pe Sha“e,

. nde_. he Schemey

The source of funds for the Schemes consists of (i) the funds raised by the
participants and (ii) loans provided by the Controlling Shareholders.

The maximum amount of the funds to be raised for Scheme Il and Scheme IlI
shall not exceed RMB400 million and RMB87 million, respectively. The
Holders shall pay the subscription amount before the establishment of the
relevant single customer asset management plan.

L% ck-, ., Pe md

The first lock-up period lasted until March 10, 2018. The Shares underlying
Scheme Il are not subject to lock-up and have been fully unlocked on June
11, 2019. As of the date of this report, 15,118,035 A Shares remain unsold.

The lock-up period for the Shares underlying Scheme Il is from February 2,
2019 to February 1, 2020, being a period of 12 months commencing from
the date of publication of the announcement in respect of the transfer of the
last batch of Shares to the relevant single customer asset management plan.
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(i) Righ.g=f he Hwlde.4 () oooooo
The Holders of each Scheme are entitled to the following rights: ooooooooooooooo
(1)  to share the interests of the assets underlying the Scheme in proportion (1) OCOooODOooOoOoOoOOoOOoOO
to his holding in the Scheme; goooooo
(2)  to attend the general meeting of Holders in person or by proxy, and to (29 OOODOODODOOODODOOOO
exercise the corresponding voting rights; Jooooooooooo
(8) to supervise the administration of the Scheme, and to make (3 O0O0O0D0OODDDODOOOOOOO
suggestions or inquiries as applicable; ooooooo
(4)  to waive the voting rights attached to the underlying Shares of the 4 OCOOO0OOOOOOODODOOOO
Company he holds indirectly through the Scheme; and 0ooooooooooooo
(5)  to exercise other rights stipulated by laws, administrative regulations, (5) DOO0OODOOODOOOOOOOO0
or the terms of the Scheme. goooooo
(j) Obliga 'pn,'af pe H'-Ide,,;,— G) ooooon
The Holders of each Scheme have the following obligations: ooooooooooooooo
(1)  to assume the risks associated with the Scheme in proportion to his (1) 0DO00OO0O0O0OO0OO0OO0OOoOoOoOoO0
holding in the Scheme; ooo
(2)  to comply with the provisions of the Rules Governing Employee Share (2 0DODODODODOOOOOOO0O0OO00
Scheme; ooo
(3) not to request the Company to distribute the assets underlying the (3 ODOODDOOUOOUODOoDODOOOOO
Scheme during the term of the Scheme; and goooooooooo
(4)  to assume the obligations provided by applicable laws, administrative (4 ODO0D0DOODODOOOOOOOO0
regulations and other obligations stipulated under the terms of the gooooooooooooo
Scheme.
(k) T.angfe wfHrlde 4’ In g eq.4 (k) OOO0000

oooooooooooboobboDo

During the term of the respective Scheme, no Holder shall in any way
transfer, withdraw, charge or mortgage his holding interests in the Scheme 0g0ooDooooDooDoooooooon
000o0o0o0ooU0ooooOooooo
goooooo0oOooooOoOoOooo

ooooooooooooo

or use such interests to guarantee or repay debts except for unusual
circumstances as provided under the terms of the relevant Scheme.
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(d) Mapim,. m N, mbe_ = f Sha‘,e,

The maximum number of shares which may be granted under the OncoVent
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the total enlarged share
capital of OncoVent taking into account the shares to be issued upon the
exercise of the options.

(e) Te.m«%fOncVen Sha e O. f»on Scheme

OncoVent Options granted at each stage is valid for a period of four years.
Grantees are subject to a lock-up period of one year commencing from the
grant date.

(f) Eye cige® fOncmVen O, feng

The grantees may exercise the OncoVent Options within ten business days
upon expiry of the lock-up period in accordance with the terms of grant
letters. When OncoVent is listed or sold, the participants may realise the
benefit of share options based on the stock circulation rules at the listing
place or the value of OncoVent at the time of sale. The participant may
choose to convert the option into actual investment to OncoVent.

The exercise price per OncoVent share underlying the OncoVent Options shall
be determined by the Administrator with reference to the fair value of
OncoVent. If OncoVent carries out financing transactions within the
preceding twelve months, the fair value shall be determined with reference
to the valuation of OncoVent for the purpose of such financing transactions.
If no financing transaction is carried out during such twelve months’ period,
the fair value shall be determined by the Administrator.

0. 4 gnding OnceVen O fwny G an gd

The proposal to grant the OncoVent Options under the OncoVent Share Option
Scheme as set out above has been approved by the boards of OncoVent and the
Company. OncoVent proposes to grant OncoVent Options representing 4% of the
enlarged share capital of OncoVent to one participant (namely Mr. Shi Yuenian
(“Mr. Shi”), who acts as the CEO of OncoVent), provided that the participant
reaches the agreed milestones. Mr. Shi will be granted OncoVent Options
representing 2%, 1% and 1% of the enlarged share capital of OncoVent when the
first, second and third milestone is reached, respectively.

d) Oooooo
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Milestones Conditions

goo oo

The first milestone The participant signs employment contract with OncoVent

gooooo gboobooobooonboo

The second milestone OncoVent new pharmaceutical varieties obtains permission to carry out
Phase Il clinical trials from Chinese pharmaceutical regulatory authorities

gooooo gbooobooboobooboooooomooooo

The third milestone New pharmaceutical varieties obtain permission to sell in the market from
Chinese pharmaceutical regulatory authorities

gooooo gooooOO0o0obOO0oOobOooooooDOooD

The grant date is within one month when each milestone is reached. 40%, 30%
and 30% of the OncoVent Options granted will vest in each of the three years
following the expiry of the one-year lock-up period. When and only when
OncoVent is listed or sold, the grantee can choose to exercise OncoVent Options.
As of December 31, 2020 and the date of this report, the conditions for the first
milestone has been met and the conditions for the remaining milestones have yet
to be met. The exercise price, corresponding to the fair value of the OncoVent
Options granted to Mr. Shi upon the fulfillment of the first milestone, was
approximately RMB1,271,000.

goooobooooooooooooboo
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“L” means holding a long position in Shares.

Refers to the percentage of the number of relevant class of Shares involved divided by the
number of Shares in issue of the relevant class of Shares of the Company as at the December
31, 2021.

Refers to the percentage of the number of relevant class of Shares involved divided by the
number of all Shares in issue of the Company as at the December 31, 2021.

These Shares include: (i) 474,029,899 A Shares held by Shenzhen Leren Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Leren Technology™); (ii) 408,041,280 A Shares held by Urumgqi Jintiantu Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Jintiantu”); and (iii) 40,320,000 A Shares held by Urumqi
Feilaishi Equity Investment Co., Ltd. (“Feilaishi”).

For Leren Technology’s issued share capital, Mr. Li Li holds 99% and Ms. Li Tan holds 1%; for
Jintiantu’s issued share capital, Mr. Li Li holds 1% (as a limited partner) and Ms. Li Tan holds
99% as a general partner; and Feilaishi is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Li Li. Since Leren
Technology, Jintiantu and Feilaishi beneficially own a total of 922,391,179 A Shares in the
Company, and Mr. Li Li and Ms. Li Tan are spouses, Mr. Li Li and Ms. Li Tan are deemed to be
interested in 922,391,179 A Shares beneficially held by Leren Technology, Jintiantu and
Feilaishi according to Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Shan Yu holds 99% of equity interests in Urumqi Shuidi Shichuan Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Shuidi Shichuan™). Thus, he is deemed to be interested in
46,425,600 A Shares held by Shuidi Shichuan. In addition, Mr. Shan also participated in
Scheme Il and has a 38.88% interest in 15,118,035 A Shares held by the asset manager for the
benefit of the participants of the Scheme II.

Mr. Zhang Bin participated in Scheme Il and has a 3.04% interest in 15,118,035 A Shares held
by the asset manager for the benefit of the participants of the Scheme Il. Mr. Zhang resigned
as executive Director with effect from April 29, 2022.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware, as at the December 31,
2021, none of our Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company has

any interest and/or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which will be required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors or chief executive of the Company are aware, as at
December 31, 2021, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests and/or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which are required to be notified to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or
more of the respective type of Shares which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: 5% or more of the
respective type of Shares which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Number and class

of Shares

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest interested in
googoo

oooad

ogooa gooa ooo

gooooood
gooodobod

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in the relevant
class of
shares**
goooo
goooo
Ooo0o0OnD**

goddad

goooobooobOoobooooboOoooo
gboooooocoobOOoooooooooo
gooocoooobooobobbooobooboboo
gobob0obOoooooooooooxvoozod
sgoooboooooboooooboooooooon
gbobooocoooooboosssonooonoo
ooooo0ooOoobDoO0oo0oOos%u000
oooooo

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total Shares
in issue***
oooooo
gooooo
g000On***

Leren Technology®®

Beneficial owner

474,029,899 Shares
A Shares(L)*

oooogwa ooooo 474,029,8990]
A (L)*

Jintiantu® Beneficial owner 408,041,280 Shares
A Shares(L)*

goow goooao 408,041,2800

Worldwide Healthcare Trust PLC®

Worldwide Healthcare Trust PLC®

AVICT Global Holdings Limited®

AVICT Global Holdings Limited®

Beneficial owner

oooood

Beneficial owner

ooooo

AD (L)*

11,578,000 Shares
H Shares(L)*
11,578,0000
HO (L)*

12,629,500 Shares
H Shares(L)*
12,629,5000
HO (L)*

38.01%(L)*

38.01%(L)*

32.72%(L)*

32.72%(L)*

5.26%(L)*

5.26%(L)*

5.74%(L)*

5.74%(L)*

32.31%(L)*

32.31%(L)*

27.81%(L)*

27.81%(L)*

0.79%(L)*

0.79%(L)*

0.86%(L)*

0.869%(L)*
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Name of Shareholder
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Nature of Interest

oooo

Number and class
of Shares
interested in
oooaono
oooad

ooo

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in the relevant
class of
shares**
ooooo
ooooo
goOo0OD**

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total Shares
in issue***
oooooo
ooooo
g0o00n***

OrbiMed Capital LLC®

OrbiMed Capital LLC®

Morgan Stanley Investments (UK)®

Morgan Stanley Investments (UK)®

Morgan Stanley International Limited®

Morgan Stanley International Limited®

Morgan Stanley International
Holdings Inc.®

Morgan Stanley International
Holdings Inc.®

Investment manager

oooo

Interest in controlled
corporation
oogoooo

Interest in controlled
corporation
gooogooo

Interest in controlled
corporation
goooooao

21,049,500 Shares
H Shares(L)*
21,049,5000
HO (L)*

38,215,400 Shares
H Shares(L)*
38,215,4000
HO (L)*
100,000 Shares
H Shares(S)*
100,0000
HO (S)*

38,215,400 Shares
H Shares(L)*
38,215,4000
HO (L)*
100,000 Shares
H Shares(S)*
100,0000
HO (S)*

38,215,400 Shares
H Shares(L)*
38,215,4000
HO (L)*
100,000 Shares
H Shares(S)*
100,0000

9.56%(L)*

9.56%(L)*

17.36%(L)*

17.36%(L)*

0.04%(S)*

0.04%(S)*

17.36%(L)*

17.36%(L)*

0.04%(S)*

0.04%(S)*

17.36%(L)*

17.36%(L)*

0.04%(S)*

0.04%(S)*

1.43%(L)*

1.43%(L)*

2.60%(L)*

2.60%(L)*

0.01%(S)*

0.01%(S)*

2.60%(L)*

2.60%(L)*

0.01%(S)*

0.01%(S)*

2.60%(L)*

2.60%(L)*

0.01%(S)*

0.01%(S)*p

HO (S)* HO (L)*

100,000 Shares

¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK Ay MACE EICAL Gy @ +C@., LED. 1000000000t 100 ANN Aln E4@s 882021 0 [



Name of Shareholder

oooao

Directors’ Report
OO0o0ood

Number and ¢

lass

of Shares

Nature of Interest intereste

din

oooood
oooo
oooo ooo

Approximate

percentage of Approximate
shareholding percentage of
in the relevant shareholding in
class of the total Shares
shares** in issue***
goooo oooooo
gooooo ooooo
goooOnD** g0o00On***
ooo
* 0000 00000000000SO00000
oooo

el goooooO0ooo0oboOoboOobo0oao
oobo0oO0ooO00o00O000ob0O0O0b00000
oooooood

okl goooooO0ooo0oboOoboOobo0oao
oobo0oO0ooO00o00O000ob0O0O0b00000
oo

(1) go0oo0oooooooooooOO0O0oO00a0
oobo0oO0ooO00o00O000ob0O0O0b00000
oooo0oo0oo0OO0000O0O0O00000000
ooooO0oo0ooO0OO0oboO0oOoo0boooo

(2) o0ooO0oo0000O0ob0O0oO0oO0ooO0O0O0000O0
oobooooooooooooooooooo
0000000043,6000000A0000000
oooooo

3) OrbiMed Partners Master Fund Limited
[ OPM [ Worldwide Healthcare Trust PLC
[ WWHTO OrbiMed Global Healthcare Master
Fund, L.P(0 OGH[O OrbiMed New Horizons
Master Fund, L.P(0 ONHLIIO OrbiMed Genesis
Master Fund, L.P(0 Genesis(DO OO0 O OO0
00 05,892,0000 HO 0 11,578,0000 HO O
1,263,3000 HO O 1,263,3000 HO O 1,052,900
HO O

OrbiMed Capital LLCO OPMO O 0O O O O WWH
00000000 OorbiMed Advisors LLCO O OGHO
ONHO Genesisd 0O O 0 00 OrbiMed Advisors
LLCO OrbiMed Capital LLCO O O OO0 O OO

OrbiMed Capital LLCO OrbiMed Advisors LLCO
0 O Carl L. Gordon[ Sven H. Borho[ Jonathan
T.SilversteinD 00000000000 OOOO
0og
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4) AVICT Global Holdings Limited Hangyuan
Holdings Limited
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the Reporting Period, the Group’s largest customer accounted for 10.24% of the
Group'’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest customers accounted for 33.84% of
the Group’s total revenue.

In the Reporting Period, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 6.86% of the
Group’s total purchase. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 21.51% of
the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers or the Group’s five largest customers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

As at the date of this annual report, the Company is not aware of any tax relief or
exemption available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

In accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
(DO0OO0OO0DOODOD0O0O0O0)and its implementation regulations which came into
effect on January 1, 2008, the Company is required to withhold and pay enterprise
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the non-resident enterprise
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members for H Shares when
distributing the cash dividends. Any H Shares not registered under the name of an
individual Shareholder, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, agents
or trustees, or other organizations or groups, shall be deemed as Shares held by
non-resident enterprise Shareholders. Therefore, on this basis, enterprise income
tax shall be withheld from dividends payable to such Shareholders. If holders of H
Shares intend to change its Shareholder status, please enquire about the relevant
procedures with your agents or trustees. The Company will strictly comply with the
law or the requirements of the relevant government authority and withhold and
pay enterprise income tax on behalf of the relevant Shareholders based on the
register of members for H Shares as of the Record Date.

If the individual holders of H Shares are Hong Kong or Macau residents or residents
of the countries which had an agreed tax rate of 10% for the cash dividends to
them with the PRC under the relevant tax agreement, the Company should
withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of the relevant Shareholders at a
rate of 10%. Should the individual holders of H Shares be residents of the countries
which had an agreed tax rate of less than 10% with the PRC under the relevant tax
agreement, the Company shall withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of
the relevant Shareholders at a rate of 10%. In that case, if the relevant individual
holders of H Shares wish to reclaim the extra amount withheld due to the
application of 10% tax rate, the Company can apply for the relevant agreed
preferential tax treatment provided that the relevant Shareholders submit the
evidence required by the notice of the tax agreement to Tricor Investor Services
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Limited. The Company will assist with the tax refund after the approval of the
competent tax authority. Should the individual holders of H Shares be residents of
the countries which had an agreed tax rate of over 10% but less than 20% with
the PRC under the tax agreement, the Company shall withhold and pay the
individual income tax at the agreed actual rate in accordance with the relevant tax
agreement. In the case that the individual holders of H Shares are residents of the
countries which had an agreed tax rate of 20% with the PRC, or which has not
entered into any tax agreement with the PRC, or otherwise, the Company shall
withhold and pay the individual income tax at a rate of 20%.

HUMAN RESOURCES
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the public float as required under the Listing Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) in relation to the director’s and officer’s liability insurance is currently in
force and was in force during the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
and has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate Governance Code™). During the
Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions
in the Corporate Governance Code.

In order to maintain high standards of corporate governance, the Board will
continuously review and monitor the Company’s corporate governance code.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 61 to 80 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company made donations of RMB2.7 million.

AUDITOR

The H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on July 8, 2020, and there has
been no change in auditors of the Company since the Listing Date. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period have been
audited by Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

For the Reporting Period, the Company is in compliance with the relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the Company. anfd2 0 0 12BKt laws and
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Failure to attain market acceptance among the medical community would
have a material adverse impact on our operations and profitability;

The retail prices of certain of our products are subject to price control or
downward adjustment by the government authorities or other pricing
pressure;

Sales of our enoxaparin sodium injection products depend on the
reimbursement policies of the governmental authorities and health insurers.
Failure to obtain or maintain adequate medical insurance coverage and
reimbursement for our pharmaceutical products could limit our ability to
market those products and decrease our ability to generate revenue;

If our products are not manufactured to the necessary quality standards, it
could harm our business and reputation, and our revenue and profitability
could be adversely affected;

If we suffer substantial disruption to any of our production sites or encounter
problems in manufacturing our products, our business and results of
operations could be adversely affected;

Fluctuations in prices of our raw materials may have a material adverse effect
on us if we are not able to transfer the cost increase to our customers;

If we are unable to successfully complete clinical development, obtain
regulatory approval and commercialize our product candidates, or experience
significant delays in doing so, our business will be materially harmed;

Our CDMO business is dependent on our customers’ spending on and
demand for outsourced biologics discovery, development and manufacturing.
A reduction in spending or demand could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and
prospects;

If we or parties on whom we rely fail to comply with the laws and regulations
related to, or maintain the necessary licenses for, the development,
production, sales and distribution of our products, our ability to conduct our
business could be materially impaired; and

Goodwill comprises a substantial portion of our total assets; if we determine
our goodwill to be impaired, it would adversely affect our financial position.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On April 1, 2022, the Company’s public offering of corporate bonds to professional
investors in 2022 (hereinafter referred to as the “bonds”) will be no more than
RMB500 million, and the issue price will be RMB100 each. The issuance time of the
current bond is from March 31, 2022 to April 1, 2022, the actual issuance scale is
RMB500 million, and the coupon rate is 3.9%.

On March 16, 2022, the Company received a notice from the investor of the
corporate bond 19 Hepalink, requiring the Company to repurchase 7,000,000
shares of 19 Hepalink according to the repurchase plan of the non-publicly issued
corporate bond 19 Hepalink (stock code: 114455) in 2019. The principal of the
bond is RMB700,000,000.00.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no important events affecting the Company
and its subsidiaries which occurred after December 31, 2021 and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Li Li

Chairman

Shenzhen, PRC, April 11, 2022
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the Reporting
Period in this annual report (the “Corporate Governance Report”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

On 1 January 2022, the amendments to the Corporate Governance Code (the “New
CG Code™) came into effect and the requirements under the New CG code will
apply to corporate governance reports for financial year commencing on or after 1
January 2022. The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14
(the Corporate Governance Code before the amendments took effect on 1 January
2022) to the Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that throughout the whole Reporting Period, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the “Corporate Governance Code™).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has devised its own code of conduct for the trading of securities by
its directors, supervisors and members of senior management of the Group (who
are likely to possess inside information about the securities of the Company due to
their offices or employments in the Company or its subsidiaries) on terms that no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry by the Company, all directors, supervisors and members of senior
management of the Group have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code from the Listing Date to the date of
this report. The Company continues and will continue to ensure the compliance
with the corresponding provisions set out in the Model Code.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Code provision C.2.1 of the New CG Code (Equivalent to code provision A.2.1 of

the previous Corporate Governance Code) stipulates that the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Chairman and General Manager (equivalent to Chief Executive Officer) of the
Company are held by Mr. Li Li and Mr. Shan Yu respectively, thus we have complied
with Code provision C.2.1. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the General Manager has been clearly established.

Independent Non-executive Directors
During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times fulfilled the requirements of the

Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors representing one-third of the board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) of the

Company are appointed for a specific term of three years and are eligible for re-
election upon expiry of their term of office in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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Responsibilities of the Directors
The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high
standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the
Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company and
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are delegated
to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to

effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors would be arranged and reading material on relevant topics would be
provided to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, all Directors attended training sessions
on the respective obligations of the Directors and senior management. In addition,
relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory update have been
provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.

The record of continuous professional development relating to director’s duties and
regulatory and business development that have been received by the Directors for
the year ended December 31, 2021 is summarized as follows:
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Type of Training Not

Directors oo oooogee
Evec. [ e Diec g oooo
Mr. Li Li oooad A/B
Ms. Li Tan ooood A/B
Mr. Shan Yu oooo A/B
Mr. Zhang Bin oooo
(appointed on May 26, 2021) goo0oboo0oobooobooboboo
(resigned on April 29, 2022) gooboooboooooobogobo A/B
Inde_enden Nwn-Eyec, | e Di ec% 4 ooooooo
Dr. Lu Chuan ooogd A/B
Mr. Chen Junfa ooooo A/B
Mr. Wang Zhaohui ooooao A/B
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Junfa, Dr. Lu Chuan and Mr. Wang Zhaohui. Mr. Chen Junfa is
the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the Corporate Governance Code and in compliance with the

relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The main dutiesy 6 (. 10li ()JJ0.12078 Twwutee arnoanti)Jed to:C.
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The Audit Committee also met the external auditors 1 time without the presence of
the executive Directors.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out under “Attendance
Record of Directors and Committee Members”.

Remuneration and Evaluation Committee
The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee consists of two Independent Non-

executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Zhaohui and Mr. Chen Junfa, and one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Li Li. Mr. Wang Zhaohui is the chairperson of the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the Corporate Governance Code and in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The main duties of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee include but are
not limited to:

. formulating remuneration plans or schemes based on the main
responsibilities, scope and importance of the management positions of the
directors and senior management, and the remuneration levels of similar
positions in other enterprises; and making recommendations to the Board as
to the overall performance appraisal and remuneration management system
and structure for the directors and senior management, and the
establishment of proper and transparent formulation procedures of the
remuneration policy;

. reviewing and approving the management’s proposal on remuneration based
on the corporate goals and objectives set by the Board;

. the appraisal and remuneration management system includes but is not
limited to performance appraisal criteria and procedures, the main appraisal
system, and the principal plan and system regarding incentive and penalty;

. determining, with delegated responsibility of the Board, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management or making
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration package of individual
executive directors and senior management. This should include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

. making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

. considering the remuneration package, time commitment, scope of
responsibility of similar companies and other employment terms of other
positions within the Group;

. goooooooooooooo

.
O

.
O

goooooooooooobooboloobooo
ooooooood

goooooooboooooboobooDboboo
oooo0oooooo

ugogoooggn
ooooooooboOooOooboOooboO0ooooo

gooooooooooooooooooaa
goooooobooboooOooOoOoboooooo
oooooo

gooooooobooooobooooboobog
gooooobooooooobooooboooooo
oooo

Jgooooooooooooooooooo

goooooooooooooo
gooobobooooooooooo
gboooooooooooooao
goboocooooooooooao
goboocooooooooooo
googogo

O0Oo0oooao
s o |

gooooooooooogoooaon
oooooooooo

O

goooOoooooooogoooon
gooooooooooobogoooo
gogoooooooooooo

O O

oobooooooooooooooao
gobooooocooboooooao
ooobooooooooocooooao
oooobooooooooooooao
gbooboooboobooooooooo
gooooooootm

. oooooooboooboooooobooo

. goboooooooboooooo

goooooooooooogoooo
gooogo

¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK Ay MACE BICAL Gy @ +C@., LED. 100000000l

ANN ALy -8 2021 0]



Corporate Governance Report

OO0ooagn

. reviewing and approving the compensation due to executive directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of office or appointment, so
as to ensure that such compensation is consistent with the contractual terms;
if such compensation is not consistent with the contractual terms, ensuring
that it is fair, reasonable and not excessive;

. reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating to the
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct or the like, so as to ensure
that such arrangements are consistent with the contractual terms; if such
compensation is not consistent with the contractual terms, ensuring that it is
reasonable and appropriate;

. ensuring that no director or any of his associates is involved in the
determination of his remuneration;

. evaluating the performance of duties by the directors and senior
management of the Company and conducting the annual performance
evaluation on them;

. supervising the implementation of the Company’s remuneration system; and
. other matters as authorized by the Board.

The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee held 1 meeting in 2021. The
following is a summary of the major tasks carried out by the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee in 2021:

. To review the results of evaluation for members of senior management of
the Company for 2020

- To review the remunerations for directors and members of senior
management of the Company for 2020

. To review the remuneration policy and structure of all Directors and senior
management of the Company

The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee believes that the remuneration
scheme for directors and members of senior management complies with the
Company’s relevant system and requirements of current operation and
management of the Company, and remunerations disclosed are in line with the
actual situation.

The attendance records of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are set out
under “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members™.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band for the year ended
December 31, 2021 are set out below:
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Remuneration band (RMB) Number of person(s) ooooooooo oo
Nil to 1,000,000 — 0[O 1,000,000 —
1,000,001 to 3,000,000 — 1,000,0010 3,000,000 —
3,000,001 to 5,000,000 3 3,000,0010 5,000,000 3

5,000,001 to 8,000,000 —

5,000,0010 8,000,000 —
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of two Independent Non-executive Directors,

namely Dr. Lu Chuan and Mr. Chen Junfa, and one Executive Director, namely
Mr. Li Li. Dr. Lu Chuan is the chairperson of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the Corporate Governance Code and in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include but are not limited to:

. formulating and reviewing the Board diversity policy; evaluating the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least once a year and making recommendations to the Board on the
size and composition of the Board based on the Company’s operating
activities, asset size and equity structure; and when considering the
combination of the members of the Board, ensuring the balance between
executive and nonexecutive directors (including independent directors) and
considering from multiple aspects of the diversity of the members of the
Board, including but not limited to their gender, age, cultural and
educational background and professional experience;

. studying the selection criteria and procedures for directors and senior
management and putting forward proposals to the Board;

. searching extensively for qualified candidates for the roles of directors and
senior management;

. examining and putting forward proposals in relation to the candidates for
the roles of directors (including independent directors) and senior
management;

. making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of directors and succession planning for directors (in particular,
the chairman and the general manager);

. evaluating the independence of the independent directors; and

. other matters as authorized by the Board.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into
account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in
the Company’s Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience etc. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s character, qualifications, experience,
independence, time commitment and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate,
before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings in 2021. The following is a summary

of the major tasks carried out by the Nomination Committee in 2021:

. To nominate candidates for non-independent directors of the fifth Board of
the Company

. To formulate a director nomination policy

. To nominate candidates for the fifth session of the Board of the Company

. To nominate candidates for the Board secretary of the fifth session of the
Company
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the functions set out in the

code provision A.2.1 (Equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of the previous Corporate
Governance Code) of the New CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director during their tenure of office at the Board
and Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the Reporting Period is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

poooooooo

Other General

Meetings and

Remuneration A Share Class

and Annual Meeting and

Audit Evaluation Nomination Strategy General  H Share Class

Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting meeting

pooooo

OADDO

0oooo

poo HOOO

pooo ooo 0oooo poooo ooooo ooooo oooooo oooo

Mr. LiLi 10/10 N/A 11 33 0/0 11 11

oooo 10/10 ooo 1 303 0/0 111 11

Ms. Li Tan 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0/1 01

oooo 10/10 0oo ooo 0oo 0/0 01 011

Mr. Shan Yu 10/10 N/A N/A N/A N/A 11 11

oooo 1010 poo poo ooo poo n 11

Mr. Sun Xuan (resigned on May 6, 2021) 414 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

oooooobooCooOoOOoOOoOooo 4/4 ooo ooo ooo poo ooo ooo

Mr. Zhang Bin (appointed on May 26, 2021)

(resigned on April 29, 2022) 6/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1
poooioooboOoOoOoOOOUOOOo

ooooooooooboooooo 6/6 ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo 0/1

Mr. Bu Haihua (resigned on April 17, 2021) 212 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

pooo0ooooooOoOOOOOOOo 212 ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo

Dr. Lu Chuan 10/10 4/4 N/A 33 0/0 11 11

oooo 10/10 4/4 ooo 313 0/0 11 11

Mr. Chen Junfa 10/10 4/4 11 313 N/A 11 11

ooooo 10710 4/4 11 313 ooo 11 171

Mr. Wang Zhaohui 10/10 414 11 N/A NIA 11 111

ooooo 10/10 414 1n ooo ooo 1n n
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. where the advice from an independent professional, such as that from a
financial adviser, is reasonably requested by our Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors), the appointment of such an
independent professional will be made at the Company’s expenses; and

. we have appointed Somerley Capital Limited as our compliance adviser,
which will provide advice and guidance to us in respect of compliance with
the applicable laws and the Listing Rules including various requirements
relating to corporate governance.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to identify risks
that potentially impact the business of the Group and various aspects, including key
operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that control
policies are properly complied with by each department.

The Board had reviewed the risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the Reporting
Period, and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff in the aforementioned systems and of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function, and the adequacy of their training programs
and budget.

The Board confirms its responsibility for supervising the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness at least annually
through the Audit Committee. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Group internal audit and the Audit Committee assist the Board in the review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on the
basis of continuity. The directors through these committees are kept regularly
appraised of significant risks that may impact on the Group’s performance.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in performing its supervision and corporate
governance roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk
management, internal controls, the resourcing of the finance and internal audit
functions by reviewing the working report from internal audit and external audit.
During the Reporting Period, the Group internal audit conducted selective reviews
of the effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls of the
Group in respect of financial, operational and compliance controls with emphasis
on information technology and security, information privacy and protection,
business continuity management and procurement. Such results were assessed by
the Group internal audit and reported to the Audit Committee, which then
reviewed and reported the same to the Board. The Audit Committee and the Board
were not aware of any areas of concern that would have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial position or results of operations and considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be generally effective and adequate
including the sufficiency of resources, staff qualifications and experience, adequate
training programs for the staff and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general guide to
the Company’s Directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized access
and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

Regarding the procedure and internal control over handling and propagation of the
inside information, the Group has adopted an inside information management
policy which has been disseminated to all the staff. Based on the policy and in
order to ensure that the inside information would be processed and propagated in
compliance, the Group has established monitoring measures to ensure that the
potential inside information could be recognized, assessed and then provided to
the Board for their decision that whether a disclosure is required.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors, Supervisors and senior management receive their remuneration in
the form of salary and allowances, employer’s contribution to pension schemes,
annual bonuses and independent directors’ fee.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors of the Group in
respect of audit services for the year ended December 31, 2021 amounted to
RMB7.1 million.

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to the external auditors of the
Group, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
December 31, 2021 is set out below:
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Fees Paid/Payable

0ooooooo

RMB’000

Service Category oooo ooooog
Audit Services — annual audit for the year 0000 —ooooooo

ended December 31, 2021 0ooooooooooooooo 7,050

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the period from the September 18, 2020 to October 27, 2021, Ms. Tan
Xuan and Ms. Chan Sze Ting of Tricor Services Limited (an external service provider)
were the joint company secretaries of the Company.
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On October 27, 2021, Ms. Tan Xuan resigned from his position as the joint
company secretary of the Company and Mr. Qian Fengqi has been appointed as the
joint company secretary of the Company with effect from October 27, 2021. The
main contact of Ms. Chan Sze Ting at the Company is Mr. Qian Fengqi, the Board
Secretary of the Company.

The joint company secretaries of the Company have complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training
during the year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company secretaries
on corporate governance and board practices related matters.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Director All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

Convening Shareholders’ General Meetings
A shareholders’ annual general meeting is required to be held once every year

within six months following the end of the previous financial year. An extraordinary
general meeting is required to be held within two months subsequent to the
occurrence of any of the following:

. when the number of directors is less than the minimum number required by
the Company Law, or is less than two thirds of the number stipulated in the

Articles of Association;

. when the uncovered loss is more than one-third of the Company’s total share
capital;

. when any of the shareholders individually or jointly holding no less than 10%
of total number of the Company’s voting shares make any written request to
convene the meeting;

. when the Board deems it necessary to convene the meeting;

. when the Supervisory Committee proposes to convene the meeting; and
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A shareholders’ general meeting shall be convened by the Board, and chaired by
the Chairman of the Board. In the event that the Chairman is incapable of
performing or is not performing his/her duties, the meeting shall be presided over
by the Vice Chairman. In the event that the Vice Chairman is incapable of
performing or is not performing his/her duties, a Director jointly nominated by half
or more of the Directors shall preside over the meeting.

A shareholders’ general meeting convened by the Supervisory Committee shall be
chaired by the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. Where the chairman of the
Supervisory Committee is incapable of performing or is not performing his/her
duties, a supervisor jointly recommended by more than one half of the supervisors
shall chair the meeting.

A Shareholders’ general meeting convened by the shareholders themselves shall be
chaired by a representative elected by the convener. If for any reason the convener
fails to elect a chairperson, the shareholder (including proxy thereof) holding the
most voting shares thereat shall chair the meeting (other than HKSCC Nominees).

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders individually or jointly holding 3% or more of the Shares of the
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Policies relating to Shareholders
The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy to ensure that

Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is
regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders’ communication policy
The Board has reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy for the Reporting

Period and consider the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy to be sufficient and adequate.

Dividend Policy
The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends pursuant to code

provision F.1.1 (Equivalent to code provision E.1.5 of the previous Corporate
Governance Code) of the New CG Code. The articles of the Company contain the
profit distribution policy, setting out, among others, the principles and forms of
profit distribution, the conditions and proportion of cash distribution, the period of
profit distribution, the conditions of dividend distribution of shares, the decision-
making process and mechanism of profit distribution, and the principles for
adjusting the profit distribution policy. At the end of each financial year, profit
distribution proposal will be formulated by the Board, and will be subject to
shareholders’ approval. The Board should complete the dividend distribution within
2 months after the holding of the shareholders’ meeting.
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Key audit matters ((»n jn, ed)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
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Key audit matters ((»n jn, ed)

Key Audit Matter
gooooo

gboboooo

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
gooobooobooboboobooo

Revenue recognition (Continued)

ooooooo

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of CDMO
services was RMB813,104,000. Among which, the revenue
recognised over time and at a point in time were
RMB701,180,000 and RMB111,924,000, respectively. For CDMO
services, Shenzhen Hepalink Pharmaceutical Group Co. Ltd.
identified the goods or services stated in the CDMO services
contracts as performance obligations, and revenue is recognised
upon analysing the present right to payment for the CDMO
services and the point when a customer obtains control of the
goods or services. For performance obligation to be delivered
over time, revenue is recognised according to the progress of
performing the respective obligation.
goo0oDbO0oO0ooobbOoooobboooocebMoO oo
go0DbO0O0D0bs13,104,0000000000DO00O00DOODOO
0000 O0O0ODO0ODbOoOO0DOOovo1,180,0000 000 DO
111,924,000 00CDMOO0 0 000D OOOOODODOOOO
gooooocoMoOOOODOOOODODOOOODODOOODO
gooocoMOODDOOODDDOOODODDOOODDOODO
o0o0o000oOOooOO0OO0O0OoOoOooDoOoOOOoOOOoOooOoOOO
gboobo0ooboobooooboobooono

As revenue recognition criteria of the Group involved judgement
as explained above, we considered this as a key audit matter.
gobooboooobooobooboooboooobooo
gooooooooo

®)

(4)

For revenue from sales of goods, we performed tests of
details to check supporting documents including sales
contracts and other related supporting documents and
evaluated whether the relevant revenue recognition is in
compliance with the accounting policy for revenue
recognition of Shenzhen Hepalink Pharmaceutical Group
Co., Ltd.;

000000000000 0DOo0oO0OoOoDOoDoDoUOoOoOOo
0000000000000 0DDO0ODODoDoODoDOooOoOo
oo0ooo0o0ooOOoO0oCocOO0OOO0DCOOO0OOoOOoOOO
ooooooo

For revenue from CDMO services, we performed tests of
details on supporting documents by selecting samples from
sales transactions and inspected whether the performance
obligations had been met at the point of recognising
corresponding revenue:

gocoMoOU 0O OOODODOODODOODOOOOOOOO
000000000 O0OO0D0oOoO0oDoOO0oO0DooOOoOoooO
000oo00oooooooo

(1) For performance obligations satisfied over time, we
evaluated whether the “over time” criteria had been
met and evaluated the accuracy of the progress of
the performance;
go0oo0oobob0ooDoooobooooobobo
gooooooObOooOOboooooooboboboboo
god

(i)  For performance obligations satisfied at a point in
time, we checked the supporting evidence of the
services transferred/delivery of units produced.
ooo0ooOoOOoOOOOODOOODOODODOOOOO
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Key audit matters ((»n jn, ed)

Key Audit Matter
gooooo

gboboooo

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
gooobooobooboboobooo

Revenue recognition (Continued)

ooooo

Refer to note 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES, note 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES and note 5 REVENUE to the consolidated financial
statements for accounting policies and disclosure related to
revenue recognition.

00000000000 0240000000000030000
goooboooooosobboobbooobboooboboo
oo

®)

(6)

)

We selected samples of transactions of sales of goods
before and after the balance sheet date and checked to
supporting documents including goods delivery note and
logistics documents, etc., to evaluate whether the relevant
revenue was recorded accurately in the proper accounting
period;

000000000000 ooooooooooooo
go0o0ooOOoOOoooOoOOoO0oO0OoOoCooODODoOOoOOOO
goobooboOoOooboocoboooboo

We compared the revenue from sales of goods, from CDMO
services and other operating income, as well as gross profit
margins for the current year with those of the previous year,
and analysed the variance; and
gooboooooecbMOOODODOOOoDDOOODOOO
g0obO0o0OO0o0oO0O0ODbOooODOoOobDOOoboDooboobooo
oooooog

We reviewed the sufficiency and completeness of the
disclosure of revenue in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
0000o000o0U0DOoO0o0oDOo0oDooOoDoUoOoooOo
ood
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Oo0o0o0ooad

Key audit matters ((»n jn, ed)

Key Audit Matter
gooooo

gboboooo

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
gooobooobooboboobooo

Impairment of goodwill

oooo

At 31 December 2021, the carrying value of goodwill in the
consolidated financial statements amounted to
RMB2,152,201,000.
o0o0000oOooOO0OO0O0OoO0O0OoDOooOOOOOoOooOoOOO
000 02,152,201,0000 O

In accordance with IFRSs, the Group is required to perform the
impairment test for goodwill at least on an annual basis. The
goodwill impairment test is based on the recoverable amount of
each cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the goodwill is
allocated. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on the higher of the value in use (“VIU”’) and
fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD”). In determining the
recoverable amount, the Group engaged independent valuers to
perform the impairment test for goodwill.
0000000000000 OD0D0DU0D0O0Do0ooDoUooOooo
0000000000000 0DU0D0DO0OD0ODO0OO0D0DUDOoOOoOOoOO
00000000 oOoOOoO00O0OoDOoOOO0OOO0OoOOOO
ooo0o0o0oO0oO0OoooOoOOO0OO0O0OO0OO0DODOoDOoDOoOoOoOOOOO
O0oO0ooO0ooooOooOoooooooo

In performing the impairment test for goodwill, key assumptions
and judgements were used by the Group, for example, when the
recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on VIU,
key assumptions including the CGU’s cash flow forecast, revenue
growth rates and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA™) rate of forecast periods, and the
pre-tax discount rates; and when the recoverable amount of the
CGU was determined based on FVLCD, key assumptions including
the selection of comparable companies, etc.

00000000000 D0D0OD0D0D0OO00DoDOo0oDOooooao
oo0o000oooOO0OO00oOoOooOoOOO0OO0DOoOoOoOoooOOoOO
ooooOoO0oO0O0OOoOoDO0OOoDOoDOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
0000000000000 O0O@EBITDACDOOOOOOO
goooOoO0oOoO0OooOoOOOOoDOoOOoDOOOOOODOOOOO
O0o00o0oOoooooOooOooOooo

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:
O0o00oO0ooOoooooooo

(1) We evaluated and tested the design and the operating
effectiveness of the controls in relation to goodwill
impairment testing;

0000000000000 0oO0oD0DooOoDoooooaOo
oooooo

(2)  We evaluated the base data used in cash flow forecast by
comparing those to the historical data;
goobOooocboooboooboooboobbooo

(3) We ascertained and assessed the revenue growth rates
adopted for the forecast periods by comparing those to the
historical revenue growth rates;

00000000 OoOoO0o0oOoOooOOoOoooOoOoooO
ooooooo

(4) We evaluated the EBITDA rates of forecast periods by
comparing those to the historical corresponding rates;
OO0OO0O0OD0OOODOEBTDAOODOODOOODOOODOOO

(5) We involved internal valuation specialists to assist in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by the
Group, such as the pre-tax discount rate, etc;
goodoobo0dooboobono bDoboobobooboooboo
gooooooboo

(6) We evaluated the comparable companies, and the data of
comparable companies selected by the Group/its
independent valuers;

0000 0O0O0O0OO0OO0OO0OOODOoDO0O0OO0OoDOoOoOooOoooo
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Oo0o0o0ooad

Key audit matters ((»n jn, ed)

Key Audit Matter
gooooo

gboboooo

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
gooobooobooboboobooo

Impairment of goodwill (Continued)

ooooooo

The judgements and estimates involved will be significantly
influenced by management’s assessment of future market and
economic changes, which in turn will pose significant impacts on
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill is
allocated. In light of this, we considered this as a key audit
matter.
gobooboboobOoobooboobooboobooboo
goboobobooOoobooboboooboobbobobooo
gbooboboooboooboUooooboboboobooobooo

Refer to note 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES, note 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES and note 16 GOODWILL to the consolidated financial
statements for accounting policies and disclosures related to
goodwill impairment.

00000000000 024000000000003000
0Oo0000O0OCocOoOoO0o1e00000CO0O00OO0OCoOoDOoooonO
oopooooo

@)

®)

We reviewed mathematically the calculations of VIU;
0000000000 O0oOooOooo

We ascertained the profile of independent valuers engaged
by the Group and evaluated their competence, capabilities
and objectivity; and

0000 0000000000 O0OO0OO0DO0OoDOoDOoOoOoOo
ooo0ooooooo

We reviewed the sufficiency and completeness of the
disclosures of goodwill in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
gobobooboboboboobooooooooooo
ooo
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Oo0o0o0ooad

Key audit matters ((»n jn, ed)

Key Audit Matter
gooooo

gboboooo

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
gooobooobooboboobooo

Assessment of fair value of financial instruments
oopooooooooo

At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s financial
assets which are measured at fair value amounted to
RMB2,452,542,000.
oo0oooo0ooooO0oO0oOoooO0ooooO0oO0oO Ooooo
00000000000 D2,452,542,0000 0

The valuation of financial instruments is based on a combination
of market data and valuation models which often require a
considerable number of inputs. Many of these inputs are
obtained from readily available data. For financial assets classified
under the fair value hierarchy as Level 1 and 2, inputs of
valuation models include the quoted market price and observable
data. When such observable data is not readily available, that
means the financial instruments under the Level 3 of fair value
hierarchy, management‘s estimate will be used for the
determination of the unobservable inputs.
0000000000000 000D00OD0o0oDoooOooaOo
0000000000000 0O0DO0OO00oO0o0DoOoooOooOoo
000010 002000000000000000000
ooo0oO0o0ooooOoO0oO0oOoOooOOOOOOOOOOOOO
OooO0O300o0oc0oo0oO0oO0ooO0ooDDooooOooOooaOo
ooooocooooooog

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:
O0o00oO0ooOoooooooo

(1) We evaluated and tested the design and the operating
effectiveness of the controls in relation to fair value
measurement of financial instruments;
J00d0o0OoOoooooOOoOoOOoOOoOOOOoOOoOOoOOoOoooan
gooooooooo

(2) We inspected investment agreements entered into, on a
sample basis, to understand the relevant terms and identify
conditions that were relevant to the valuation of financial
instruments, and inspected the audited financial statements
of the investee companies to evaluate the reasonableness of
the valuation;
gobobooobooboooooboboooboobooo
gobobOO0o0oO00obOo0ooboobOobooobooboo
gooooOOoo0ooOooOoOOoboooo

(3) For financial assets traded in active market, we checked to
the quoted price of corresponding financial assets as at
balance sheet date and re-performed the calculation to
arrive at the carrying value of respective financial assets;
gobobOOoocO0oOoboooobooboooboooboo
goooobOboobObOoobOOoOobobOoOoobOoobOoo
goooooo

(4) We involved internal valuation specialists to assist in
evaluating the methodologies and the key parameters used
for assessing fair value of financial instruments and testing
the fair value, on a sample basis;

00000000000 0O0OOoOoDoOoOOoDOooOOoOoOoOOo
0000000000000 D00OoOoOoOo
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Oo0o0o0ooad

Key audit matters ((»n jn, ed)

Key Audit Matter
gooooo

gboboooo

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
gooobooobooboboobooo

Assessment of fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
goboooboobooog

Because of the complexity involved in assessing the fair value of
financial instruments, and significant management judgement
involved in determining the inputs of valuation models, we
consider this as a key audit matter.
gooooooooobODbDbboobOO0O000o0oooUooog
gooooooooobbbbobOo0o0o0oooooooood
goo

Refer to note 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES, note 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES, note 19 EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, note 20
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS,
note 21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS and note 44 FAIR
VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS to the consolidated financial statements for
accounting policies and disclosures related to fair value of
financial instruments.
Jo0o0000OO00ODOO00bC2400000000000800O000O
goDO0O0O0ODOO0OO0ol1900b0b0O0o0obDoOoobooooooano
Jo0DO0O0O0ODOO0OO0ODoODOoze000D000OCDOOO0ODOOODO
000000 DO000dD210000000000440000
gooooooooobbbboooooooooooood
goooooooooo

(5) We ascertained the profile of independent valuers and
evaluated their competence, capabilities and objectivity; and
000000 0oOO0O000oDOoD0DOooOoOoUooooooOo
000

(6) We reviewed the sufficiency and completeness of the
disclosures of financial instruments in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
0000000000000 O0o0oDooOOoDoUooOooaO
goooo
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Independent Auditor’s Report

googood

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (C»n {n, ed)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

gogogooobobbobooo
O0b0oyog
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Independent Auditor’s Report

googood

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (C»n {n, ed)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report
is M.L. Chau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

11 April 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Pro t or Loss

ooognd

Year ended 31 December 2021
ooooooooooooooononn

2021 2020
ogoooaoo ooooao
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
od oooaono ooooao
REVENUE oo 5 6,359,786 5,315,685
Cost of sales oooao (4,366,204) (3,298,849)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Oo0o00ooad

Year ended 31 December 2021

ooooooooooooooonn

2021 2020
ooooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo gooooo
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR oooo 233,384 1,021,632
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME oooooo
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to ooooooooooooon
profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax): oooooooooooood
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations o0ooooooooo (24,373) (181,924)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of associates oo00oooooooo
00mogo 1,013 (1,642)
Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to o0opoooooooooo
profit or loss in subsequent periods ooooooooooo (23,360) (183,566)
Other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassified to oooooooooooooo
profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax): oooooooooooooi
Change in fair value of equity investments designated o0oo00oooooooooo
at fair value through other comprehensive income 0oooooooooooo
gooooo (64,774) 6,835
Remeasurement income/(loss) on defined benefit pension o0oDoooooooooon
schemes oomooo 892 (25,050)
Net other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassified o0oDooooooooooo
to profit or loss in subsequent periods ooooooooo (63,882) (18,215)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax 00D000O00O0oooooog (87,242) (201,781)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0000000 Ooocoooo 146,142 819,851
Attributable to: gooooooo
Owners of the parent goDoo0oo 153,886 823,914
Non-controlling interests ooooo (7.744) (4,063)
¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK Ay MACE EICAL Gy @ +C@., LED. 1§00000000r 100 ANN Aln E4@s 882021 0 [



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

goooood

As at 31 December 2021

oooooooooooon

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ooooo gooooo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ooooo
Property, plant and equipment oooooooo 14 2,526,672 2,623,449
Right-of-use assets gopoooo ills) 239,854 186,191
Goodwill oo 16 2,152,201 2,202,566
Other intangible assets oooooo 17 472,969 512,370
Investments in associates oooooooo 18 1,146,465 1,631,183
Equity investments designated at fair value ooooooooooon
through other comprehensive income ooooooooooan
oooo 19 474,885 619,953
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss O
gooooood 19
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

goooood

As at 31 December 2021
oooooooooooon

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
od oooaono ooooao
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ooooo
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ooooooooo 31 2,250,270 3,085,857
Deferred income oooog 32 16,673 18,744
Deferred tax liabilities oooooog 33 275,358 427,673
Long-term employee benefits oooooo 34 138,020 130,936
Other non-current liabilities ooooooo 9,070 9,218
Lease liabilities ogooa 15 104,001 51,643
Total non-current liabilities ooooooao 2,793,392 3,724,071
Net assets oooo 11,523,315 11,688,990
EQUITY oo
Equity attributable to owners of the parent o0o0oooooooo
Share capital oad 55 1,467,296 1,467,296
Reserves oo 36 9,944,058 10,102,096
Total equity attributable to owners of oooooooooooo
the parent 11,411,354 11,569,392
Non-controlling interests ooooo 111,961 119,598
Total equity oooo 11,523,315 11,688,990
Li Li Shan Yu
oo oo
Director Director
oo oo
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

googood

Year ended 31 December 2021

ooooooooooooooonn
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
OOo0O040gonoog

Year Ended 31 December 2021
ooooooooooooooononn

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo Oo0oo0oo ooooo
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES OooOoooooooo
Profit before tax: ooooo 222,264 1,327,836
Adjustments for: oooooooon
Bank interest income oooooo 6 (54,857) (34,647)
Finance costs gooo 8 210,074 260,824
Share of losses/(profits) of associates 0oo0o0o0oooomooon 120,230 (231,004)
Dividend income from financial assets ooooooooo
at fair value through profit or loss ooooooooo
OooOooooono 6 (28,575) (14,590)
Dividend income from financial assets ooooooooo
designated at fair value through oooooooo
other comprehensive loss ooooooooao
ooooo 6 (15,488) (16,561)
Interest income from debt investment ooooooooao 6 (1,744) (5,972)
Gains on disposal of financial assets at fair value ooooooooao
through profit or loss Oo00oo0oooOoooo
OoooOooooo 6 (5,761) (5,444)
Fair value losses on derivative instruments Jo00o0O0oOooooOooo 6 4,181 20,480
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value oooooooooon
through profit or loss ooooooooo
OO0oOooOooOoo 6 (68,065) (506,936)
Impairment losses on associates ooooooon 7 223,092 =
Losses on disposal of items of property, ooooooooon
plant and equipment ooooo 6 5,105 1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment oooooooooo 7 217,492 220,033
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ooooooo 7 37,782 35,212
Amortisation of other intangible assets oooooooan 7 51,520 52,123
Impairment losses on financial assets oooooooaon 7 101,958 15,194
Non-cash transaction in relation to investment Ooooooooooan 39 - (96,560)
Foreign exchange losses, net goooooo 6 205,044 248,832
1,224,252 1,268,821
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
OOo0O040gonoog

Year Ended 31 December 2021
ooooooooooooooononn

2021 2020

ogoooaoo ooooao

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

od oooaono ooooao

Increase in inventories oooao (1,539,300) (805,081)

Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables o0ooooooooon

Oooomoo 84,822 (407,465)

Decrease in contract assets goooooo 5,484 10,709
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and oooooooooo

other receivables o0ooooomooo 22,005 (88,273)

Decrease in amounts due from related parties Ooo0oDoOooooo 5,147 14,038

Increase in trade payables oooooooo 146,569 10,557

Increase in other payables and accruals ooooooooooooo 27,473 70,044

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related parties 0 D O 000000 OO 0O (1,890) 3,962

Increase in contract liabilities oooooo 120,864 56,682

Decrease in deferred income goooooo (2,071) (2,072)

Increase in long-term employee benefits oooooooao 7,084 21,933

(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits 00oooooomoao (11,501) 61,488

Cash generated from operations oooooo 88,938 215,343

Bank interest income oooooo 5,596 17,234

Income tax paid ooooog (101,163) (195,295)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities 0oooooomoao

gooooo (6,629) 37,282
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ooooooooooooooonn

googood

Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo Oo0oo0oo ooooo
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES OooOoocoooooo
Dividend income from financial assets at fair o0ooooooooon
value through profit or loss oooooooOoooao
Oo0oooo 25,929 14,590
Dividend income from equity investments oooooooooon
designated at fair value through 0oooooooooon
other comprehensive income ooooooooo 15,488 16,561
Dividend received from an associate goooooooo 22,837 57,719
Interest income from debt investment ooooooooo 5,950 5,950
Investment income received from financial assets OooOoocoocooono
at fair value through profit or loss oooooooooooo
oooo 518,502 5,756
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair 0o0ooooooooooo
value through profit or loss Jooooooooooo
oooo 2,501,219 926,454
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments 0o000ooOoOoooooo
designated at fair value through other oo0ooooooooo
comprehensive income ooooooo 145,199 =
Purchases of derivative instruments oooooao (38,706) (2,755)
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment OO0 0000 OO0 OO OO (175,236) (206,862)
Purchases of other intangible assets 0o0oooooo (18,624) (5,628)
Investments in associates oooooooo - (11,030)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through 0o0o0oooooooooo
profit or loss oopooooooooo (2,331,456) (1,729,014)
Purchases of equity investments designated at fair ooooooooooo
value through other comprehensive income oooooooooo
ooooooo - (20,701)
Disposal of debt investment oooooo 70,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, oooooooooooan
plant and equipment oooo 1,718 220
Increase in time deposits oooooo (71,513) (1,240,906)
Interest received from time deposits oooooooao 48,621 15,882
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities oooooomooo
oooooo 719,928 (2,173,764)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

googood

Year Ended 31 December 2021

ooooooooooooooonn

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ooooo gooooo
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES o0oooooooooo
Proceeds from issue of shares ooooooog - 3,538,287
Share issue expenses ooooono - (8,113)
Received compensation for the acquisition of oooooooooon
Topknow - 252,399
New bank loans and other borrowings 00DO00oD0DOoo0ooOooo 3,693,770 4,516,321
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings 0o0o0oooooooan (3,730,562) (5,197,421)
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings paid O00o000DoOoooooo (196,556) (250,767)
Contribution from the non-controlling shareholders O OO0 OO 0O 19 =
Dividends paid oooo (220,094) (224,286)
Principal and interest elements of lease payments oooooooooo (35,996) (32,957)
Counter guarantee deposit and other expenses ooooooooooao
related to corporate bond oooooooao (11,662) (87,000)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities 0ooooooomooo
oooooo (501,081) 2,506,463
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ooooooooo
EQUIVALENTS oooo 212,218 369,981
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 0ooooooooooao 1,330,245 1,076,537
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net oooooooo (62,830) (116,273)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS oooooooooo
AT END OF YEAR 1,479,633 1,330,245
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND 0000000000000
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances goooooao 27 1,479,633 1,304,996
Non-pledged time deposits with original oooooooooo
maturity of less than three months ooooooao 27 - 25,249
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED gooobDOoooooo
IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ooooo 27 1,479,633 1,330,245
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a joint stock company with limited liability established in the
People’s Republic of China (hereafter, the “PRC’’) on 21 April 1998. With the
approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company
completed its initial public offering and was listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002399.SZ) on 6 May 2010. On 8 July 2020, the
Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HKSE”) (stock code: 9989. HK). The registered address of the
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

CORPORATE INFORMATION (C%n jn, ed)

As of the date of this report, the Company had direct and indirect interests
in its subsidiaries, all of which are private limited liability companies or
limited partnerships, the particulars of which are set out below:

1.

Uooouyoo

oooCcoOoOoooOoooooooo
ooboocooooOoooooOoooaon
ooooooOoOOOO0oOooOoooao
oooooooooooo

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ooooooo goooooo goooo
oo oooOoocOoooo gooao goooo oooo
Direct Indirect
oo oo
Chengdu Sunrace Co., Ltd.*, ** PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 96% - Production and sale
ooooooooooo ooooooo 0 0 00 200,000,0000 of heparin sodium
19 November 2009 0oo0oooo
ooooooooooo
Shandong Ruisheng Biotechnology PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100% - Production and sale
Co., Ltd.*, ** ooooooo 00 030,000,0000 of heparin sodium
gooooooooooo 15 July 2010 0ooooooo
pooooooooo
Shenzhen Penghe Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB132,000,000 55% - Property management operation
Co., Ltd.*, ** ooooooo 00 0132,000,0000 0ooooo
gooooooooooo 13 June 2011
pooooooooo
Shenzhen Pingshan New District Hepalink PRC/Mainland China RMB120,000,000 100% - Biopharmaceutical production;
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*, ** ooooooo [0 0 0120,000,0000 biopharmaceutical services; and
0O000D0O0OOOoOoCoCooOoOoOoO 29 July 2013 biopharmaceutical research and
ooooooooooa development(‘R&D’)
goooooooOoocOoooo
goooOoO0OO0O@OooOd
Shenzhen Dekang Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% - Equity investment; investment
Development Co., Ltd.*, ** ooooooao 00 0 10,000,0000 management and consulting

gooooooooooono

23 March 2015
goddoOoooooo

oooooooooooOo
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

CORPORATE INFORMATION (C%n jn, ed) 1. 00o0Qyoo

Date and place
of incorporation/

registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ooooooo goooooo ooooo
oo oOooOoCOooOoo gooo ooooo oooo
Direct Indirect
0o 0o
Shenzhen Fanpu Biotechnology PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 66% - Biopharmaceutical technology
Co., Ltd.*, ** ooooooa 00 01,000,0000 development and consulting
gooooooOoOooooo 25 February 2015 goooooooooo
oooOoooooooo
Hepalinkl Hong Kong[Limited Hong Kong HK330,221,445 100% - Investment holding and trading
0oDOoooOoooO 00 330,221,4450 0 of biopharmaceutical products
23 November 2010 0000000000000
gooog
goooooo
Hepalink Europe AB Sweden SEK100,000 - 100% Investment holding
oo 100,0000 000 goooo
1 February 2010
goooooooo
Hepalink USA INC. USA 10,000 shares 100% - Investment holding
oo 10,0000 0O gooo
25 October 2013
oooooooooOoO
SPL Acquisition Corp. (“SPL”) USA 500,000 shares - 100% Production of active pharmaceutical
oo 500,0000 0 O ingredients and manufacture of
13 July 2006 pancreatin
goooocpooooo pooooooooo
Scientific Protein Laboratories LLC USA 1,000 shares - 100% Biopharmaceutical production
oo 1000000 and sales
22 January 2004 0oo0oooooo

0oOoooOoooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021

ooooooooooon

CORPORATE INFORMATION (C%n jn, ed)

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

1. 00o0Qyoo

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ooooooo goooooo ooooo
oo oOooOoCOooOoo gooo ooooo oooo
Direct Indirect
0o 0o
Mobren Logistics L.L.C. USA 1 share - 100% Biopharmaceutical production
oo 1000 and sales
22 December 2003 oooopooooo
goooo
goooooo
Mobren Transport Inc. USA 1,000 shares - 100% Biopharmaceutical production
oo 1,0000 0 O and sales
23 December 1997 oooOoooooo
goooo
goooooo
Novahealth Biosystems, LLC USA 1 share - 100% Biopharmaceutical R&D
oo 1000 oooooo
24 March 2016
oooOoooOoDooOO
Pharma Bridge International LLC USA 1 share - 100% Biopharmaceutical sales
oo 1000 oooooo
28 November 2012
goooo
ooooooo
SPL Distribution Holdings LLC USA 1 share - 100% Biopharmaceutical sales
0o 1000 gooooo
26 December 2017
ooooo
ooooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021

ooooooooooon

CORPORATE INFORMATION (C%n jn, ed)

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

1. 00o0Qyoo

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ooooooo goooooo ooooo
oo oOooOoCOooOoo gooo ooooo oooo
Direct Indirect
0o 0o
SPL Distribution LLC USA 1 share - 100% Biopharmaceutical sales
oo 1000 gooooo
26 December 2017
goooo
goooooo
Cytovance Biologics, Inc. USA 5,000 shares - 100% Biopharmaceutical contract
00 5,0000 0 O manufacturing and development
19 September 2005 goooooooooo
goooooOooOoo
Shenzhen Beidi Aoke Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% - Biopharmaceutical technology
Development Co., Ltd.*, ** ooooooa 00 010,000,0000 development
goooooOoOoooOooo 19 July 2002 gooooooo
oooOooOooocoo
Shenzhen Maple Sea Capital Equity PRC/Mainland China RMB250,000,000 99% - Equity investment; venture investment;
Investment Fund Partnership ooooooa 0 0 0250,000,0000 investment consulting and
(Limited Partnership)*, *** 10 April 2015 management
gpoooooOooOooOoo gooooooog oooooocoood
gooooocoooo goooooo
Shenzhen OncoVent Biomedical PRC/Mainland China USD9,259,300 54% - Biopharmaceutical R&D
Technology Co., Ltd.*, ** goooooo 9,259,3000 O oooooo
goooooooOooOoooo 26 July 2016
goooOooOooooo
OncoVent USA Inc. USA 20,000 shares - 54% Biopharmaceutical R&D
oo 20,0000 0 0 oooooo
11 August 2016

gooooooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

ooouyoo

CORPORATE INFORMATION (C%n jn, ed) 1.

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ooooooo goooooo ooooo
oo oOooOoCOooOoo gooo ooooo oooo
Direct Indirect
0o 0o
Shenzhen Ruidi Biomedical PRC/Mainland China USD14,117,647 51% - Biopharmaceutical production,
Co., Ltd.*, ** goooooo 14,117,6470 0 sales and R&D
gooooooOoOooooo 2 July 2018 oooooOoooooooo
gooooooog
Arimab USA Inc. USA 100 shares - 51% Biopharmaceutical R&D
oo 100000 gooooo
10 December 2018
gooooooooo
Hepalink Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 1 share - 100% Investment holding
Limited oo 1000 gooo
0000000000000 08 December 2019
oooOooOooocoo
Hepalink Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100% Investment holding
goooooooo oo 1000 goooo
08 December 2019
oooOooOooooo
Cytovance Cayman, Inc. Cayman Islands 1 share - 100% Investment holding
gooo 1000 gooo
12 August 2019
gooOoocOooooo
Techdow USA INC. USA 1,000 shares - 100% Investment holding and trading of
oo 1,0000 00 biopharmaceutical products
25 June 2021 goooooOooOooooo
00ooo0OoOoODo
Hepalink Capital I Inc. Cayman Islands USD50,000 - 100% Investment holding
oooo 50,0000 O gooo
02 September 2021
00o0o0O00OO
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (C%n |n, ed) 1. 00o0Qyoo

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ooooooo goooooo ooooo
oo oOooOoCOooOoo gooo ooooo oooo
Direct Indirect
0o 0o
Hepalink Healthcare Partners | L.P. Cayman Islands - - 100% Investment holdin
gooo gooo
08 September 2021
gooooooog
Hepalink Biotechnology | Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100% Investment holding
oo 1000 gooo
24 September 2021
ooooooooooo
Hepalink Biotechnology Il Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100% Investment holding
oo 1000 gooo
24 September 2021
ooooooooooo
Hepalink Capital Il Inc. Cayman Islands USD50,000 - 100% Investment holding
gooo 50,0000 O gooo
02 September 2021
gooooooooo
Hepalink Healthcare Partners Il L.P. Cayman Islands - - 100% Investment holding
gooo gooo
08 September 2021
goooooooo
Hepalink Biotechnology Ill Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100% Investment holding
oo 1000 gooo
24 September 2021
00o0o0OoODODO
Shenzhen Topknow Industrial PRC/Mainland China RMB230,000,000 100% - Biopharmaceutical R&D
Development Co., Ltd.*, ** ooooooo 0 [ 0230,000,0000 oooooo
gooOooOOoOoOboOoCboO 7 June 2000
ooopoooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

CORPORATE INFORMATION (C%n jn, ed)

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

1. 0OO

Percentage of equity

Rayyn

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ooooooo goooooo ooooo
oo oOooOoCOooOoo gooo ooooo oooo
Direct Indirect
0o 0o
Shenzhen Techdow Pharmaceutical Co., PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100% Biopharmaceutical R&D
Ltd.*, ** goooooo [0 00 150,000,0000 gooooo
goooOoooooo 29 June 2004
oooOoooooooo
Techdow (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK 233,960,000 - 100% Investment holding and trading
000000000 oOO 00 233,960,0000 [ of medical products
22 May 2013 goooooooooa
ooooooooooo
Techdow Europe AB Sweden SEK100,000 - 100% Trading of medical products
oo 100,0000 000 gooooo
12 June 2014
gooooooooo
Hepalink (Shanghai) Co,. Ltd.*, ** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100% Provision of services on pharmaceutical
g0oooooOooOoo goooooo 0 0 01,000,0007T related activities
5 March 2012 gooooooooo
goooooooo
Techdow Pharma Poland Sp.zo.o. Poland PLN7,359,000 - 100% Trading of medical products
oo 7,359,0000 0 O gooooo
12 October 2016
goooooOooOoo
Techdow Pharma Netherlands B.V. Netherlands EUR480 - 100% Trading of medical products
oo 4300 O oooooo
6 June 2017
poooooooo
TD Pharma B.V. Netherlands EUR480 - 100% Investment holding
oo 4300 O oooo
22 November 2016
goooo
ooooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
ooooooooooonn

Date and place

of incorporation/ Issued
registration and place ordinary share/ Percentage of equity
Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ooooooo goooooo ooooo
oo oOooOoCOooOoo gooo ooooo oooo
Direct Indirect
0o 0o
Techdow Pharma England Limited England 8d925A0F670153C141583D086A%D3025F8 1 Tf0.028 Tc 0 Tw -4.903 -1.75629Td d (0e and ha
oog
6 December 2016
gooooooooo
@ 0000000000000 O00O0OO

00000000000 O000O0
*x 00000000000 O00000

*>** [JO00000O0O0O0O0O0O0O0O00O0

oooo0O0oO00oO0O0OOooOO0o0o00aon
OoooO0O0o0O00O0O0O0O000000
oooooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), (which include all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income, derivative financial instruments and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
goooooooboOooomooooooaa

o330 Mmooooooooboyo@oooooooon
040000000000000160000

Amendment to IFRS 16

ooooOO0OO0OCOO0ObO01eC O OO

22 00000000000

ooooOooOoOooooocooooao
odoooooooOoOoOoOOoood

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
oooooooooon

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond

30 June 2021 (early adopted)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(@)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is
a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the
new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the change. In
addition, the amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued.
Any gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary relief
to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an
entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably expects
the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable within the
next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.

oooooooooooooooooononnonn
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (C%n jn, ed)

(@)

(Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
denominated in United States dollars based on the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) as at 31 December 2021. For the LIBOR-based
borrowings since the interest rates of these instruments were not
replaced by RFRs during the year, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group. If the
interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future
period, the Group will apply the above-mentioned practical expedient
upon the modification of these instruments provided that the
“economically equivalent™ criterion is met.

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the availability of
the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which any reduction
in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January 2021.
However, the Group has not received covid-19-related rent concessions
and plans to apply the practical expedient when it becomes applicable
within the allowed period of application.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in the financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3
o0000oO0oO0OCOoOo30000
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

00000000 0Oooi1o0 0000000 OoOoD2800 00
IFRS 17

000000000170

Amendments to IFRS 17

ooooooOOoOoi170000

Amendment to IFRS 17

0000000001700 00

Amendments to IAS 1

d00oo0oo0ooCO0i10000

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

0000000001000 0000000000000
020000

Amendments to IAS 8

oo00oDo0ooOooCOosoOOn

Amendments to IAS 12

000000000 120000
Amendments to IAS 16
000000000 1e000O0O
Amendments to IAS 37
O0o0o0ooOoOoo37rooOonO

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

oooooooooooooooooooooonnnn

23 000000000000
ooooon

oooooooooooOoOooooa
obooOooooOO0ooooOO0OOoOooooon
ooooooo

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?*

ooooooonnot

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

ooooooooooooooooononnnonsd

Insurance Contracts?

0momoimo?

Insurance Contracts® 4

0ooomnze4

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

oooooooooooooogizooononoonnonnon
o90o—oooo®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

ooooooooooon?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

oooooo?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

oooooooe

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

oooooooooooooooooonn?

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use*

ooooooooooooooooooono*

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract*

oooo—ooooooo+t

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41!

oooDoOoOOoOO0oO0O0Doi10c@mooooooooboooedn

goooOO0o0o0oO00ooD0le0000oobDooDODOOOOOO
0410000t

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 2 000000000000 O0OO0OO0O0OO0
oood

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 2 000000000000 O0OO0OO0O0OO0
oood

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption S Oo00o0DO00O0oOOooOOooO0

b As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was 3 00000000 0o0OO0OO0OoooooO

amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39
rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable to

the Group is described below.

00000170000000000000
goobooooOOoOOoOOOO0OO0OO0ODOOO0
00000004000000000000
000000000000 00039%000
000000000 O0s0O0O00n0Dn

B 00000000000 O0O0O0OOO0OO0O0
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (C»n jn, ed)

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements with
a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at
the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (C»n jn, ed)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between the
requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed
by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a
liability is subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (C»n jn, ed)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities to
disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement
2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting estimates are
defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 0000000000004
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING Oo0oooowoo
STANDARDS (C»n jn, ed)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception J00o0O0oO0ol000000000
so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and goo0DoOoOoDoDOoooOoOoooooan

deductible temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning ooooooooooooooooon
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset 0o0ooDoooOooooooooon
and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from these o0oooDoooooooooooan
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods dodoo0o0o0o0DoDOoDoDoooooon
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the 00000000000 00000a0n
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised 0000000000000 O0oooan
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other 000D0000O00oo0O0o0Ooooan
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the 0000000 000o0oooooan
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases Do0oooooooooooooon
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted. oo0oo0oooooDooooOoooan

oooobOocooOOoOooOoooooo
ooooOoooooooocooooan

ooooooo

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not recognise oooDooopoDoOoooDooooooaon
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences for oooooOoDoODOoOOoOoOoooooan
transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of these amendments, oo0ooooooooooonoooan
the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for 00o0Doo00ooDoDoDooOonooooan
deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use 0000000000000 O00o0a0
assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially 00000000 0o0o0o0o0ooooan
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of o0oo0o0o0ooooooooood
retained profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative period 000000 O0o0o0ooO0oO0o0oooan
presented. oooooooooo

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an o00ooo0oOoi1e00000OoOoOO
item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items 0000000 o0oooooooooog
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary gooooooooooooooOo
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. goooooOooooooooon
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and oooooooooooooooag
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for 0oooDooooooooooon

ooOoooOoooOocoOooOoooan
goOooooOooooOooooDon
ooooOoOooo0oooOooooon
ooooOoooooooooooon
ooo0DooooOooooogoooo
goooooooOocOoOoooooon
oooooooooooooOooo

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (C»n {n, ed)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as follows:

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes
when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

. IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the lessor
relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of

generally not necessary not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and
over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 000000000V O0O
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Investments in associates ((»n |n, ed) Oo0oo00oooooog
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
income of associates is included in the consolidated statement of profit or do0o0oOooooooooooooao
loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In goooooooooooooooao
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of doodooDoooDooDoooooon
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when oooOooooooooOOOoooOOan
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the 0000000000 00o00oooan
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment 0000000o00oO0O000oOooOan
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates 0000000 0000o0O0oooan
is included as part of the Group’s investments in associates. ooooao
Upon loss of significant influence over the associates, the Group measures 000oo0o0oooOoOoDooooooan
and recognises any retained investments at their fair values. Any difference 0Oo0o0o0DOoDoDOoooooOooOoO
between the carrying amounts of the associate upon loss of significant 000000000 ooooooog
influence and the fair values of the retained investment and proceeds from 0dd00o0oOooo0ooooooooan
disposal is recognised in profit or loss. oo0odoooooooo
When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is ooo0oDoooooDooooooon
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale O0oooooooooooasoOon
and Discontinued Operation. oooooooooooooooonoon
Business combinations and goodwill ooooOooo
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, oooQCooooooOoODOoOoOoOO
except for business combination under common control. The consideration oooCcooooooOoOoooooo
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of oooCooOOoOooOoOoODoDoOOoDOoOoOoOg
the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities ooooooOoooooooooon
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity ooo0oooooooooooooan
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For ooooDooooooooooooan
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the 00o0Doo0ooDooooDonooooan
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests 00o0o0oDooo0oDooonooooan
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event 00o0Doo0o0ooDooooDoooooan
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s 000D0000o0OO0O0D0DO00OOoOooan
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are 0000000 0000o0O0oooan
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 000D0000DOoOOo0O0D0OOoO0OOoOooan
Oo00oO0oO0ooOoOooOoOooOoOoon
oooooooOooOoooooo
The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that oooCooOooooOooODODOOOOO
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. gooooODoOOoOOoOOoOOoOoooooao

oooooooo
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Business combinations and goodwill (C»n {n, ed)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and

liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an
asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

An acquisition of a business which is a business combination under common
control is accounted for in a manner similar to a uniting of interests whereby
the assets and liabilities acquired are accounted for at carryover predecessor
values to the other party in the business combination within all periods
presented as if the operations of the Group and the business acquired had
always been combined. The difference between the consideration paid by the
Group and the net assets or liabilities of the business acquired is adjusted
against equity. Contingent consideration from the business combination
under common control is recognised in equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 00000000000

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Business combinations and goodwill (C»n {n, ed) Oo0oooooo

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated oo0oCooOooOoooooooooog
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more o0ooDoOoOoooooOoOoooooaon
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying oooooDoOooooooooooaon
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of o0oDooooOooooooooon
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill o0oooDoooooooooooan
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to 00o0Do0oDoDoDoooDooooooan
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, 0000000000000 O00o0a0
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to 000000000 00000000
those units or groups of units. 0000000 0000o0O0oooan

oo0ooooooo

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the oodo0ooooooooooooan
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill 00000 o0ooDooooooooo
relates. The recoverable amount of the CGUs has been determined based on 0000000 oooooooooo
the higher of the value in use (“VIU”) and fair value less costs of disposal goooOooOooooooooooo
(“FVLCD”). In measuring VIU, the Group bases cash flow projections on the oooDoOoOoDooOoboOooooooan
most recent financial budgets/forecasts covering a period of five years, or a oo00oooOOooooDoooooooo
period longer than five years if it is justifiable, which takes into account the oooooDooooDOooooooon
length of the post projection period for the cash flow into perpetuity, and oooooooooDoooooooan
this shall be achieved by identifying a “steady state” set of assumptions for 00o0Doo0ooo0oDooOoooooan
the cash flows and applying a terminal value multiple to those cash flows. Oo0o0000O0OoO0OO0O0OoOooOO00Od
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of 00000000000 O0O00oo0oan
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is 0D00ooooooooooooooaon
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a oooddooooooooooood
subsequent period. oo0ooooooooooooon
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of oo0oDo0o0oDoDooooooooooOn
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed 00000 ooo0oooooooo
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the ooo0oooOoOoOoDOoOooooooo
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the o0ooODoOoOoDoDoOoooDoOoooooan
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on ooooooooooooooooon
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the o0oooDoooooooooooan
cash-generating unit retained. oono
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 000000000 O0O

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Fair value measurement gooooao

The Group measures its equity investments designated at fair value through oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
other comprehensive income, derivative financial instruments and financial ooooOooOoOooooooooon
assets at fair value through profit or loss at the end of each reporting period. doodooDoooDooDooooooon
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to oooooOoDoODOoOOoOoOoooooan
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at oo0o0ooDoooooooooooan
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 00o0Doo00ooDoDoDooOonooooan
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset 00000000 ooooOoooon
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible oo0o0o0oooooOoooOoooad
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the oo0oo0o0o0ooooooooood
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or oo0o0oooDoooooooOoooan
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 00o0oooooooooooooan

oooO0ooOoboobOOoOooooOoooo
ooooooooo

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a ooooOooOoOooooooooon
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset ooooooooooooooooon
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that o0oooDoooooooooooan
would use the asset in its highest and best use. o0ooooooooooooooan
ooooo

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the 0000000000000 O0oooan
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair oo0oOooOoOooOoOOOOOOOOO
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the 0000000 000o0oooooan
use of unobservable inputs. oo0oooooooooooo
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Fair value measurement (C»n {n, ed)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the

financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each of reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing

for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax
assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal (““FVLCD”), and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 000000000 O0O
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Impairment of non-financial assets (»n n, ed) Oo0oooooog
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated 00oOoDOOoDOOoOooOooOooooan
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax do0o0oooooooooooooon
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of oooooDoOoooooOoooooan
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to ooo0ooooDooooDooooooan
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those 000Doo00ooDooooDoonoooan
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 00o0o0oooooooooog
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether 0000000 0000o0O0oooan
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no 0000000000000 OOa0
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the ooooooooooOooooooo
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of 00o0DoooDoooooOooOoooan
an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in od0oo0ooooooOoooooan
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but 0000000 ooOoOooooOOoOoo
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss 000000000 OoooOoooo
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment d0ood0ooODOooOooooooooo
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it ooooooooooog
arises.
Related parties Oo0dno
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: O0oo00ooOo0oOO0oooOO0oooOoo
ooooo

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and () OODODODODODOOODOODOOOO

that person ooooooo

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (1) ddoooooooooan

oooo
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (ii) oooooooooooo
O
(iif)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or (i) OODODoCOOOCoOOOoOoO
of a parent of the Group; oopooooo

or |

¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK Ay MACE BICAL Gy @ +C@., LED. 1j00o0oooot 10 ANN Aln E4@s B2021



Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Related parties (Cvn |n, ed)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(b)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personal services to the Group or to
the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:
Land Not depreciated
Buildings 2.375%-4.75%

9.5%-19%
9.5%-19%
9.5%-19%
2.326%-33.3%

Machine equipment
Motor vehicles

Other equipment
Leasehold improvements
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Con jn, ed)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial

recognition at cost. The cost of other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
other intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Other
intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the other intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for other intangible assets with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such other
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of other intangible assets
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 000000000 O0O

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill) Do0ooooooooomoo

(Con jn, ed)

Pa en .4 and licenceq Oo0oooon

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any impairment losses oooooOoOooooooOoOoOoOO

and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives ooooooolo0200000000O

of 10 to 20 years. ooooooooo

Com., g .nfflae oooon

Acquired computer software is stated at historical cost less amortisation. 000o0DoDoooooooooooan

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred 00oo0oDooooDooonooooan

to acquire and bring to use the specific software, and is amortised on a 000o0DoDoooooooooooan

straight-line basis over the useful life of 3 to 10 years. oooopoos3n1o0oooooonog
ooooo

T_adema kg oo

Trademarks are initially recognised and measured at costs incurred to ooooooOoooocoooOOoOoOoO

register. The costs are amortised on the straight-line basis over their ooo00oooooooooooog

estimated useful lives of 10 years. 0oo0oogo

P% . _ie g,’ gchm ke giey oooo
goodbooooooooooooo
goobooOoooooooooooon
go0ooo0oOobOOobbOooooobooon
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 00000000000
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Other intangible assets (other than goodwill) O00o0Do0Ooooooomoo
(Con jn, ed)
C..geme.. ela ppnghi 4 oooo
Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
fair value at the acquisition date. The contractual customer relationships have oooCocooooooooooooo
a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. oooCcooooooooooooo
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected 0o0o0o0ooDoDoooooooooan
life of 15 years for the customer relationships. 1500000000
The estimated useful life of other intangible assets is determined by OoooO0O0oO0O0O0OO0OO0O0O0O0O00O0
considering the period of the economic benefits to the Group or the periods ooooOoooooooocooooan
of validity of intangible assets protected by the relevant laws, as well as by ooboocoooocooocoooooaon
referring to the industry practice. oooao
Reqea ch and de el _men (g o oooonon
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred. ooooooooooooocOooo
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and ooooOooooooooooooan
deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of ooooooOoOOOoO0oOoooooan
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its ooocoooooooooooooan
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset oooocoooooooooOoooan
will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to 000000000 oooooooog
complete the project and the Group’s ability to measure reliably the oooooOOoOOoOoOoOoOoOoOooooO
expenditure during the development. Product development expenditure oooooOoOooooooOoOoOoOO
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred. oooocooooooooooooo
0000000 00oDO0oOooo
Leases 0o
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, ooboboooooooooooooan
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to ooooooooooOooooood
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for ooooo0oO0oO0ooooooOoOoO0O0oo
consideration. ooooooooOooooOooooon
G%,  agalegyee oooonoon
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all ooooOoooooooocooooan
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group ooooooooooooooood
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets oooocoocooooooooooan
representing the right to use the underlying assets. ooooOoooooooOoooooan
oooooo
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Leases (C»n jn, ed)
G%, . aga Ie”ee (Cen jn, ed)

(a) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of a
right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Properties 1to 17 years
Equipment 1 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 1 to 4 years
Leasehold land 30 to 50 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIF

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Leases (C»n jn, ed)
G%, . aga Ie_,._,ee (Cen jn

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to
be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2021
oooooooooooo
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.ed)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 00 000000OLOO
POLICIES (C%n n, ed)
Leases (C%n jn, ed) ooooo
G%. . agalegy (Cen jn, ed) ooooooodijon
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Financial assets
Ini jal _ecsgni f»n and meay, emen

24 00 000000OLOO

ooogno
ooooonon

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured 0000000000000 O0oooan
at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair 0000000000 O0000Oo0oan
value through profit or loss. oooooooooooooOoOoOooo
Ooooocooooo
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the oooCcoOooOoooooooooo
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s 00d00o0DoOOooo0oOoooooooan
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables oooCooOoOOoooOoOoODoOOoOoOoOoO
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the ooooOooOoOooooooooon
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a o0o0oDoDoooooooooooan

significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial ooo0ooooooooOoooooan
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value ooooooDooooDooooooon
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not 000000 DO0oo0OooooDoooon
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has 00o0Do0o0Dooo0oDooOoooooan
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price ooooo0oooooooOoOoOo0og
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for 00000000OD0O0O0O0O0O015000
“Revenue recognition” below. 00000000 oOO0DOOO0O00O0O
ooooo
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost ooo
ooo
ooo
ooo
0O mo

oooooocooooocooa
oooooocooooocooa
oooooocoooooooa
ooomoooobooooo
oooooocoooooooan
oooocoooocoooboooooon
ooooOoOooooooOoooooan
ooooooooooboboooooOo

or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (““SPPI”’) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it 0000000000000 O0oooan
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business oo0oOooOoOooOoOOOOOOOOO
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual 0000000 000o0oooooan
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and ooooooopoooooooooOo
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the oooCcooooooooDoOoODOOoO
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, oo0oooOoOooooooooooo
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other 00000 0oDOooDooOoooooan
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective of oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets goooOooOooooooooooo
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified oooODoOoOoDoDoOoobDoooooan
and measured at fair value through profit or loss. o0o0Doo0ooDoOoooDooooooan
goodbooooooooooooo
goooo
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Financial assets (C»n {n, ed)
Ini jal _ecsgni f»n and meay. emen (Cen jn, ed)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

S. b,e .en meay, _emen _

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial agq€.ga ant . g_,ed g J(deb dng

men .g)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial agq4€.g _de,:gna gd.? tf,.al,, al.e hw_gh% pe.
cem__ehengi e inceme (e ,Iy in ey men )

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity
investments as equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement
of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.

24 00 000000OLOO

uoooooo
oooooooooo

000000o0ODODOOoOoO0O0Oooooo
oooooooooooOoooooon
oooDo0O0oDoCcDOOoOoOooDOOoOoOoo
oo0o0O0oo0oOo

oooo
00000000000 000000

oooooooonnnoon
ooon
00000000000000000
00000000000000000
000000000 00000000
00o0O0oO0oOoO0o

oooooooooooon
oooooooooooon
ooooon
000000000000 000000
0000032000000000000
00000000000000000
000000000000O00000
000000000000O00000
0000000000 0000000
oo

gooooOoooooooooooon
oo0ooooOobOOoOooooOoooao
0gooo0oooooooooboooo
oo0oooooOoooOoooooan
goooooOoOoOoocooOooooaon
oobooOoooooooooooaon
oooobOocooooobooooao
gOoooooOoOoOobOOoOoooaon
oobooOoooooooooooan
oooooooooooo

OO0Oo0Oo0Ooooood

¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK Ay MACE BICAL Gy @ +C@., LED. 1j00o0oooot

ANN ALy E.#y 2021 [



R +:

Notes to Financial Statements
Oo0000od

31 December 2021
ooooooooooonn

¢ HEN HEN HEA&LINK #dAy MACE BICAL Gy @ 4C@., lED. 100 0000000000000 ANN ALy E-@s 882021 0000




137

Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000000 O
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Derecognition of financial assets Ooooooon
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a 0000000 0oDOo0oOooooooO
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from ooooOooOoOooooooooon
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when: joooOooooooooooooo

oooooooooomm

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or . goooooooOoooooo
ooo
. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the . oo0o00ooooooooooog
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in 0000000000000 0ao0
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ jooDoooooooooooo
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all 0000000000 @EOOoOO
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither jooDoooooooooooo
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the OOooooooooooooo
asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 00o00Cc0oooooooooo
oooooo
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset o0oooDoooooooooooan
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what oooooooooooonooooan
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When d0o00Do0o0oOooooooooooon
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 0oo0o0o0oDooo0oDooOoooooan
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to 00000000000 O0O00oo0oan
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In o0oo0o0o0ooooooooood
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred 0000000000000 O0O00a0
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the 00o0oo0ooooooooOoooan
rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 0o0o0o0ooooooooooooan
oooooo
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of do0o0oOooooooooooooao
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could dooooooooooooooo

be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 00000000000
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Impairment of financial assets oooooad
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”’) for all goooooOoOoooooooooo
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based ooooOooOoOooooooooon
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with o0oo0oooOoOoooomooon
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, 00oooooooooooooan
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The o0oooDoooooooooooan
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or 00o0Doo0ooDooooDoOooooan
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 00o0oo0o0ooDooooonooooan
00000000000 oOO0ooooo
0O0000000O0oDOoooooo
Gene_ al a_, . »ach oooo
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has 00o0Doo00ooDooOooDooonoooan
not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible ooooooooooooooood
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for 1200 0000000000000
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 000000001200 000000
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the 0ooooDoDooooooooon
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a oooCcooooooOooooooo
lifetime ECL). O00CoO0o0oOooOoO0oooOoOooooo
O0o0ooooOooOooOooOoOoo
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a o0ooDoOoOoooooOoOoooooaon
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When oooooOoDoOOoOOoOoOoooooan
making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring ooooooDoDooDoooooooan
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default o0oooDoooooooooooan
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and 000Doo0o0ooDoOoOooDoooOooon
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information. 000000000 0D0O00O0O00a0n
00oOooo
The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments goodo0oO0ooOoeodonoonoon
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider ooooooooooooooooo
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information oo0oooOoOooooooooooo
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual oooCcoOooOoooooooooo
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable oooCooOooOooOoODoOoOOoDOoOooog
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. o0ooODoOoOoDooOooobDoooooan
ooooo
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 000000000 O0O

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Impairment of financial assets (C»n n, ed) ooooooooo

Gene. al a. . wach (Cen |n, ed) Oooooonoo

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the 000D0000oO00oO0O0O0OoOooOoan

general approach and they are classified within the following stages for ooooo0O0oooooooOoOoOoOo0oo

measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified 000D000D0DO00oO0oO0o0Ooooan

approach as detailed below. oooooooooo

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased 00000 OoO0ooOoOoooooooo
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss Oooooooooooo
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs 0012000000000

oooooooan

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased 00000 0odoooooooooao
significantly since initial recognition but that are not goooooooooon
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is goooooooooon
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs DoooOoooooooon

ooooo

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but 00000 0Dooooooooooao
that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and for ooocoooooooon
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 0o0Do0oO0OoDoooooo
lifetime ECLs ooooOoooooooo

ooooooo

Sim_lified a, , #ach oooo

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant 0000o0Doooo0oOoooooooan

financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of 0O00o0DOoDoDOoooDooOooOoOo

not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group oooOooOoOooOoOooOOoOoOoOooog
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified oooODooOoDoDoOooDoDobooooan
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead ooooooooOoooooooon
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. doo0oDoooooooooooon

The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical 00o0Doo00ooDooooOonooooan

credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 00o0DoDoooooDooooooon

debtors and the economic environment. 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
ooooooo
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Financial liabilities (Con {n, ed)
S. b,e . en meay, _emen '_(C'cn in. ed)

(i) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.

De_ ecvgni f»n«f financial liabili jey

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Off,e [ng=f financial ing . men .z

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Derivative financial instruments
Ini jal .ecegni fon and‘,, b,e .en meay, _emen

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as warrants. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value

is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 0000000000 O
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Provisions 0o
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow oooooOoOoooooooooon
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable ooo0DooooDOoooOooooooan
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. oooooooooooo
When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a 00o0Doo0ooDooooOonooooan
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in ooooooooooooooood
the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is 000o0ooooooooooo

included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax aoo

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items oooQooOooooooODoDoOoOoOoO

recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in ooooOooOoOooooooooon

other comprehensive income or directly in equity. oooooDoOooooooooooaon

oo

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be d0o00Do0o0oOooooooooooon

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and 00o0Doo0ooDooooDooooooan

tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each 000000000000 0o0o0o0oan

reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices oo0ooooooooooooood

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. oooooooooo

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary 000oo0o0ooDoOoooooocooan

differences at the end of each of the reporting period between the tax bases ooooooOoooocooooOooo

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo

purposes. ooo

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, do0o0oooooooooooooon

except: gboooooboobo

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of . goDooDoDooooooooo
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business gooDoooooooooooon
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 000000o0oooooooo
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and JO000O0000o00Oooo0O0o0O

ooooooo

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments . jooDoooooooooooo
in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the 00o00Cc0oooooooooo
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 00o00o0oooooooooo
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. ooooooog
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 000000000V O0O

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Income tax (% n |n, ed) 000000

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, oooCooOooooooOOoOooooo

and the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. ooooOooOoOooooooooon

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that oooDooooDoOooooooooaon

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary oooDooooooooOoooooan

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax o0oDoooooooooooooan

losses can be utilised, except: 00o0Doo00ooooDoDooOooOoooan

O0oo0ooOooOooo

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary . JO000O0000o00Oooo0O0o0O
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a Jo00D0O0000O0o0OOoooooO
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the Ooooooooooooooo
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or jooDoooooooooooo
loss; and O0oo0oooooooooo

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with . 00o00o0oooooooooo
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are only 000o0o0oooooooooo
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary gopooooooooooooo
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will Joddooooooooooo
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. goooooooooooooo

ooooooooooo

goooOoooooooooooon
goooOoOoOoooOoOoooooon
goooO0oooOoOoDooOooDOoon
0oo0oo0oooooooOoOOO00
ob0oooo0ooOoooOoooooan
ooooOoooooOoooooooan
ooooooocooooooooo

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

OO0Oo0o0oooao

part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

ooooOoooooooooooan
goOooooOooooOocoooon
ooooODoooooooooooan
oooooooooooo

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

O 0o oo

substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Revenue recognition (C»n jn, ed)

Re en.efemcvn acgli pc..gpme 4 (Cen jn, ed)
When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products.

Some contracts for the sale of products provide customers with rights
of return. The rights of return give rise to variable consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 000000000V O0O
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Revenue recognition (C»n jn, ed) 000 oooo
O he..inceme 0oooo
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest ooooo0oooooooOoOoOo0og
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash oo0o0o0ooooooooooood
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, oo00D0ooooo0oooDooooOooo
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. oooooOoOoooocoooOoOoOoO

gooo

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits 000000000000 ooooog
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the ooooOooOoOooooooooon
dividend can be measured reliably. ooo
Contract assets oooo
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or 0000000000000 O0oooan
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring 000D0000O0OO00O0O00OOo0o0oan
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or 0000000 00O0o0oOooooan
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned oooCcooooooooooooo
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment 0000000000 D0OO0OO0OO00OoOon
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting policies for 0d0oo0ooooDooOoooooan
impairment of financial assets. oooooo
Contract liabilities oo0do
A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is o0oooDoooooooooooan
due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the 00o0o0oDooo00ooDooDoooooo
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when 00o0Doo0ooooDooonooonoan
the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related Oooooooooooooooog
goods or services to the customer). 0o0o0ooooooo
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 00000000000
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Employee Benefits oooo
Shal‘e-ba,edAa’ men .g oooooonon
The Company operates a share award scheme for the purpose of providing 000D0000o0OO0O0D0DO00OOoOooan
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success 0000000 0000o0O0oooan
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group 0000000000000 o0OoOooo
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby 0o00oDoooooDooooooon
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments 0o0oooDoDOooDOoOoOooOoooan
(“equity-settled transactions”). oo0D0oooo00o0omd

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by o000oD00o0oooooOoOoOoOoOoo
reference to the fair value at the date on which they are granted. The fair o0ooODoOoOoDoDoOoooDoOoooooan
value is computed based on their most recent post-money valuations. The o0o0oDoooooooooooon
cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense, o0oooDoooooooooooan
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which o0ooooooooooooooan
the performance and service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense 00o0Doo0o0ooDooDoDoonooooan
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has 0000000000 o0000oooan
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments 0000000 0000o0O0oooan
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the consolidated statement ooooooooooooooood
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative oooo0opooooooooooog
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period. ooooooo

Cagh-4e  [ed.gycheme oooooo

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at the best estimate ooooooooooooooooan
of the settlement amounts at the settlement date, taking into account the 00000000000 O0O0oOoooon
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted (note 35). 000000000000 03850000
The best estimate of the settlement amounts is expensed over the period oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability. The 0Oo0o00o0oOooooooooooo
liability should be spread on a straight-line basis over the full vesting period. o0ooODoOoOoDooOooobDoooooan
The cumulative expense recognised for cash-settled transactions at the end oooooDoOooooOooooooan
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which o0oooDoooooooooooan
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number o0oooDoooooooooooan
of awards that will ultimately vest. The liability is measured at the end of 00o0o0ooooooooooooOo
each reporting period up to and including the settlement date, with changes Jooo00oooonoooooooooo
in the best estimate of the settlement amounts at the settlement date oo00Do0o0oooooooOooog

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Employee Benefits ((%n jn, ed)
Pengin n.gcheme

The Group’s subsidiaries which operates in Hong Kong operate a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined contribution
plans organised by the relevant governmental authorities in various areas
other than Mainland China. The Group’s liability in respect of these plans is
limited to the contributions payable at the end of each reporting period.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

H%, 4ing f. nd Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to a defined contribution housing
fund plan operated by the local municipal government. Contributions to this
plan by the Group are expensed as incurred.

Defined benefi _e [ emen _ lan%bliga fsng

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of the future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their services in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present value,
and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The calculation is performed
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited
to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Employee Benefits ((%n jn, ed)
Defined benefi _e [ emen _ lan%bliga fong (Cen [n, ed)

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset) are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by function as
part of “cost of sales™, “selling and distribution expenses™ or “administrative
expenses”. Current service cost is measured as the increase in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from the employee service in
the current period. When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan
is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to the past service
provided by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss at the earlier of when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination
benefits are recognised. Net interest expense/(income) for the period is
determined by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability/asset).

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 000000000V O0O
POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)
Dividends 00
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in oooDoOoDOOoO0oDoOoOoOooOoooan
note 12 to the financial statements. 00120000
Foreign currencies 00
The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s 00DoOo0o0ooDoDOooooDoooaon
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional oo0o00o0o0ooooooooood
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are oo0oo0ooooooooooood
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions 000D0000O0o0oooO0oo0Ooooan
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their ooooooooooooooooan
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the oooooooooDoooooooan
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 00000000000 O0O0O00ooOoon
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling 00oooooooooooooon

at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign gooDooooooooooao
goboobOoooooobogo
goOoboOobOOooOOoboooo
Ooo0o0bOooOOooooooDoo
go0o0bODO0DOO0oDOOoObOooOoo
goooOD0oDoDOooOOobOOoooao
0o0oo0ooooOoooooo
gobooboobooobobo
oboooboooobooo

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other

O0O000oo0ooogooao
O0O0O0O00oo0oao
O0O0Oo0ooooao

comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, 0o0oooooooooooaog
O00ooO0oooO0ooooOoO
oo00oooUooooooooo
O000oO0oooO0oOoooOoO
000000 D0O0O0OD0o0oDoOO
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the oooooooooooooog
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the ooooooooooooooag
advance consideration. ooooo

expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of initial
transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the

I Y ) R

non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance

O0o0oooaogoaO
O0Oo0ooooao
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 000000000 O0O

POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Foreign currencies (C»n jn, ed) 00700

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates are oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the go0oDooDoDooboDoooooooo
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation do0o0oooooooooooooon
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the ooo0oooooOoooDooooooan
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into o0oooDoooooooooooan
RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates 0oo0ooogno

of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive ooooo0O0oooooooOoOoOoOo0oo
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of 000D0000OoOo0O0oOooOoooan
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating 0o0o0o000ooooooooooog
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or oo0ooooooooooog

loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on ooooOooOoOooooooooon
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and doodooooooDOoooooooan
translated at the closing rate. ooooogo

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows 00o0Doo0o0ooDooooonooooan
of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling 0000000 o0ooOooooooon
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas 0000000000 o0O0o0o0ooan
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the 0000000 0000o0O0oooan

weighted average exchange rates for the year. oooo
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has

made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Re en.efwm cwn ac.g®ipc.geme.

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with
customers:

(a) Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance
obligations
The Group has different contractual arrangements with different
customers. In determining the timing of satisfaction of performance
obligations, management reviews the contract terms of each individual
contract.

For certain types of revenue under CDMO services, the directors of the
Company have recognised revenue upon the present right to payment
for the CDMO services and the point in time when a customer obtains
control of the goods or services. For revenue under the FFS model, the
directors of the Company have determined that performance
obligations are satisfied over time. Significant judgement is required in
determining whether the terms of the Group’s contracts with
customers in relation to certain types of revenue under the FFS model
create an enforceable right to payment for the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (C»n {n, ed)

Judgements (% n |n, ed)
Re en.ef%m cwn aC-g i b C.-gpme.q (Cen jn, ed)

(b) Determining the method for measuring progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance obligations

Depending on which better depicts the transfer of value to the
customer, the directors of the Company make judgement to measure
the progress of the projects using the input method. Input methods
recognise revenue based on an entity’s efforts or inputs towards
satisfying a performance obligation relative to the total expected
efforts or inputs to satisfy the performance obligation. If an entity does
not have a reasonable basis to measure its progress, the Group
recognises revenue up to the amount of the costs incurred, until
progress can be reasonably measured.

B..4ineqq nm del

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the financial assets. In determining the
business model, the Group considers how the performance of the business
model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated
and reported to the Group’s key management personnel, the risks that affect
the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within)
and, in particular, the way those risks are managed and how managers of
the business are compensated. In determining whether cash flows are going
to be realised by collecting the financial assets’ contractual cash flows, it is
necessary for the Group to consider the reason, timing, frequency, and value
of sales prior to maturity date.

Cha ac g iy [pc,r'-fc'-n Lac cagh g

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics, and judgement is
required to determine whether they are “solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding”. The Group needs to
determine whether the resulting cash flows from those of an instrument with
modified time value of money element are significantly different from an
instrument that has an unmodified time value of money element when
assessing modification to time value of money element, and the Group needs
to determine whether the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant
when assessing a financial asset with a prepayment feature.

3.

Uooooboouon

uooyoo
ooooooooo

() 0O000000000
oooooooo
gooooooooooooon
gooooooooooooon
gooooooooooooon
Jooodoooooooooon
JoooOoooooooooon
Joooobooooooooono
Jo0ooOdooobooooooon
gooo0ooobooooooaon
Ooo0oo0ooooobooooon
oooad

oonoo

o0ooDoOoooooDooOoooOoooaon
o0ooODoOOoooDoOoobooooDooon
o0ooDoOooDoDOooOoOooooooaon
ooooooOoooooOoOooooon
ooooOO0OO0OO0OOoOoCocoOOO0OO0OO0O0O
ofoooo0OO0ooooOoooOOOoOooao
ooooOoOOOD0OOOOOOO0OmO
oboboooOOoOooocoOooOooooao
odoboocoooooocooooooaon
ooooOooooooooooooan
oooooDoooooooooooan
oooooocooooooooo

ooooooon

ooboocobooooocoooOoooan
ooboocoooOocooobooooooan
oboboooOooooOoooooOoon
oooooooooooooooon
ooo0oOooooooooooooan
ooo0oOoOooo0oo0oooOoooooan
o0ooDoOoooooDooOoooOoooaon
o0oo0DoOOoooDOobOoOoooOoooaon
oooooooooooooooo

¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK Ay MACE BICAL Gy @ +C@., LED. 1000000t

ANN ALy E.#y 2021 [



Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (C»n {n, ed)

Judgements (% n |n, ed)

De g mining-4ignifican (infl, ence% e_.en | jeq in®hich

peGw,  Mmidgleqqy han 20% e ., i}, ingeq,

Despite the fact that the Group’s direct or indirect equity interest in Quest
PharmaTech Inc. (hereafter, the “Quest”) was 14.86% which was lower
than 20%, the Group had significant influence with a board representative
assigned and had the right to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the Quest PharmaTech Inc.

De g mining m 4ignifican infl, ence% e_.en | [eqin
B hich he G%, . h'-ld_, nm_e han20% e . i’, ingey,

Despite the fact that the Group’s direct or indirect equity interests in TPG
Biotechnology Partners V, L.P, TPG Biotechnology Partners IV, L.P, ORI
Healthcare Fund, L.P. and ORI Healthcare Fund IlI, L.P. were 68.52%, 20%,
20% and 33.20%, respectively, which were more than 20%, the Group, as
the limited partner, is entitled to investment return, but has no right or
power to participate in the management or control of these entities.
Therefore, the Group has no significant influence over these entities.

De g mining m 4ignifican infl, ence% e_.en | jeyin
~Bhich he G%, ha,a b'oa‘.dx,ea .

Despite the fact that the Group has a board seat in Shenzhen Top Dental
Medical Co., Ltd. and Guangzhou Heart Network Technology Co., Ltd., the
Group determined to have no significant influence over these entities after
taking into account all the facts and circumstances, such as the percentage
of equity interest, the composition of the boards and decision-making
mechanism and the way of the Group’s nominated director participating in
board meeting.

De g_{nining indica e 4% fim_aimen f _.in ey men g in
AggeCla gy

The Group determined whether there are indicators of impairment for
investments in associates at the end of each reporting period. Indicators of
impairment included, but not limited to serious deterioration of financial
condition of the associates, significant drop in share prices, adverse changes
in the industry market environment and other circumstances indicated that
the associates are unable to generate economic benefits for the Group.
When such an indicator exists, the Group tested its investments in associates
for impairment by comparing the estimated recoverable amounts with the
carrying amounts. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
investments in associates exceeds its recoverable amount.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (C»n {n, ed)

Estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Im_ai_men & f g diRill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2021 was RMB2,152,201,000 (2020:
RMB2,202,566,000). Further details are given in note 16 to the financial
statements.

Preg cem, I'-’ men benefi nbliga fong

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.
The discount rate is one of the assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.
This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of
estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group
considers using market yields at the end of each reporting period on high
quality United States corporate bonds of SPL Acquisition Corp., which is also
the currency that benefits will be paid, and make sure terms of corporate
bonds will match the estimated term of defined benefit plan.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are partially based on current
market conditions.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (C»n {n, ed)

Estimation uncertainty ((%»n |n, ed)

P % ighn fo_.ey,.ec pd cedi fgqeg%n ade andv he..
_ecei abley

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms
of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables and other receivables is disclosed in notes 24 and 26 to the
financial statements, respectively.

Defe .ed @v. agq€ -5

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax
losses at 31 December 2021 was RMB21,998,000 (2020: RMB47,122,000).
The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was
RMB567,490,000 (2020: RMB555,255,000). Further details are given in note
33 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (C»n {n, ed)

Estimation uncertainty ((%»n |n, ed)

Fai. al.ewf nliggde ., i} in eq men 4

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on a market-based
valuation technique as detailed in note 44 to the financial statements. The
valuation requires the Group to determine the comparable public companies
(peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates
about the discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group classifies
the fair value of these investments as Level 2 and 3. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2021 was RMB1,452,982,000
(2020: RMB2,323,554,000). Further details are given in notes 19 and 20 to
the financial statements.

De el _men gy,

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy
for research and development costs as detailed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires management
to make assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the
assets, the discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
The best estimate of the carrying amount of capitalised development costs at
31 December 2021 was RMB39,803,000 (2020: RMB15,076,000).

Leagey, Eq4 jma {ng he inc.emen al bv_.%&ing a g

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and
therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates.

3.
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Estimation uncertainty ((%»n |n, ed)

Im_ai_men &f mn-financial agqe .4 (% he . han

g% dilill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based
on their products and services and has four reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@)  The finished dose pharmaceutical products segment mainly includes
enoxaparin sodium injection.

(b)  The active pharmaceutical ingredients segment includes standard
heparin sodium active pharmaceutical ingredients, and enoxaparin
sodium active pharmaceutical ingredients.

(¢ The CDMO segment includes R&D, manufacturing, quality
management, program management and commercial manufacture

under customers’ specific orders.

(d)  The “others” segment.

3.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cen jn, ed)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax
from continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that other income and gains, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses, impairment losses on financial assets,
other expenses, finance costs and share of profits and losses of associates are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
deferred tax assets, equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cen |n_ed)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Finished dose
pharmaceutical

Active
pharmaceutical

4. L0 oooyoo

oooooooooOoOoOOoOOoOocOoOoa

Segments products ingredients Others Total
00 gooo ooo cbmo oo 00
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo 0oooo
Segment revenue: ooooo
Sales to external customers goooooo 2,638,151 2,721,733 813,104 186,798 6,359,786
Intersegment sales ooooo 1,356,682 3,520,136 3,892 301,906 5,182,616
3,994,833 6,241,869 816,996 488,704 11,542,402
Reconciliation: 000
Elimination of intersegment sales 0o0ooooo (5.182,616)
Revenue from contracts with customers 000000 6,359,786
Segment results: ooooo 841,565 911,673 259,209 70,788 2,083,235
Reconciliation: oon
Elimination of intersegment results 0oooooo (89,653)
Other income and losses 00o0oooo (11,682)
Selling and distribution expenses ooooooo (430,493)
Administrative expenses oooo (668,326)
Impairment losses on financial assets 00000000 (101,958)
Impairment losses on associates 00000000 (223,092)
Other expenses oooao (5,463)
Finance costs oooo (210,074)
Share of profits and losses of associates 00000000000 (120,230)
Group's profit before tax 0oo0ooo 222,264
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cen |n_ed)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Finished dose Active
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical

4. L0 oooyoo

oooooooooOoOoOOoOOoOocOoOoa

Segments products ingredients Others Total
oo oooo ooo CDMO oo 0o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
Segment revenue: ooooo
Sales to external customers ooooooo 1,510,731 2,700,886 797,387 306,681 5,315,685
Intersegment sales ooooo 1,782,320 1,861,116 32,500 249,999 3,925,935
3,293,051 4,562,002 829,887 556,680 9,241,620
Reconciliation: 000
Elimination of intersegment sales 0oooooo (3,925,935)
Revenue from contracts with customers 000000 5,315,685
Segment results: goooo 636,689 1,161,446 218,719 36,947 2,053,801
Reconciliation: oon
Elimination of intersegment results 0000000 (36,965)
Other income and gains 0000000 365,378
Selling and distribution expenses oooooon (408,901)
Administrative expenses oooo (598,078)
Impairment losses on financial assets oOoOoooOooo (15,194)
Other expenses oooao (2,385)
Finance costs oooao (260,824)
Share of profits and losses of associates 00000000000 231,004
Group's profit before tax 0oo00oD 1,327,836
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. OO0 oooyoo
(Cen |n_ed)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (C%n {n, ed) 0000000 O0o0O0O0OOoOoOoooan
ooo
Finished dose Active
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
Segments products ingredients Others Total
oo gooo ooo CDMO oo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
Segment assets oooo 3,084,149 10,155,357 2,113,756 1,261,697 16,614,959
Reconciliation: oon
Elimination of intersegment receivables 0000000 (5,257,920)
Corporate and other unallocated assets 0000000000 7,668,856
Total assets 0000 19,025,895
Segment liabilities oooo 1,875,201 2,315,599 315,019 2,484,552 6,990,371
Reconciliation: ooo
Elimination of intersegment payables 0000000 (5,552,972)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilites 0000000000 5,899,506
Total liabilities 0000 7,336,905
Other segment information 0oo00o

Impairment losses recognised inthein ~ 00000000

the statement of profit or loss, net 0ooo (2,854) (10,515) (1,277) (548) (15,194)
Depreciation and amortisation ooooo 48,323 74,873 51,107 97,853 272,156
Investments in associates 00000000 1,631,183
Capital expenditure* gooo* 19,732 24,879 95,087 94,890 234,588
& As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, capital expenditure consists of additions to * ooboooDooOOo0oOOoOOoODOOoDO

property, plant and other intangible assets. 000000000 O0O0O00O0O0O0O0OO0
ooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. 000000000
(Cen |n_ed)
Geographical information oooo
(a) Re en_e fwm ey, g nal C.-gpme.qy (a) OOOO0O0000
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Hong Kong oad 187,981 51,404
United States of America oo 956,132 894,076
Europe 0o 3,469,218 2,904,348
Mainland China oooo 552,243 Sl Sl
Other countries/regions goooooog 1,194,212 951,346
6,359,786 5,315,685
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the Jo00oo00oooooooooo
customers. oo
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. OO0 oooyoo
(Cen jn, ed)
Geographical information ((»n jn, ed) 0o0o0oooo
(b) Nmn-c, .en aqq€.g (b) OOOO0O

As at 31 December
oooooooo

2021 2020

goooo gooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

ogooooo ooooao

Mainland China oooo 2,850,044 3,725,102
United States of America oo 3,368,616 3,546,915
Europe oo 141,086 171,057
Hong Kong o0 384,431 2,771

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of gooooooooooooo
the assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax assets. 00oo0ooooOooooooo

oooooo
Information about major customers oooooooog

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue of approximately 0O000o0DOoDoDOoooDooDOooOoO
RMB651,052,000 derived from sales to a single external customer accounted 000000000 0D010%0000
for more than 10% of the total revenue. O00o00Do0oooOooooooog

651,052,0000 O

During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue of approximately 000DO0O000ODO0OO0O0OO0ODOOOooOoaon
RMB769,183,000 derived from sales to a single external customer accounted 0OO000oO0ooooOD0O010% 0000
for more than 10% of the total revenue. 0000000000000 O0O0Oa0

769,183,0000 O
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

5. REVENUE 5. 00O
Revenue from contracts with customers gooooad
(i) Dijagg ega gd e en, einfe_ma fon () ooooon
For the year ended 31 December 2021 00000000 0oOooooo
oo
Finished dose Active

pharmaceutical ~ pharmaceutical

Segments products ingredients Others Total
oo gooo ooo CDMO oo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ooooo ooooo ooooo oooOoo ooooo

Types of goods or services 0oooooa

Sale of products oooo 2,638,151 2,721,733 - 145,042 5,504,926
CDMO services cbMmoO O - - 813,104 - 813,104
Others 0o - - - 41,756 41,756
Total revenue from contracts goooono

with customers oo 2,638,151 2,721,733 813,104 186,798 6,359,786
Geographical markets oooo
Hong Kong oo 17,167 170,214 - - 187,981
United States of America oo 208,886 49,989 658,688 38,569 956,132
Europe 0o 1,869,348 1,505,086 56,785 37,999 3,469,218
Mainland China gooo 243,529 221,213 - 87,501 552,243
Other countries/regions ooooooo 298,621 775,231 97,631 22,729 1,194,212
Total revenue from contracts goooono

with customers oo 2,638,151 2,721,733 813,104 186,798 6,359,786

Timing of revenue recognition 0OOO000

Products transferred at 0ooooo

a point in time oooo 2,638,151 2,721,733 - 145,042 5,504,926
Services transferred at 000000

a point in time 0000 - - 111,924 9,326 121,250
Services transferred over time goooooao - - 701,180 32,430 733,610
Total revenue from contracts 0ooooo

with customers oo 2,638,151 2,721,733 813,104 186,798 6,359,786
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

OOy 00

uooboouoo
() OoOooooooo

gooDO0oooOO0oOoooOooDOoOo

5. REVENUE (C»n |n, ed) 5.

Revenue from contracts with customers (% n |n, ed)
(i) Digagg ega gd e en_einfe_ma fon (Cen |n, ed)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

oad
Finished dose Active
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
Segments products ingredients Others Total
oo gooo god CDMO oo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo goooo goooo goooo
Types of goods or services 0oooooa
Sale of products oooo 1,510,731 2,700,886 - 244,855 4,456,472
CDMO services cbmoo O - - 797,387 - 797,387
Others 0o - - - 61,826 61,826
Total revenue from contracts gooooooo
with customers 1,510,731 2,700,886 797,387 306,681 5,315,685
Geographical markets oooo
Hong Kong 0o 1,050 50,354 - - 51,404
United States of America oo 22,719 176,848 575,330 119,179 894,076
Europe 0o 1,173,725 1,528,860 157,466 44,297 2,904,348
Mainland China oooo 235,000 172,834 - 106,677 514,511
Other countries/regions ooooooo 78,237 771,990 64,591 36,528 951,346
Total revenue from contracts goooooooo
with customers 1,510,731 2,700,886 797,387 306,681 5,315,685
Timing of revenue recognition 0OOO000
Products transferred at goooono
a point in time gooo 1,510,731 2,700,886 - 244,855 4,456,472
Services transferred at goooono
a point in time 0000 = = 220,788 36,392 257,180
Services transferred over time goooooo - - 576,599 25,434 602,033
Total revenue from contracts gooooooo
with customers 1,510,731 2,700,886 797,387 306,681 5,315,685
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Notes to Financial Statements

5. REVENUE (C%n L” ed)
Revenue from contracts with customers (% n |n, ed)

(i)

(i)

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

5. Do
ubooboooyoo

Digagg ega gd e en, e info_ma fn (Cen {n, ed) () oOoOO00ooooo
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised during Jo0o00o0DOoo0oDoDoooooo
the current reporting period that were included in the contract JO00D0000000O0O0000O
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from JO00D0O0000O00O0oO0O0o0O
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods: 0oooooo
2021 2020
goooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooono ooooao
Revenue recognised that was included ooodoooooooao
in the contract liabilities balance at oooooao
the beginning of the year:
Sale of products oooo 4,960 3,642
CDMO services cbmMoO O 257,228 197,544
262,188 201,186
Pe_f+_mance%bliga o ny (i) OO000

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised

below:

Sale of products

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point when control of

asset is transferred to the customer.

CDMO services

For services under the FFS model, revenue is recognised over time, and
the performance obligation is a part of the contract that has an

original expected duration of one year or less. Therefore, under
practical expedients allowed by IFRS 15, the Group does not disclose
the value of unsatisfied performance obligations under the FFS model.

goooOoooooOoooooo

oooo

gobooooOO0ooobOooooao
ooooo

cDMoL [0

OrFFSO0O0O0OCODOODODOO
gopooOoooOooOoooDOoo
O0oo0DoOoO0oO0OO0OCcOoO0O0Oo0O
go0o0OoO0ooO0oO0OOooOoooOoOo
gooooooisooooooa
OO0oOO0OO0OO0OOrSOOOOO
oooooooooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

5. REVENUE (C»n |n, ed) 5. 0yono
Revenue from contracts with customers (% n |n, ed) Oo00ooo0oyoo
(ii) Pe_f+»_mancevbliga fong (C%n jn, ed) (i) OO000000
CDMO services (Continued) CDMOLI [ 0 [0
For certain CDMO services, the directors of the Company have goocoMooOOoOOOoOOOO
determined that performance obligations are satisfied upon acceptance 00000000 0ooooood
of the deliverable products under customers’ specific orders, and 0000000oO0Ooooooog
therefore, the performance obligation is recognised as revenue at a goooooooooooooo
point in time. oooooo
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance J00D00000O00O0O0O00o0O
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are 0000000000 00000
as follows: oooooo
2021 2020
goooo gooood
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooono ooooao
Within one year ooo 1,194,897 1,048,314
All the performance obligations are expected to be recognised within 0000000 0O0OO0OO0OOoOO
one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include variable Jo000000ooooooooo
consideration which is constrained. oooooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021

ooooooooooon

OTHER INCOME AND (LOSSES)/GAINS 6. J0ODOOOOOOODOO
2021 2020
oooaono ooooao
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo
Other income oooo
Bank interest income gooooo 54,857 34,647
Government grants related to oooooooooan
— Assets™ —Qoo* 2,071 2,072
— Income** — QOQo** 21,795 44,679
Dividend income from financial assets 0000000000000
at fair value through profit or loss ooooooooooooog 28,575 14,590
Dividend income from financial assets Joooooooooooo
designated at fair value through other JO0000O0D0OOOoOOoOOoOOO
comprehensive income ooooo 15,488 16,561
122,786 112,549
Other (losses)/gains goooomoo
Foreign exchange losses, net gooooao (205,044) (248,832)
Gains on disposal of financial assets 0oooooooooooo
at fair value through profit or loss gooooooooooooo 5,761 5,444
Fair value gains, net: ooooooooo
Financial assets at fair value through jooooooooooon
profit or loss oo0ooooooo 68,065 506,936
Derivative instruments gooo (4,181) (20,480)
Losses on disposal of items of property, joooooooooooooo
plant and equipment (5.105) (1)
Interest income from debt investment 0oooooooo 1,744 5,972
Others 0o 4,292 3,790
(134,468) 252,829
(11,682) 365,378
* The Group has received certain government grants related to assets to invest in & 000000000000 O0O0O0OO0

Hk

laboratory equipment and plant. The grants related to assets were recognised in profit
or loss over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

The government grants and subsidies related to income have been received to
compensate for the Group’s research and development costs. Certain of the grants
related to income have future related costs expected to be incurred and require the
Group to comply with conditions attached to the grants and the government to
acknowledge the compliance of these conditions. These grants related to income are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which they are intended to compensate, are expensed.

Other government grants related to income that are receivables as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivables.

0000000000 O00O0O0O0O0O0O0
O00000oDO00O0oO0O0oO0ooOoOooo
ooooao

ol O000Do0000O000O0OO0O0O00O0OO0
000000000000 O0O00O0O0O0
000000000000 O0O0O0DOOO0
O00o0o0O0000O00oO0O0oO0ooo
000000000 O0O0OO0OO0O0OO0OO0
0000000000000 O0DOOO0
oooooOoooOoOooooo

0000000000000 O0O00OO0
000000000 00OO0OO00000O0
000000000000 OOOO0OOO
00000000000 0000D
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Notes to Financial Statements

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

gooogn

31 December 2021

ooooooooooon

7.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

oood

000000000000 000 000
ooooocoao

2021 2020
oooaono ooooao
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Cost of inventories sold goooooog 3,812,987 2,701,311
Cost of services provided ooooooo 553,217 597,538
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment oooooooooao 217,492 220,033
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ooooooo 37,782 35,212
Amortisation of other intangible assets gooooooao 51,520 52,123
Research and development costs* ogoooog=* 221,099 160,008
Auditor’s remuneration ooooog 7,050 5,700
Expense related to public offering oooooooo - 32,101
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ O OO0O0O00O0O00O0OO
and supervisors’ remuneration)] ooooom
Salaries and other benefits ooooooo 560,762 582,211
Pension scheme contributions, social 0ooooooooooon
welfare and other welfare oooog 123,824 117,290
Lease payment not included in the ooooooooooo
measurement of lease liabilities oooao 2,315 1,454
Bank interest income oooooo (54,857) (34,647)
Finance costs goooog 210,074 260,824
Interest income from debt investment 0oDooooooo 1,744 5,972
Dividend income from financial assets at fair oo0o0Do0oooO0oooooooaon
value through profit or loss oooooooooooo (28,575) (14,590)
Dividend income from financial assets at fair o0ooooocoOoooooooo
value through other comprehensive income 000o00o0ooooooooo (15,488) (16,561)
Foreign exchange losses, net gooooo 205,044 248,832
Gains on disposal of financial assets at fair o0o0oooocoOoooooooo
value through profit or loss oooooooooooaon (5,761) (5,444)
Fair value losses on derivative instruments ooooooooooo 4,181 20,480
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair 0o0000ooOoOOoOoooOoOooo
value through profit or loss gooooooooooooo (68,065) (506,936)
Losses on disposal of items of property, 00ooooooooooooOo
plant and equipment 5,105 1
= 000000000000 O00O0OoOO

oo
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. oo Q
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: ooooooooo
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Interest expenses on: gooooooooo
Bank borrowings gooo 121,352 147,240
Corporate bonds oooo 76,406 96,248
Lease liabilities oooo 3,873 4,231
Other finance costs oooooo 8,443 13,105
210,074 260,824
9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 9. JOoOoooono
REMUNERATION
The remuneration of each director and supervisor as recorded during the year 000000000000 000000

is set out below:

2021 2020

oooono ooooao

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooo ooooo

Fees oo 300 300

Other emoluments: ooooo

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Oo00oOoooooao 12,916 13,000
Performance related bonuses* goooooo=* - 13,507
Pension scheme contributions ooooooo 177 56
13,393 26,863
* Certain executive directors and supervisors of the Company are entitled to bonus * 000000000 O0oDO0DO0DOooOOoO
payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the Group. 0000000000 OO0OOoOOoOoO
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 9.
REMUNERATION (C»n {n, ed)

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year

oooobyog

() OO0OO0DOOD
00O0O0O000O00000000

were as follows: ooo
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Mr. Chen Junfa ooooo 100 100
Mr. Wang Zhaohui ooooo 100 100
Mr. Lu Chuan oooo 100 100
300 300

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent oooooooopooooooo

non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil). 0ooooooOoOoood

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and (b) DODOOOOOooOoO

supervisors ood
Salaries, Performance- Pension
Year ended allowances and related scheme Total
31 December 2021 benefits in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
gooobooobooobobooo goooo goo
goo goooo gooooo gooo gooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
goooo goooo goooo goooo
Executive directors oooo
Mr. Li Li oooo 2,850 - 48 2,898
Ms. Li Tan oooo 2,370 - 9 2,379
Mr. Shan Yu oooo 2,532 - 8 2,540
Mr. Sun Xuan (note (a)) 0000000 (@0 1,608 - 7 1,615
Mr. Zhang Bin (note (b)) 0o000o0oo(eo 2,641 - 32 2,673

Non-executive directors
Mr. Bu Haihua (note (c))

Supervisors
Mr. Zheng P Tf0 1.)

ooooo
00000000(0

oo
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gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (C%n jn, ed)

9. DO0O0OLOOobLOuoo

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and (b) OODODOODOOOOO
supervisors ((»n jn, ed) O0g00
Salaries, Performance- Pension
Year ended allowances and related scheme Total
31 December 2020 benefits in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
gooooooOoOCcOOOOdO goooo oog
goa goooo oooooao goog good
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo goooo goooo
Executive directors oood
Mr. Li Li good 2,908 1,580 12 4,500
Ms. Li Tan good 2,471 1,379 9 3,859
Mr. Shan Yu goood 2,470 2,074 11 4,555
Mr. Sun Xuan (note (a)) 0000000 (@O0 3,669 7,446 15 11,130
Non-executive director ooooo
Mr. Bu Haihua (note (c)) 00000000 (c)0 685 721 3 1,409
Supervisors oo
Mr. Zheng Zehui ooooo 100 - - 100
Mr. Tang Haijun ooooo 393 219 g 615
Ms. Su lilan goooao 304 88 3 395
13,000 13,507 56 26,563
Notes: ooo
(a) Mr. Sun Xuan was appointed as an executive director of the Company with (@) 0000000 0OOo0oOoooOo
effect from 27 February 2020 and resigned on 6 May 2021. 0O000oO0oO0oooooooooao
00000000 OOOO0n0
(b) Mr. Zhang Bin was appointed as an executive director of the Company with (b) 0000000 0OOo0oOoooOo
effect from 26 May 2021. 000D0000DO0OO0O0O0ODOD
(c) Mr. Bu Haihua resigned as an executive director on 30 August 2020 and was (c) Jo0oooDoOoOoDooOooooo

appointed as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 31
August 2020 and resigned on 17 April 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a supervisor
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

00000000000000O0
oo0o0o000oOooooooooao
00000000000000O0
oooo

gooooooooboooooo
oooooooog
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gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

None of the five highest paid employees during the year are directors (2020:
three), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining five (2020: two) highest paid

employees who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

10. 0 000OD0ODOO

oo000O00D00O0O000O000000O
ooboocooooOoobOoooooaon
oooO0O0O0OO09o0DODOO0OD0O000O
ooodboooocooOooooooan
oooooooooooo

2021 2020

ooooo ooooo

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ooooo ooooo

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind goDoooooooao 19,342 8,602
Performance-related bonuses goooooo - 2,381
Pension scheme contributions ooooooo 1,306 925
20,648 11,908

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration fell

within the following bands is as follows:

oooo0O0oO00oO0O0OOooOO0o0o00aon
oooooo

Number of employees

Nil to HK$3,500,000

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000

0 0 3,500,0000 O

3,500,0010 O [ 4,000,0000 O
4,000,0010 O 0O 4,500,00000 [
4,500,0010 O 0 5,000,0000 O
5,000,0010 O [0 5,500,0000 O
5,500,0010 O 0 6,000,0000 O
6,000,0010 O O 6,500,00000 O
6,500,0010 O O 7,000,00000 O
7,000,0010 O O 7,500,0000 O
7,500,0010 O O 8,000,0000 O
8,000,0010 O O 8,500,0000 O

oooo
2021 2020
afalalalls 0oooo
1 —

2 —

- 1

1 —

1 —

- 1

5 2
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

11. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profit arising in or
derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are domiciled
and operate.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the EIT rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% unless they are subject to tax exemption set out below.

The Company was accredited as a “High and New Technology Enterprise” in
2018, the qualification of which was subsequently renewed in 2021, and
therefore, the Company was entitled to a preferential CIT rate of 15% for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. This qualification is subject to
review by the relevant tax authority in the PRC for every three years.

Shenzhen Techdow Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was accredited as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” in 2017, the qualification of which was
subsequently renewed in 2020, and therefore, Shenzhen Techdow
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was entitled to a preferential CIT rate of 15% for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. This qualification is subject to
review by the relevant tax authority in the PRC for every three years.

The Group’s entities incorporated in USA are subject to the federal corporate
tax rate of 21% for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The state
income tax rate remains within the range from 1% to 10% for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group’s entities incorporated in Europe, other than Netherland and lItaly,
are subject to the corporate income tax at a rate ranging from 11% to 33%
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”’) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group
entity are taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million are taxed at
16.5%. The profits of the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

11. INCOME TAX (C»n |n, ed) M oooyog
The Group’s entities incorporated in Netherland are subject to the corporate ooo0o0oopoDOoooooOoooOo
income tax at a rate of 15% (2020: 16.5%) for taxable income that does not 000000000 oooooooog
exceed the amount of EUR245,000 (2020: EUR200,000), and if the taxable 000000 O245,0000 000000
income exceeds the amount of EUR245,000 (2020: EUR200,000), the tax rate 0 0 200,0000 000 0O O 0O O15%1 0
of 25% (2020: 25%) should apply to the portion that exceeds the amount of 0000016.5%00 0000000
EUR245,000 (2020: EUR200,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021. 000000000 DDO245,0000 O

gooO0O00Oozo0,0000 0000003
245,0000 OO O 0O O O O 0O 200,0000
00000002541 00000025%0
oo0ooooooooo

The Group’s entity incorporated in Italy is subject to the corporate income oo0oooDoDoDOooOO0oOooOoooOan
tax at a rate of 24% and Imposta regionale sulle attivita produttive (“IRAP”) oooocooooooooooooo
tax at a rate of 3.9% for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. oo0o0o0D0D024a%000000000

ooo0039% 000000000

The major components of the income tax (credit)/expense for the year are as 000000 oOOoDoooooooo
follows: oooo
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooao ooooo
Current tax expense: ooooood
PRC oo 60,861 71,311
USA oo 81,920 52,225
Elsewhere oooo 15,558 1,939
Under provision in prior years gooooooo 1,098 8,055
159,437 133,530
Deferred tax (credit)/expense: oooDoooomooo
PRC oo (113,925) 99,594
USA oo (62,985) 51,029
Elsewhere oooao 6,353 22,051
(170,557) 172,674
Total tax charge for the year gooooooo (11,120) 306,204
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

11. INCOME TAX (C»n |n, ed)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and
a reconciliation of the statutory tax rates to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:

M. ooyoo

ooo0O0O0OO0OO0OOCocOOO0OO0O0O0O
ooooOooOoOooooocooooao
oobooOocooooocooooOoon
oooooooooooOooocooo

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo % ooooo %
Profit before tax googd 222,264 1,327,836
Tax at the statutory tax rate Oo00ooooooo 66,596 30 327,479 25
Lower tax rate for specific provinces OO0 O00000O0O
or enacted by local authority 00o0oo0oooaog (15,125) (7) (54,595) (4)
Effect on opening deferred tax of ooooooooo
decrease in rates ooooo (36,450) (16) 2,630 -
Adjustments in respect of current ooooooooo
tax of previous periods ooooo 1,098 - 8,055 1
Income not subject to tax oooog (10,517) (4) (6,529) -
Expenses not deductible for tax oooooo 4,934 2 3,828 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised OO OO OOOO
tax losses oooo (2,643) (1) (12,172) (1)
Tax losses and temporary difference oooooooao
not recognised ooooo 22,656 10 54,157 4
Super deduction for research and oooooooao
development expenses (31,483) (14) (16,649) (1)
Others oo (10,186) (5) = =
Tax charge at the Group’s ooooooooo
effective rate ooooooo (11,120) (5) 306,204 23
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gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

12. DIVIDENDS 12. 0 O
2021 2020
ooooo ooooog
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooood ooooog
Proposed final - RMB3.5 cent oooo —
(2020: RMB15 cent) per ordinary share Oo0O0O00O0O0ODas.sd
OO0ooOoOoDooooason 51,355 220,094

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average number of 1,467,296,204 ordinary shares (2020:
1,353,329,463) in issue during the year as adjusted to reflect rights issue
during the year. The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

13.

oooo00ooo0o0oO0ooO0ooo0aon
O0o0oO0ooO0ooO0ooO0oOo0n

ogogodagboabd
goodgdn

oooo00ooo0oO0oO0oooOO0ooo0aon
Ooo00o0o00O0o0O0O0o0o0O0000aon
O0001,467,29,2040 000000
00001,353,329,4630 000000
oooo0oooO0OO0O0O00000000
OoooO0O0ooO0OO0OO0OO0OOOO0OC0O0O0O0
000000000000 O0OO0O0O0O0
oooo

ooooooooooooooo

2021 2020
ooooo ooooog
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ogooooo
Earnings oo
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of oooooooooon
the parent oooo 240,788 1,024,210
Year ended 31 December
obooobooobooooo
2021 2020
goooo goooo
Number of shares oooo
Weighted average number of ordinary sharesin 000000000
issue during the year, used in the basic and oooooooooao
diluted earnings per share calculation oooooooon 1,467,296,204 1,353,329,463
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31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of properties, equipment,
motor vehicles and leasehold land in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 30 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. Leases of properties generally have lease terms
between 1 and 17 years; equipment generally has lease terms between 1 and
5 years; and motor vehicles generally have lease terms between 1 and 4
years.

15. 00O

ooboooboo
00000000000000000

oooooocoooooooOoooaon
oooooocoooocoooOoooaon
Oo0O0oO0oO0ooooosoeoso00nOnd
ooboooooocooooooooan
oboooobOoooooOoooo0O0aioiy
ooobDobDOOobOO0oDb10500000
000000010400

(a) Righ #f-..qe agqe 4 (a 00000
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the gooDoooOooooooooo
movements during the year are as follows: ooooo
Properties Equipment Motor vehicles Leasehold land Total
oo oo ooo oooo oo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
As at 1 January 2020 oooo00ooOoooo 101,293 7,139 5,256 123,610 237,298
Additions oo 4,334 1,271 1,265 - 6,870
Depreciation charge opooo (24,188) (3,388) (2,682) (4,954) (35,212)
Early termination goono (16,738) - (780) - (17,518)
Exchange realignment goono (4,907) (459) 119 - (5,247)
As at 31 December 2020and O O0O000
1 January 2021 oooooooo
O0o0o0oOoOoO 59,794 4,563 3,178 118,656 186,191
Additions oo 94,698 - - - 94,698
Depreciation charge goog (27,867) (3,062) (1,899) (4,954) (37,782)
Early termination goono (838) - - - (838)
Exchange realignment gooog (2,121) (67) (227) - (2,415)
As at 31 December 2021 ooooooooo
opooo 123,666 1,434 1,052 113,702 239,854
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OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

15. LEASES (C%n jn, ed)

The Group as a lessee ((»n |n, ed)
(b) Leage liabili fey

(c)

(d)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the

15. 00y 00

uboboooouoog

(b) OOO0O

go0ooooooOoooooo

year are as follows: oo
2021 2020
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo
Carrying amount at 1 January ooooooooao 77,243 119,233
New leases ooo 94,698 6,870
Accretion of interest recognised duringtheyear OO OO0 OO0OO0O 3,873 4,231
Payments oo (35,996) (32,957)
Early termination oooo (1,124) (14,452)
Exchange realignment oooo (2,939) (5,682)
Carrying amount at 31 December O0oO0ooooooooO 135,755 77,243
Analysed into: gogo
Current portion oood 31,754 25,600
Non-current portion ooooo 104,001 51,643

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 45 to the

financial statements.

The anm, n., ecgnigedin  %fi % .kggin _ela fon

ooooooOoOoOOOOO0OO

Oo004s50000

(c ooooooooooo

% leageqg a e ay frolFiBl y: 0oo0on
2021 2020
gooooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Interest on lease liabilities ooooooo 3,873 4,231
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets oooooooo 37,782 35,212
Expense relating to short-term leases oooooooog 1,367 1,271
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets Oo000ooO0OooooOog 948 183
Total amount recognised in profit or loss ooodoooooooao 43,970 40,897

The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflow relating to
leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 39 and 45,

respectively, to the financial statements.

(d) cooooooooooOoOOO
OoD0O00D0O0O0O0O0OOOoOO

oo0o000o3so4500 00
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15. LEASES (C%n jn, ed)

The Group as a lessor
The Group leases its certain properties (note 14) consisting of certain

buildings in Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The terms
of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB3,842,000 (2020: RMB2,884,000).

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

15. 0Ly 00

ooboooboo
00000000000000000

0ooooooooo1400o0000a0
oboocooocoooocooooooan
oooooocooooooooooan
oooooocooooooooooan
o0g84z00000 00 00000O0OAO
2,884,0000 OO

oooDoooooOooobooooboooaon
ooooooOoooooOoOooooon
oo0o0ooocoOO0OO0OOooOOOOooOoOo

2021 2020

gooooo goooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

gooooo gooooo

Within one year oono 153 8IS
After one year but within two years ooooooog 147 147
After two years but within three years ooooooog 73 147
After three years but within four years ooooooog - 73
373 742
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oooooooooooo

16. GOODWILL 16. 0 O
RMB’000
ooooo
At 1 January 2020: O0oo0oO0oocoooo
Cost oo 2,354,908
Accumulated impairment goooo =
Net carrying amount ooono 2,354,908
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated impairment oooDooooOoooooon
ooooooo 2,354,908
Impairment during the year oooo -
Exchange realignment oooo (152,342)
At 31 December 2020 oooooocoOoOooooo 2,202,566
At 31 December 2020: oooooooooooono
Cost oo 2,202,566
Accumulated impairment oooo -
Net carrying amount gooao 2,202,566
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated impairment oo0o0Dooooooooooon
gooooooo 2,202,566
Impairment during the year oooo -
Exchange realignment oooo (50,365)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 000D0o0ooO0oooooOoooon
oooo 2,152,201
At 31 December 2021: oooooooOoOooooo
Cost oo 2,152,201
Accumulated impairment gooo -
Net carrying amount oooao 2,152,201
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16. GOODWILL (C%n jn, ed)

Impairment testing of goodwill
On 9 April 2014, goodwill arising from the acquisition of SPL Acquisition

Corp. amounted to RMB1,297,621,000.

On 5 October 2015, goodwill arising from the acquisition of Cytovance
Biologics Inc. amounted to RMB814,940,000.

Goodwill is allocated to Heparin SPL cash-generating unit (“SPL CGU”’) and
CDMO cash-generating unit (“CDMO CGU”) (collectively of the two above,
the “CGUs”) for impairment testing. The recoverable amounts of the Heparin
SPL CGU and CDMO CGU have been determined based on the higher of VIU
and FVLCD. VIU is determined using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management. In
measuring FVLCD, multiple valuation techniques are used to measure fair
value. The fair value is evaluated using a combination of the income
approach and the market approach, with 50 percent weighting for each
approach.

The respective recoverable amounts and the carrying values of the CGUs as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

16. D v oo

ooboooond
000000000000 0SPL

Acquisition Corp.0 00 0OO00O0ODO
1,297,621,0000 O

000000000000 Cytovance
Biologics Inc.0 O OO O0ODOOO
814,940,0000 O

oo0opo0OooDOoosPLO0OCDOOOD
coMoOO O OOOoOooooooooog
oo0o0ODD0DODOoooooOOoOOoDospPLo
oooooocomMoOOOOOOOO
oooo0ooOooooooOooooaon
ooboocoooOoOoooooOooooaon
ooooOooOoOooooocooooao
ooboocoooocoobooooooan
ooboocoooocoocooooooaon
oooocooooooooooooan
oo000oo0O0oO0o0ObOO0OO0s50%000
oooooooo

oooDoooDODO0oOoooDO0OO0o0oan
oooooOoooooooooooon
ooooooo

He  a_in SPL CGU OO0SPLO OO OO0
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Recoverable amount ooooao 3,007,418’ 3,138,477
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16. GOODWILL (C%n jn, ed)

Impairment testing of goodwill (C%n {n, ed)

16. D v o

uboboobooryoo

CDMO CGU COMoOL 00000
2021 2020
goobooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo
Recoverable amount ooooo 2,028,887 1,668,443
Carrying value including allocated goodwill gooooooooooo 1,650,253 1,612,353

1. The recoverable amount was determined based on FVLCD.

2. The recoverable amount was determined based on VIU.

For income approach, the pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections, the forecasted growth rates and earnings before interest, taxes,

depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) margin used to extrapolate cash
flow projections and terminal growth rates are as follows:

He __a in SPL CGU

1. O000DO00O0O0O0O0OO0O0ODODO0O0O0D0O0

2. 0000ODO0O0OO0OO0OODOOO

ooboocooooooooooooan
ooooooooooooooooan
obooooOoooOoooooooon
O00000O0OMEBITDADO O OODO

oo0oooooo

OOsSPLOOOOOO

2021 2020

o0o0oo ooooo

Revenue growth rates ooooao 1%-40% 5%-44%

EBITDA margin EBITDAO O O 17%-27% 15%-31%

Pre-tax discount rate ooooo 17.0% 16.0%

Terminal revenue growth rate ooooooao 2.5% 2.5%
CDMO CGU cCoMoOL 00 0on

2021 2020

ooooo ooooo

Revenue growth rates ooooo 6%-21% 6%-25%

EBITDA margin EBITDAO O O 26%-27% 25%-29%

Pre-tax discount rate oooood 14.4% 15.7%

Terminal revenue growth rate oooooono 2.5% 3.0%
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16. GOODWILL (C%n jn, ed) 16. 0D Ly O
Impairment testing of goodwill ((»n {n, ed) oooooooooo
Assumptions were used in the VIU calculation of the CGUs for 31 December 0Oo0o0o0DOoDoDOoooooOooOoO
2021 and 2020. The following describes each key assumption on which oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment 000000000 ooooooog
testing of goodwill: ooooooOoooooooooon

oooo

Revenue growth rate — The revenue growth rate is based on the average OoOoOo0oo—oooooooooono
growth achieved in the past years and the expected revenue from sales of 00o0Doo0ooDoooooooooan
heparin, pancreatin and CDMO services. gcomMoOooogooooooo
Budgeted EBITDA margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned OOEBITDAO OO — 00000000
to the budgeted gross margins is the EBITDA margins achieved in the year 0oo0o0ooooooooooooan
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected market 0000000 OOEBITDAO O OOO
development. ooooooooooooo
Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks OO0 —O0000000O0O0O0O00OO
relating to the relevant unit. oo0oooooooooooooon
The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development and the 00o0oDoDoooooooooooan
discount rate are consistent with external information sources. 0Oo0o0oooooooo

¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK Ay MACE EICAL Gy @ +C@., LED. 100000000l 100 ANN Alx E4@s B2021



Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

16. GOODWILL (C%n jn, ed)

Impairment testing of goodwill (C%n {n, ed)

For market approach, fair value was determined based on ratios of enterprise
value (“EV”) divided by revenue and EBITDA of several comparable public
companies for specific historical and/or forecasted years. Multiples were
selected for the respective time periods and multiplied by the revenue and
EBITDA of the related CGU, resulting in an implied EV of the CGU, on a
minority, marketable basis. Weightings were applied to the implied
indications of value and a control premium was added to arrive at an EV on a
controlling, marketable basis. The guideline companies were selected based
on a comprehensive search of publicly-listed companies in the CGU’s
industry, such that the guideline companies had similar or comparable
operations and were likely exposed to similar risks as the CGU. The selected
multiples and control premium are as follows:

He . a in SPL CGU

16. D v o

uobooobouog
00000000000000000

OMOoooO0OOOoO0DO0o0ooo0O0O0O
ooooOooooooooooooaon
OEBITDAD O OO OOOOOCOOON
oobooooooooooooooan
oooesitbAO OO OOOOOOONO
ooo0bDoOooo0oOoOOoO0oDOo00oo
ooo0oOoOooooooOoooooan
oooDoooooOooobooooooaon
o0ooooOoOoo0ooOoOoooOoooaon
oooooOoOO0OOOO0OO0OOOOO0OO
000000000 O0000000O0
0oo0000000000000000
000000000000 00000O0

OOSPLOOO0OOO

2021 2020

o0o0oo ooooo

Revenue multiples oooo n/all 00O n/ad O O

EBITDA multiples EBITDAD O 6.5x-10.0x 10.0x-10.5x

6.50-10.00 10.00 -10.50

Control premium ooooo 5.0% 5.0%
CDMO CGU comon Ooonn

2021 2020

ooooo ooooo

Revenue multiples oooo 2.0x-2.5x 1.9x-2.2x

2.00-2.50 1.90-2.20

EBITDA multiples EBITDAO O 8.5x-9.0x 8.0x-10.0x

8.50-9.00 8.00 -10.00

Control premium ogooono 10.0% 10.0%
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16. GOODWILL (C%n jn, ed) 16. 0D Ly O
Impairment testing of goodwill ((»n {n, ed) oooooooooo
Assumptions were used in the FVLCD of the CGUs for 31 December 2021 0Oo0o0o0DOoDoDOoooooOooOoO
and 2020. The following describes each key assumption on which oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
management has based to undertake impairment testing of goodwill: o0oCooOoOoOooOoooooooog

O0o0ooOooOooooooooo

Revenue multiples — The revenue multiples are based on the CGU'’s historical ooono —ooooooooooo
and forecasted performance compared to those of the guideline companies, 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
as well as how the business has been performed relative to the plan for that 0o0o0o0oDooo0oDooOoooooan
period. ooo
EBITDA multiples — The basis used to determine the value of EBITDA multiples EBITDALJ [J — O OEBITDAD OO OO
is the CGU’s historical and forecasted profitability performance compared to ooooooooooooooooan
those of the guideline companies, as well as relative to the plan, and 00000 O0DDoDoOOoOoooooooan
initiatives driving profitability. 0ooooooooooooo
Control Premium — The control premium is based on review of recent OoOoOoOo0o —oooooooooog
transactions in the industry and the comparability of the transactions to the ooo0oDooooooooooooan
respective CGUSs. oooooooo
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. 0 000DbOODOO

2021 2020

oooono ooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooo ooooo

Share of net assets oooooo 401,903 688,555
Goodwill on acquisition goooDoooono 967,654 942,628
1,369,557 1,631,183

Provision for impairment oooo (223,092) -
1,146,465 1,631,183

At the end of the reporting period, in view of the loss-making, the directors
of the Group estimated the recoverable amounts which were the higher of
VIU and the fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD”’) of the investments in
associates for the purpose of impairment testing. The recoverable amount of
Resverlogix Corp. and Shenzhen Asia Pacific Health Management Co., Ltd.
were determined by FVLCD.

In this connection, The FVLCD of Resverlogix Corp. was determined by
reference to the recent transaction, which was disclosure in Resverlogix
Corp.’s audited financial statements. The FVLCD of Shenzhen Asia Pacific
Health Management Co., Ltd. was determined to be nil due to its net
liabilities.

As a result, the Group made an aggregate impairment provision of
RMB223,092,000 (2020: Nil) against the carrying amounts of above
investments in associates during the year ended 31 December 2021.

O00O0O0O0ooooopooooooo
O00000ODOooooOoooooo
O000oO0D0oO0oU0oOoooOooooo
O0O0O00OO0O0oOoOoOooooooo
Resverlogix Corp.0 0000 O00O0OO
O000000O0DOD0ODOooOooooo
ooooooo

0 00O O 0OResverlogix Corp.0 0 00O 0O
0000000000000 0oooo
00000 OResverlogix Corp.0 OO O
O000000D0D0DoOooooOooo
gbooboooboobooooooboon
obooboooboooga

ooooocooooooooooan
oooooOoOoOOOoO0oOoooooan
oooooOoOoOOOO0oO0oOooooan
223,092, 00000 000000000 0O0O
ooo
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18. 0 000000 Ouong
0000000 000000O0000
0000D04200000000000
000000000 00000000

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (C»n |n, ed)

The Group’s trade receivables with associates are disclosed in note 42 to the
financial statements. As of 31 December 2021, particulars of the Group’s
associates are as follows:

oooao

Percentage of

Place of ownership interest

Particulars of registration attributable to
Name issued shares held and business the Group Principal activities

goooo goooooo
od goooo goooooo oooooooo good
Resverlogix Corp. Ordinary shares Canada 35.07% Biopharmaceutical R&D
goo goa gooooo
Quest PharmaTech Inc. (hereafter, the “Quest”) Ordinary shares Canada 14.86% Biopharmaceutical R&D
Quest PharmaTech Incl O 0 0 00 QuestT] oono goo gooooo
OncoQuest Inc. Ordinary shares Canada 36.08% Biopharmaceutical R&D
ooo goa gooooo
Shanghai Taiyi Venture Capital Partnership. Limited partnership PRC 49.58% Investment management

(limited partnership)

oooooooOoOoOOCOoOoOoOoOoo gooo od goog
Shenzhen Asia Pacific Health Management Co., Ltd. Ordinary shares PRC 27.43% Health management
consulting
ooooooooooooo goo od oooooo
Hightide Therapeutics, Inc. (hereafter, the “HighTide”) Ordinary shares Cayman Islands 46.08% Biopharmaceutical R&D

Hightide Therapeutics, IncD 0 0 0 000 00

ooo

goooo

gooooo

¢ HEN HEN HE4&LINK Ay MACE EICAL Gy @ +C@., LED.

ANN ALy E-#8 2021 1



R - I

Notes to Financial Statements
Oo0000od

31 December 2021
ooooooooooonn

© HEN HEN HEA&LINK #4Ay MACE BICAL Gy @ 4#C@., ED. 000 0000000000000 ANN ALy E-@ 882021 0000




Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (C»n |n, ed) 1. 0000000 0yon
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
gooooo goooo
Revenue od = -
(Loss)/profit for the year ooooomoo (159,855) 154,176
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 00O oomoooo (159,855) 154,176
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information in respect 000000000000 O0oOoOOoOOoOn
of HighTide adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled oooCcoooooooooOoDOOoO
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: ooooooooooooooooan
oo
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Current assets gooog 775,148 370,824
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ooooooooooo 503,136 524,999
Current liabilities oooo (20,106) (7,216)
Non-current liabilities ooooo (1,017,067) (7,794)
Non-controlling interests ooooo - 3,561
Net assets, excluding goodwill oooooooooo 241,11 884,374
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in 0ooooooooooooo
the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ooooooooo 46.08% 40.97%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate, ooooooooo
excluding goodwill oooooooooo 111,104 362,328
Goodwill on acquisition gooooooo 350,619 299,273
Carrying amount of the investment ooooooo 461,723 661,601
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (C»n [n. ed) 18. 000000 Oooyoo
2021 2020
oobDoo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
googoo goooo
Revenue oo 45 =
Loss for the year gooo (217,463) (65,009)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) oooooomooo 3,668 (375)
Total comprehensive loss for the year gooooooo (213,795) (65,384)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the
Group’s associates that are not individually material to the Group:

O0oo0oO0ooo0oOoooOooOoo0O
ooooooooooooo

2021 2020

ooooo gooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooo ooooo

Share of the associates’ profit for the year oooDooooooo 43,693 199,872
Share of the associate’s other comprehensive 0o00D0o0oO0o0oooooooo

loss for the year (428) (1,858)
Carrying amount of the Group’s investments 000Do0o0oo0oooooooo

in the associates 401,676 443,224
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19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 19. 00000000000
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Oo0ooooooood
INCOME Ooogod

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo
Equity investments designated at fairvalue 0000000000000 OOO
through other comprehensive income O0oO0oooooooOo
Listed equity investment, at fair value: o00D0oO0ooOOoooooooog
Aridis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Aridis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 13,050 34,792
Rapid Micro Biosystems, Inc. (c) Rapid Micro Biosystems, Inc. (c) 1,663 -
14,713 34,792
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value: o00Do0o0ooooooooooog
Cantex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (a) Cantex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (a) - 195,747
Curemark, LLC (b) Curemark, LLC (b) 460,172 388,495
Rapid Micro Biosystems, Inc. (c) Rapid Micro Biosystems, Inc. (c) - 919
460,172 585,161
474,885 619,953

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

()

(©)

In September 2021, the Group sold its equity interest in Cantex
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(“Cantex”). The fair value on the date of sale was
USD22,500,000 and the accumulated loss recognised in other
comprehensive loss of USD7,500,000 was transferred to retained
earnings. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
received dividends in the amounts of USD2,400,000 (2020:
USD2,400,000) from Cantex.

In March 2021, the Group acquired 36,134 common shares of
Curemark LLC (“Curemark”) by settling the prepayment for
investment with an amount of RMB82,042,000 (equivalent to
UsD12,521,000).

In July 2021, Rapid Micro Biosystems, Inc. had an initial public offering
of common stock on NASDAQ.

oooo0O0oO00oO0O0OOooOO0o0o00aon
oo00oo0O00oo0O00oo000oo0o0on
O0o0ooO0oocO0OoO0OOoO0ODoOoOOooOOo

(a) goooooooooooann
[ O Cantex Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(O Cantex(MO O OOOOOOO
00000 022,500,0000 000
Ooo0oooooooooon
75000000 00000000000
goooooooooooon
00000000 0Cantex O
0024000000 00000000
2,400,00000 O 00

(b) Jooooooooooooon
0000000000 s2,042,000
0000 0o12,521,0000 000
0 036,1340 Curemark LLC
(0] Curemark(O O OO 0O

(c) O00O0000O0O000ORapid Micro
Biosystems, Inc.0 0000000
ooooooo
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2021 2020
ooooo ooooog
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooood ooooog
Current od
Warrants oooo 248 6,949

The Group entered into share purchase agreements with Resverlogix Corp.,
pursuant to which each purchased unit is comprised of one common share
and common share purchase warrant. Warrants are not designated for
hedging purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
changes in the fair value of the warrants were charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the year.
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22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (C%n jn, ed) 22. 0000000000
(@)  On 27 February 2020, the Company issued a corporate bond at a par (@ DODO0DO0DODOODOOOOOOO
value of RMB870,000,000 in the PRC (the “20 Hepalink™). ooooDoocooooooad
RMB87,000,000 of bond security deposits was pledged to a third-party 870,000,0000 O O OO O OJ 20
guarantor, in order to guarantee the realisation of the creditor’s rights. 000000 O0O0oOoooogo
The information about the corporate bond is disclosed in note 31 to Joodooooooooooo
the financial statements. goasr,o00,0000 0000000

gooobOoocooosioooo

(b)  The prepayment for investment represents the undelivered equity () O0D0O0DO0ODdCuremarkd O 0O
consideration of Curemark. SPL Distribution LLC, a subsidiary of the 0000000 D0OOODoSPL
Group, provided active pharmaceutical ingredients and services to its Distribution LLCO O O Curemark
customer, Curemark, as the prepayment for investment. 000000 o0odo0oooooo

ooo
23. INVENTORIES 23. 0 O
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
goopbooo goooo

Raw materials and consumables ooooooo 1,742,879 889,946

Work in progress goo 941,823 757,876

Finished goods ooo 2,022,847 1,520,427

4,707,549 3,168,249

The inventories are net of a write-down of approximately RMB79,881,000 ooo00ooOooooOOoOOoOODOOOOO0

(2020: RMB98,945,000) as at 31 December 2021. 0o0oO0o0oOOoooaov79,ssdi,00000 00O

000000 09e8,945,0000 OO

The information about the pledged assets is disclosed in note 41 to the 00o0oooooooooooooan
financial statements. 410000
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (C»n |n, ed)

The movements in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade
receivables are as follows:

2. 00 000ooooon

oo

ooooOooOoOooooocooooao
ooo

2021 2020

oooaono ooooao

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooo goooo

At beginning of year oo 30,114 21,721
Impairment losses, net ooooooao 68,659 10,589
Amount written off as uncollectible oooooooa (11,940) (2,144)
Exchange realignment oooo (534) (52)
At end of year oo 86,299 30,114

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit

oooo00O0O0O0O0O00000000

losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of 02 c07.9028 T2 c07.9tim c07.9028]1T2cekpected O O OO0 0D O OO

credit loss provision for all trade receivables.

The increase in 02 allowance for expected credit losses was mainly due to a
net increase in Orade receivables which were past due for over 1 year.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision

ooooO0oooOO0OO0OOoO0OO0OoOO0OO0O0On
O0oo0ooO0oocO0OoO0O0O000

ooooOooooooooooooan
oooooOoOoocCocCocOoOooOoon

ooooOoOooooooOoooooan
oboooooDoDoo0ooobOooooan
ooo0oOoOooo0oo0oooOoooooan
oooDoOoooDoOooooooooaon
o0ooDooOoOoo0ooOoOoooOoooaon
oooocooooooooooooo
oooo0oo0oo0oo0ooooooooooo
ooooOo0OOoO0ooOoCocoOOO0OO0OO00OO
oooocooooooOODOOODOO
oobooCcoooOoOocOoOooOooOooon
oooooooooood
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (C»n |n, ed) 2. 000 O0O0oooooad
oo
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the oo0oooOoOoooooooOoOoOoo
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: 0O000ooDoDOoOoooOo
As at 31 December 2021 oo0ooooooooooo
Expected
Amount loss rate Impairment
oo ooooo 0o
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo % ooooo
Current 00 1,276,013 0.70 8,923
Past due less than 1 year ooooaio 205,249 0.85 1,744
Past due 1 to 2 years 001020 85,847 50.05 42,963
Past due over 2 years goz2000 34,389 95.00 32,669
1,601,498 86,299
As at 31 December 2020 oo0o0oooooooooo
Expected
Amount loss rate Impairment
oo ooooo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo % ogoooo
Current oo 1,237,810 0.50 6,189
Past due less than 1 year ooooaio 365,622 0.66 2,413
Past due 1 to 2 years 001020 43,946 25.21 11,079
Past due over 2 years goz2000d 13,922 74.94 10,433
1,661,300 30,114
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oooooooooooo

CONTRACT ASSETS 25. 0000
2021 2020
oobDoo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
googoo goooo
Contract assets arising from services ooooooooan 14,993 20,477
The contract assets relate to the Group’s right to consideration for work 0000000 o0oo0oooooooan
completed and not billed. oooo0oooooooo
PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 26. 0000000 O0OOOO
OTHER ASSETS Oo00oOo
2021 2020
oooaono ooooao
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooog
Prepayments oooo 127,852 185,676
Deposits and other receivables* gooooooog* 197,235 126,467
Interest receivables oooaog 13,043 13,682
Value-added tax (“VAT”) refund receivables oooooooo 53,352 33,665
VAT recoverable ogooooono 110,156 147,320
Prepaid tax oooo 17,182 37,293
Prepaid expenses oooo 94,243 97,046
Debt investment oooo - 74,206
Less: Impairment** oooo** (46,376) (17,755)
566,687 697,600
= 00000000000 0000O0OO
oDoooo

el 00000000000 O0O0OOO0OO0O0
oo0ooO00o0oO0O00O0O00OO0O000OO0
00000000 O00OO0OO0O0O0O0O0O0O0
O00000oDO00O0oO0O0oO0ooOoOooo
0000000000001200000
0000000000000 O0O000OO0

O0o0o0oOoo0ooooo
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 27. 00000000000
DEPOSITS AND TIME DEPOSITS Oo0o0ooodod
2021 2020
ooooo ooooog
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooood ooooog
Cash and bank balances oopooooo 1,479,633 1,304,996
Pledged deposits ooooo 11,581 80
Time deposits oooo 1,440,000 1,393,665
2,931,214 2,698,741
Less: od
Pledged deposits ooooo 11,581 80
Time deposits with original maturity oooooooooo
over three months: ooooo
— current — Q0o 1,440,000 1,368,416
Cash and cash equivalents goooDoooo 1,479,633 1,330,245
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Cash and cash equivalents, pledged depositsand OO0 0000000000000
time deposits oooo
Denominated in ooooo
- RMB —[0oo 1,891,559 1,823,125
- UsSD — 0o 492,554 444,705
- EUR — 0o 334,974 290,946
— HKD — 0o 37,491 52,256
— Others — 0o 174,636 87,709
2,931,214 2,698,741
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
DEPOSITS AND TIME DEPOSITS (C%»n |n, ed)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate to their fair
values.

Pledged deposits earn interest at interest rates stipulated by the respective
financial institutions.

The information about the pledged assets is disclosed in note 41 to the
financial statements.

TRADE PAYABLES

27. 000

googodood
oooooobod

ooboocoO0oooOoooOoooooao
obdbooOoOooO0OOobOoooOooon
oooOoOoooOmooobooooon
oobooooooooooooooan
oooooo

U
U

oooooOoOoOO0OO0O0oO0oooooan
o0oo0DooooDoDoOoOoo0ooOoooan
o0oo0oooooooooooooaon
goooooOoOoOoooooooao
000000000 00000000
oooocooooooooooooo
o0o0O0OoOoOO0OO0O0DOO

ooooOooOoOooooocooooao
ooooao

ooooOooooooooooooan
410000

28000000

2021 2020

gooooo gooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

gooooo ooooo

Trade payables oooooo 385,787 239,218
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28. TRADE PAYABLES ((»n jn, ed)

29.

31 December 2021

ooooooooooon

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

28. 000000000
DO0D00000000000000

oooooooooad

2021 2020

Oo0o0oo ooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooo oo0ooo

Within 1 year 100 381,473 236,702
1 year to 2 years 1020 2,117 1,774
2 years to 3 years 20 030 1,518 709
Over 3 years 3000 679 33
385,787 239,218

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on

terms of 30 to 90 days.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Oo0ooo00ooO0O0oo0O0oobooOoO0osodn

oo oonoan

29. 00 00O0bOobOonbog

2021 2020

goobooo goooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

goooo goooo

Other payables oooooo 132,603 77,895

Accruals oooo 210,436 168,434
Payables for purchase of property, ooooooooooo

plant and equipment oooo 63,708 91,307

Salary payables oooo 156,261 172,802

Other tax payables oooooo 45,721 15,702

608,729 526,140

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand. The fair values of other payables at the end of each of these
financial statements approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.

oooOoooooooooooooan
oooooooooDoooooooan
ooo0oOoOooo0oo0oooOoooooan

ooo
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OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. 0O OO
The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities: oooo0ooooooooOoooooo
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Sale of products gooog 10,585 4,960
CDMO services cbMoO O 367,229 251,990
377,814 256,950
The Group receives payments from customers based on billing schedules as 0000000 o0oo0oooooooan
established in the sales contracts. Payments are usually received in advance 00000000000 00O0Oo0an
of the performance under the contracts which are mainly from domestic 0000000000 OoO0OooOooo
customers. 00
The Group also receives payments from customers based on billing schedules ooooooecoMoOoOooOOOOOO
as established in the CDMO service contracts. Payments are usually received oooCcooooooooooooo
in advance of the performance under the contracts which are mainly from oooDoOoOoooOooOooooooao
CDMO services for clients. gooooocecbmMmod OO
All the obligations are expected to be recognised within one year. The 00000 00DoDOoOoDooOoOoooan
amounts disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is 000000OD0OO00DOooOoooooo

constrained.
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31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. 000000000
BORROWINGS
31 December 2021 oooooooooooo

Effective interest

rate per annum Maturity RMB’000
ooooao oood gooono
Current oo
Bank loans - secured (a) 0000 —000(@) 0.30%-4.05% 2022 1,042,431
goooo
Bank loans - unsecured oooo—0o0oo 0.65%-4.22% 2022 776,107
goooao
Current portion of long-term gooooooooo 1.35%-4.75%, 2022 342,344
bank loans - secured (a) —000(@) LIBOR+APPLICABLE MARGIN ooooo
1.35%-4.75%0
LIBOR+O OO OO
Current portion of long-term ooooooooon 4.28% 2022 291,100
bank loans - unsecured —0oo ooooo
Other borrowings - unsecured (b) 0000 —000(b) 2.60%-3.30% 2022 67,747
goooo
Current portion of corporate bonds (c) 0oooooooo(e) 5.50% 2022 748,437
goooo
3,268,166
Non-current ooo
Bank loans - secured (a) 0000 —000(@) 1.35%-4.75%, 2023-2029 1,388,038
LIBOR+APPLICABLE MARGIN oooooo
1.35%-4.75%0 goooo
LIBOR+O0 0 00O
Corporate bonds (c) 0000() 3.80% 2023 862,232
goooo
2,250,270
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31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 1. 0000000 buoog

BORROWINGS (C»n {n, ed)

31 December 2020

Effective interest

oooooooooooo

rate per annum Maturity RMB’000
goooo gooo gooono
Current oo
Bank loans - secured (a) 0000 —000(@) 0.35%-4.57% 2021 1,129,410
goooo
Bank loans - unsecured ooo0o—-—0ooa0 1.20%-3.96% 2021 450,352
goooo
Current portion of long-term ooooooooon 4.05%-4.75%, 2021 561,786
bank loans - secured (a) —000O0(@) LIBOR+APPLICABLE MARGIN, ooooo
3MLIBOR+150BP
4.05%-4.75%0
LBOR+O OO ODOO
3MLIBOR+150BP
Current portion of long-term goopooooon 4.28% 2021 401
bank loans - unsecured —Qooo ooooo
Other borrowings - unsecured (b) 0000 —000(b) 2.85%-3.3% 2021 280,000
goooo
Current portion of corporate bonds (c) 000000000() 3.80%-6.00% 2021 60,028
goooo
2,481,977
Non-current ooo
Bank loans - secured (a) 0000 —000(@) 1.42%-4.75%, 2023-2029 1,339,940
LIBOR+APPLICABLE MARGIN gooooo
1.42%-4.75% goooo
LIBOR+O OO OO
Bank loans - unsecured oo0o0o-—0oo0 4.28% 2022 193,684
goooo
Corporate bonds (c) 0ooo() 3.80%-5.50% 2022-2023 1,552,233
gooooo
goooo
3,085,857
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gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWING (C»n {n, ed)

1. 0000000 buoog

Analysed into: oooo
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo

Repayable: ooooooooo

Within one year o0oo 3,268,166 2,481,977
In the second year ooo 1,604,635 885,698
In the third to fifth years, inclusive Oo0ooooooo 143,412 1,652,246
Beyond five years oooo 502,223 547,913
5,518,436 5,567,834

()

The mortgaged and guaranteed bank loans were secured by the total
assets owned by SPL with an amount of RMB345,139,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB543,617,000). The pledged assets have a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,870,363,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB1,931,032,000).

The pledged bank loans were secured by the buildings of the Company
located in Pingshan District, Shenzhen with an amount of
RMB1,251,968,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB926,278,000).
The buildings of the Company located in Pingshan District, Shenzhen
have a net carrying amount of approximately RMB470,732,000 (2020:
RMB491,873,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the pledged bank loans with an amount of
RMB430,479,000 were secured by the pledge of 100% of shares of
Shenzhen Topknow Industrial Development Co., Ltd (20200
RMB460,655,000).

O0ooo0ooOOocO0oOoOocOoO0OoOo
00000 0O345,139,0000 O
gooocooooOOooseLO O
gooooooOoObObooooao
000 0O 0543,617,0000 OO O
gooooooOooOOooOooao
gooooooooOoocoooo
1,870,363,00000 0 0 0O O0OO
0 01,931,032,0000 OO

O00o00oo0O00o0o00oO0ooOono
000001,251,968,00000 O O
000000 0926,278,0000 OO0
oooooooooooooon
oooooooooooooon
OoooooooO0ooooooo
O00000470,732,000000 00
000000491,873,0000 OO

gooobOOooOoooOoocoo
000000430,479,0000 O O
gooooooooocoooo
Ooo0oo0ooo0o000o0ondaio0%
goo0oOOoOoOoOooODOOon0OoOO
460,655,0000 0O
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (C%»n |n, ed)

()

(Continued)

On 23 April 2019, the Company issued a corporate bond at a par value
of RMB700,000,000 in the PRC (the “19 Hepalink™). The 19 Hepalink
will mature in five years from the issue date. Upon the third anniversary
of the issue date, the Company shall be entitled to adjust the coupon
rate and the bond holders shall be entitled to sell back the whole or
partial 19 Hepalink at par, so the Company has reclassified the 19
Hepalink from non-current portion into current portion of corporate
bonds as at 31 December 2021. The 19 Hepalink bears interest at the
rate of 5.50% per annum, payable annually in arrears or on the
business day nearest to 23 April of each year, starting from 23 April
2019. In connection with the bond issuance, Shenzhen Gaoxintou
Group Co., Ltd. (““‘Shenzhen Gaoxintou”), an independent third party
of financing and guarantee service provider, guaranteed the repayment
obligations under the bond. In return, Mr. Li Li provided a
counter-guarantee to Shenzhen Gaoxintou of such obligations, for a
period of two years from the date when Shenzhen Gaoxintou’s
repayment obligations expire under its guarantee agreement.

On 30 October 2019, the Company issued a corporate bond at a par
value of RMB430,000,000 in the PRC (the “19 Hepalink 01”’). The 19
Hepalink 01 will mature in one year from the issue date. Upon the one
anniversary of the issue date, the Company shall be entitled to adjust
the coupon rate and the bond holders shall be entitled to sell back the
whole or partial 19 Hepalink 01 at par. The 19 Hepalink 01 bears
interest at the rate of 6.50% per annum, payable annually in arrears or
on the business day nearest to 30 October of each year, starting from
30 October 2019. On 9 November 2020, the Company redeemed the
bond.

1. 0000000 buoog

ooo

goooooOoOooooOOoooa
goooODooODooOoboOooao
700,000,0000 O O O O O3 190
goooiscooooooooo
gooOoooOooooOoooooao
goooooooooooooo
gooDO0oo0OO00o0ooOooDO0On
go01000000Db00000
gooDoDODOoDODOoDoOOobDOoO0OoOoi9
gooD0oOooOOooOooOooDOoo
goo0OoDOO0oO0oOo1900000
00550 0000000000
goooooooOoOooooo
goooo0oo0oOoooOoOoOooOoa
gooo0O0OOoOoOOOOoOCOcCOO
goboooOoOooooooooao
Moooooooooooooan
ooooooooOoO0OO0O0O00O0d
gooooooOoooooooo
gooOoooOoooOoOoooooao
gobDooooOooooooDoo
gooDO0oo0OO00O0O0OooDO0O
gooooooooooooo

goooDOoOooOOoOOooOOoOoDOo
ooooOooOoOoOOOO0aO
430,000,0000 O O O O O3 190
g0do1oi1e0 00010000
gooooocoOooOoooooao
gooOoooOoooOOoooooa
gobooooOooooOOoooooo
0000001900 0010190
godoi0onO0Oe.50%00000
gooooooooocoooo
OgoooooooOooOoOoOoOo
gooooOoOoOOoOOoO0oDOOO0OO
goboooooOoDOOoooDOoo
oo
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31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (C%»n |n, ed)

()

(Continued)

On 27 February 2020, the Company issued a corporate bond at par
value of RMB870,000,000 in the PRC (the “20 Hepalink™). The 20
Hepalink will mature in 5 years from the issue date. Upon the third
anniversary of the issue date, the Company shall be entitled to adjust
the coupon rate and the bond holders shall be entitled to sell back the
whole or partial 20 Hepalink at par. The 20 Hepalink bears interest at
the rate of 3.8% per annum, payable annually in arrears or on the
business day nearest to 27 February of each year, starting from 27
February 2020. In connection with the bond issuance, Shenzhen
Gaoxintou Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Gaoxintou™), an independent
third party of financing and guarantee service provider, guaranteed the
repayment obligations under the bond. In return, the Company
provided Shenzhen Gaoxintou with bond margin and the mortgage of
real estate of subsidiaries, Chengdu Shenrui Co., Ltd. and Shandong
Ruisheng Co., Ltd., as a counter-guarantee of such obligations.

1. 0000000 buoog

ooo
goooooOoOooooOOoooa
goooODooODooOoboOooao
870,000,0000 O O O O O 200
goOoozooOooOOoOOOOoOO
gooOoooOooooOoooooao
goooooooooooooo
gooDO0oo0OO00o0ooOooDO0On
oo00oz200002000000
0038 0000000000
oooooO0oOooOoCcOoOoOoo
goo0o0o0oCcO0O0O0oooOooOO0O
goo0o0000DOO0O0o0O0O000
0000000000 O0O0O00O0
O00O0o00Ob0Oo0O0O000O
gooooooOoOOoOOO0OO0O0Od
goboooobOoooOooooo
goooooOoooOOooooOoao
goooooOOooobOooooo
gooooooooboooooo
gooOooocoOoooooooao
ooooo

32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. 0000
2021 2020
ogooooo oooono
RMB’000 RMB’000
gooooo ooooo
Government grants ogoooao 16,673 18,744

Government grants received for compensating for the Group’s research and

development costs which have not yet been undertaken are included in

deferred income and recognised as income on a systematic basis over the

periods when the costs, which the government grants are intended to

compensate, are expensed. Government grants received related to assets
invested in laboratory equipment and plants, are credited to deferred income
and recognised as income over the expected useful lives of the relevant
assets.

oobooooooooooooooan
oooocoooocooooooooan
ooooooooooooooooan
ooo0DooooooDooooOooOoooan
ooo0oOoOoooo0oooOoooooan
oooDooooDoOooooooooaon
oo0oooooooood
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OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

33. DEFERRED TAX (C»n {n, ed) 33.00000000
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have oooCcooooooooooooo
been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position. The following oooQCoooooooOOoODOoOOOO
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
purposes: goooboogoo
2021 2020
o0o0oo oo0ooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the 0o0oooooooon
consolidated statement of financial position goopoooooo (121,718) (83,936)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the ooooooooooo
consolidated statement of financial position ooooooooan 275,358 427,673
Net deferred tax liabilities oooooooo 153,640 343,737
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following 00000000 00ooOOoOooooon
items: 0o
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooao ooooo
Impairment of assets oooo 35,556 30,148
Tax losses oooo 567,490 555,255
603,046 585,403
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to OO000000O0O0OO0O0OO0OO0OO0OO0O0O0
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future 0000000 0D0DOO0O0ODOOoOoOon
taxable profits is probable. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in 00000000000 00OO0O00o0
respect of losses arising in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some 00000000000 00OO0O00o0
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available 00000000 00D0OOoO0oOoooon
against which the tax losses can be utilised. oooooo
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31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 34. 000000
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
gooooo goooo
Stock appreciation rights ooooao 17,371 15,543
Defined benefit retirement obligation oooooooo 120,649 115,393
138,020 130,936
(a) Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) (a) OOOOaog
The board of SPL Acquisition Corp (“SPL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary SPL Acquisition CorpI] SPLOO O
of the Company, approved a long-term incentive plan in December 0000000000 00000
2015. Under this plan, SPL could issue up to 50,000 Stock Appreciation 0000000 000oOoooo
Rights (“SARs”). As at 31 December 2021, 23,833 SARs (2020: gooooooosPLODOOCOO
48,200 SARs) was outstanding under the plan. 50,0000 0000000000

odnoooooooooooon
000000023,83300000
OOoo00000O48,2000000
oooooooo

Pursuant to the long-term incentive plan, the income obtained by the 00o0Co0oooooooooo
beneficiary is the incremental part between the exercise value and the 000Do0o0o0DOoooooooo
initial value. The exercise value is the lesser of the common stock value gooDoooOoooOoooooo
and the formula value, among which, the formula value is the specified gooDoooooooooooo
EBITDA divided by the shares of common stocks. 000000000 0EBITDAO O
goooooo
The initial values of SARs granted in 2015, 2016 and 2017 were 00000000 ooooooo
$562.30 per SARs, $562.30 per SARs and $500.62 per SARs, 0000000000 O0oOoOooO
respectively. The settlement or payment of SARs may be in the form of gooOoOose2300 000000
cash or equivalent SPL’s or the Company’s common stock, or both. The goo0se2300 00000000
vest of SARs lasts for four years and the expiration date is in the tenth 0500620 0000000000
year from the grant date. Vesting of SARs is in accordance with the gooocoooooooselO O
terms in the respective grant agreements signed with the participants. 00o00Co0oooooooooo
As at 31 December 2021, 23,833 (2020: 47,675 SARs) SARs had been 00o00o0o0ooOooooooo
vested. goooooooooooooo

goooooooOoocoooo
gooooocoOooobooooo
gooOoo0Oo0o0o0Ooono2s3,8330
Oo00000C0O0000047,675
gooooOoOooooon
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34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (C%n jn, ed)

(a)

(b)

Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) (Cs»n jn, ed)

Any vested SARs granted shall become exercisable in three equal
instalments with the first instalment becoming exercisable on the fifth
anniversary of the grant date and the next two instalments on the sixth
anniversary of the grant date and the seventh anniversary of the grant
date.

Defined Benefit Retirement Obligation
The Group makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan

for the employees working in SPL Acquisition Corp., which covers 10%
of the Group’s employees during the years ended 31 December 2021
(2020: 12%). The plan is administered by a trustee, who is
independent, with its assets held separately from those of the Group.

The plan is funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with
an independent actuary’s recommendation based on an annual
actuarial valuation. The independent actuarial valuation of the plan
during the relevant years was prepared by certified insurance actuaries
of AON plc by using the projected unit cost method. The actuarial
valuation indicates that the Group’s obligations under the defined
benefit retirement plan were 46% covered by the plan assets held by
the trustees at 31 December 2021 (2020: 46%). The deficit arises
mainly as a result of local funding rules.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk,
currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk.

3. 000 O0o oo

(a)

(b)

uoooouyoo
00O0O0000O00000000

goooooOoooOOoooooao
goooobOoooOoooooo
ooooooooo

oooooooo
0000 OSPL Acquisition Corp.

go0ooooooOoooooo
gopooOoocOooDOOoOooDOoo
0o0o0o0o0o0O0O0O0O0O0O0o0OO
00010%100000012%M0
gooO0ooocoOooobOOoooo
gobooooOO0ooobOooooo
oo

gobooooOooooOooooo
gooOoooOOooooOooooo
goooOoooOoooOooooo
00000000 0OAON plcO O
Ogo0ooO0ooo0ooO0Oo0Ooo0Oon
gooOoooOO0oooDOoooOoo
gobDO0oOoooOOoooooDOoo
0000000000000 46%
OD0O0O000046% 0000000
Oo0oo0CcO0oo0o0oO0OCcOoo0O0oo0OO
oooooooooOooooo

gooooocoOooobOOoooa
goooOooO0ooooOooooa
oooooo
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34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (C%n jn, ed) 3. 000 O0o oo

(b) Defined Benefit Retirement Obligation (C»n {n, ed) (b) DO ooOOoOyoo
(i) The amm n.g ecvgnigedin he conglida gd G) oooOoooooo
- @ gmen &f financial %ogi fon a e agy folFeiBl y: oooooooo
2021 2020
ooooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo gooooo
Present value of wholly or partly funded ooooooooooo
by obligation ooo 230,369 221,214
Fair value of plan assets ooooooooo (106,309) (102,323)
124,060 118,891
Expected to be settled in the next oopoooocoooo
twelve months oo (3.411) (3,498)
120,649 115,393
(i) Plan ag4e g (i) OO0O0O
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s liability under O00o00oOooooooo
this plan was covered by deposits placed with several banks. 00o0ooooooooon
There is no plan asset invested in the Company’s own financial goo0ooOoOoooooon
instruments or any property occupied or other assets used by the 0o0ooOoooooooo
Group. oboobooooooooo

ddoooooooooao
odooooooooono
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34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (C%n jn, ed)

Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

(b) Defined Benefit Retirement Obligation (C»n {n, ed)
(iii) M» emen .z in he ._eqen al.ewf he defined

(i)

3. 000 O0o oo

() DODOCODODODDOoO
Gi) ooooooooon

benefi nbliga fon oo
2021 2020
ooooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo gooooo
At beginning of year ooo 221,214 188,346

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience oooooono

O0oO0moo (3.873) 30,880
Benefits paid by the plan ooooooooo (2,653) (2,365)
Current service cost goooooo 15,005 12,834
Interest cost ogooa 5,908 6,296
Exchange difference oooo (5.232) (14,777)
At end of year ooo 230,369 221,214

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
was 18.7 years during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:

18.5 years).

M emen .4 in _lan agq€-g

ooooooooooaon
oooooooooooon
oo0o0O0oo0OO00oas7
DOo0O0OO0O00OOis.5000

(iv) OO000ooo

2021 2020

ooooo ooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

gopooo goooo

At beginning of year goo 102,323 89,927
The Group’s contributions paid to the plan ooooooooono

oo 9,583 13,808

Benefits paid by the plan ooooooooan (2,653) (2,365)

Interest income gooo 2,228 2,791
Return on plan assets, excluding interestincome OO0 O O0OOO0OO0OO

goooo (2,756) 5,028

Exchange difference oooo (2,416) (6,866)

At end of year ooad 106,309 102,323
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34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (C%n jn, ed)

(b) Defined benefit retirement obligation ((»n jn, ed)
() Anm, n.g _ec gni,gd in pe congn lida gd
g @ gmen »f_ %fi 5 .fggand% pe..
c»m__ehengi e income a_e ay fo I8 ,:

3. 000 O0o oo

() DODOCODODODDOoO
(vV) ooooooooo
oooooooonon

oooo

2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
Doooo 0oooo

Current service cost gooooo

odoooooooooao
ddoooooooooao
oooooooooooon
ooooooooooan

oo

(vi) OOO000000
ooooooooo
oooooooo
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31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (C%n jn, ed) 3. 000 O0o oo

(b) Defined benefit retirement obligation ((»n jn, ed) (b) DO ooOOoOyoo
(i) Sigpifican ac  aialagg. m_ 'pl_'l,_» (_e;,ﬁ_,,ed_ ay (vi) OO 0000000
~Heigh gd a e agey) and a-qengi | iy anal"_,lsr oooooonoo
aeagflkBy: (Con n, ed)’ Ooooooonoon
onono
The analysis below shows how the defined benefit obligation gooooooooooano
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a 1% change in 0o0O01%000000an
the significant actuarial assumptions: ooooooDoOOoOooOom
2021 2020
Increase 1% 001% ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo
Discount rate ooo (39,152) (39,393)
Future salary increases oooooo 16,159 13,970
Expected long-term rate of return gooooog (1,108) (962)
2021 2020
Decrease 1% 001% ooooag ooooao
RMB’000 RMB’000
gooooo goooo
Discount rate ooo 51,626 52,154
Future salary increases oooooo (13,352) (11,522)
Expected long-term rate of return ooooooo 1,108 962
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. 0 0
2021 2020
gooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Issued and fully paid: ooooooog
1,467,296,204 (2020: 1,467,296,204) 1,467,296,2041 0 000 00O
ordinary shares 1,467,296,20400 0 O O 1,467,296 1,467,296
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oooooooooooo

35. SHARE CAPITAL (C%n jn, ed) 35. 0 0000
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows: o0o0o0ooooOooooo
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
goooooboood o0
RMB’'000
ooooo
At 1 January 2020 gooooooooo 1,247,201,704 1,247,202
Issuance of H shares upon listing on 0000000000 0HO
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange 220,094,500 220,094
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 O0o0oO0ooOooOooooo
gooooobooobog 1,467,296,204 1,467,296

36.

RESERVES 36

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 95 to
96 of the financial statements.

(i) Statutory surplus reserve
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the companies in the

PRC are required to allocate 10% of the statutory after-tax profits to
the statutory reserve until the cumulative total of the reserve reaches
50% of the company registered capital. Subject to approval from the
relevant PRC authorities, the statutory reserve may be used to offset
any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the
company. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution
to shareholders of the PRC subsidiaries.

(ii) Merger reserve
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between

the aggregate of the then net assets of the subsidiary acquired and the
consideration paid by the Group for the business combination under
common control.

L0

oooooooooooOoOooooo
gosOObee0 00 OOOOOCOODOO

()

(ii)

oooooo
0000000000000 00

0000000000010%00
gooooOoOoooOoooooa
0000000050%00000
gooooocoOooOoooooao
gobooooOooobOooooo
goooooOooooOoooooao
oooooooooo

oooo
000000000000000

OoooooooO0ooooooo
O0ooo0oo0ooooooooo
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ooooooooooon

36. RESERVES (C»n |n, ed)
(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve represents exchange differences

36. 0 Ly

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

ogoooon
00O0O0000O00000000

gooooocoOooobooooao
goooooooOoocoooo
oo

ooooo
0000000O00000000

gooDO0oooOO0oOoooOooDOoOo
gooDO0o0o0OO0ooDOOo0ooDOoOo
oo

ogoooon
00O0O0000O00000000

gobooooOO0ooobOooooo
gobooooOooooooooo

oooooboo
000000000000000

gooDO0oo0OO00O0O0OooDO0O
oo
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OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 37. 00000000000
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS oodoodog
31 December 2021 gooooooooonoan
Percentage of (Loss)/profit Accumulated
equity interest for the year balances of
held by allocated to non-controlling
non-controlling non-controlling interests at the
interests interests  reporting date
goooo ooDooDoOo ooooo
ooooooao O0ooooo ooooo
ooo 00 oooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
% ooooo ooooo
Shenzhen Penghe Property Oooooocoooo
Management Co., Ltd. gooo 45% (1,127) 50,737
Shenzhen Ruidi Biomedical Co., Ltd. O OO0O0OOO0OO0OO
oooo 49% 5 40,585
Shenzhen OncoVent Biomedical OoOooOooooooo
Technology Co., Ltd. gooog 46% (5.,873) 13,770
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oooooooooooo

gobooobooodano
ugoooouyono

uboooboobooooouyoog
000O00O00000O0000000

ooooooooooooocoon

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 37. O
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (C»n {n, ed) [

31 December 2021 (C»n jn, ed)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the

U
U

above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

eliminations:
Shenzhen Shenzhen
Penghe Shenzhen OncoVent
Property Ruidi Biomedical
Management Biomedical Technology
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
goooo ooooo oooo
googd goog oooooo
goog goog oooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo gooooo
Revenue oo - - -
Total expenses ooog (2,504) (342) (12,767)
(Loss)/profit for the year ooooomoan (2,504) 11 (12,767)
Total comprehensive loss fortheyear OO OO0 00O OO (2,504) (436) (13,020)
Current assets oooag 6,372 48,700 50,516
Non-current assets oooog 107,001 70,593 17,355
Current liabilities ooog (326) (36,598) (37,745)
Non-current liabilities ooooog (298) - -
Net cash flows from/(used in) oooooomooo
operating activities gooooo 486 20 (10,383)
Net cash flows used in investing Oo00o0ooooOooooon
activities (7) (1,537) -
Net cash flows from financing Oo00o0oooooooon
activities - - 9,680
Effect of foreign exchange rate ooooooooo
changes, net - (533) (286)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Oo00ooooooog
cash equivalents oooooo 479 (2,050) (989)
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oooooooooooo

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL  37.
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (C»n {n, ed)

31 December 2020

Percentage of
equity interest

(Loss)/profit for

goooooodan
uoooyog
uogoooogoooo

Accumulated
balances of

held by the year allocated non-controlling
non-controlling to non-controlling interests at the
interests interests reporting date
ooooo oooooo oo0ooo
ooooooo ooooom ooooo
ooo 00 oooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
% ooooao ooooo
Shenzhen Penghe Property goooboOooboooooo
Management Co., Ltd. 45% (1,194) 51,864
Shenzhen Ruidi Biomedical Co., Ltd. 00000 O0OO0OO0OOOOOO 49% 473 40,798
Shenzhen OncoVent Biomedical Oooooooooo
Technology Co., Ltd. oooo 46% (1,033) 19,759
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (C%n jn, ed)

31 December 2020 (C»n jn, ed)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the

372. 00 0000O00o0o0n
0oo

N
goooouyoo

uboooboobooooouyoog
00000000000000O000

above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company 0ddoooooooooooon

eliminations:
Shenzhen Shenzhen
Penghe Shenzhen OncoVent
Property Ruidi Biomedical
Management Biomedical Technology
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
ooooo ooooo oooo
goog goog oooooo
goog good oooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo goooo
Revenue oo = = =
Total expenses ooog (2,654) (76) (2,246)
(Loss)/profit for the year oooo0omoan (2,654) 966 (2,246)
Total comprehensive loss fortheyear OO OO0 O0O0O0O (2,654) (765) (3,609)
Current assets oood 5,895 55,648 50,893
Non-current assets oooog 109,909 47,764 18,064
Current liabilities oooag (308) (20,282) (26,001)
Non-current liabilities ooooao (242) - -
Net cash flows from/(used in) oooooomooo
operating activities gooooo 226 169 (6,866)
Net cash flows from investing activites 0 D 0 000000000 3,843 39,501 7,198
Effect of foreign exchange rate ooooooooo
changes, net - (2,031) (2,396)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ooodoooooooo
cash equivalents 0ooooo 4,069 37,639 (1,064)
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39.

Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (C»n [n, ed)

Share Option Scheme (C»n jn, ed)
As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, the progress of the Scheme is as follows:

3.0 0000 yOoO

ooooovoo
000000000000 0000

oooooooooooboog

Fair Value

Granted Conditions Date of of Granted

Milestone percentage are Met meet Share Options

oooooao

ooo oooo ogooooao oooo oooao

RMB’000

ooooo

The first milestone oooooo 2% Yes 8 August 2017 1,271

0 DOODOOoOoOoOoO

The second milestone oooooao 1% No - -
O

The third milestone oooooo 1% No - -
O

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2020, SPL Distribution Holdings

LLC, a subsidiary of the Group, provided active pharmaceutical
ingredients of RMB3,258,000 (equivalent to USD472,000) and
RMB86,402,000 (equivalent to USD12,521,000) to its customer,
Curemark in exchange for equity interests of the customer and as the
prepayment for investment, respectively. Further details are set out in
note 19(b) and note 22(b).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Cytovance Biologics Inc, a
subsidiary of the Group, provides CDMO service of RMB6,900,000
(equivalent to USD1,000,000) to its customer, GT BioPharma Inc in
exchange for equity interest of the customer.

39.,.J00000nbo0bd

() JODoooDoOo

goooboOOooooboooo
O0O0O0O0O000OD0OO0O~DOSPL
Distribution Holdings LLCO O O
OO00OCuremarkD OO ODO0OO
3,258,00000 0 O O472,0000
0000 0 086,402,00000 0 O
012,521,0000 000 0 0 00O
Ooo0oopooooooooo
Ooooopooooooooo
19(b)0 O O 22(b)O

Oo0ooooooooao
Ooooopooooooooo
Cytovance Biologics IncO O 0O 0O
GT BioPharma IncO OO0 O 00O
6,900,00000 O O O 1,000,0000
goocoMoO oooOoOOOOO
0o0o0ooo
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (C%n |n, ed)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

39..0000000D0OuoOg

() OODOCODOOOOOO

activities
Interest-
bearing bank
and other Interest Lease
borrowings payables liabilities
goooo
ogooo oooo oooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo gooooo ooooo
2021 goooo
At 1 January 2021 gooooooooao 5,567,834 - 77,243
New bank loans and other oo0oOoooooooo
borrowings 3,693,770 - -
Additions to lease liabilities oopoooo - - 94,698
Accretion of interest expenses oooooog - 197,758 3,873
Early termination of lease liabilites OO OO0 0O OO - - (1,124)
Repayment of interest expenses ooooon - (196,556) -
Repayment of loans and other ooooooooao
borrowings (3,730,562) - -
Principal and interest elements of ocopoooopoooo
lease payments - - (35,996)
Transfer to Interest-bearing ooooooog
bank and other borrowings gooog 1,202 (1,202) -
Foreign exchange movement ooog (13,808) - (2,939)
At 31 December 2021 ooooon
gooooogd 5,518,436 - 135,755
2020 goooo
At 1 January 2020 oo0oooooooo 6,293,993 - 119,233
New bank loans and other oopooooooooo
borrowings 4,516,321 - -
Additions to lease liabilities oo0oooo - - 6,870
Accretion of interest expenses ooooon - 243,488 4,231
Early termination of lease liabilites OO 000 OO O — — (14,452)
Repayment of interest expenses oooooo - (250,767) -
Repayment of loans and other oopooooooo
borrowings (5,197,421) - -
Principal and interest elements of oooooooooo
lease payments - - (32,957)
Transfer to Interest-bearing oooooooao
bank and other borrowings oooo (7,279) 7,279 -
Foreign exchange movement oooo (37,780) - (5,682)
At 31 December 2020 gooooo
ooooooo 5,567,834 - 77,243
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (C%n |n, ed)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash

39..0000000D0OuoOg

(0 OODODOODODOO
000000000000000

flows is as follows: oooo
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Within operating activities ooooono 2,315 1,454
Within financing activities oooooao 35,996 32,957
38,311 34,411

40. COMMITMENTS 40. 0 O

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

ooooooooooooooon

2021 2020
gooooo gooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo

Contracted, but not provided for: oooooooo
Property, plant and equipment ooooooono 78,955 163,113
Capital contributions payable to investments ooooooog 434,766 60,930
513,721 224,043
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oooooooooooo

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, which are

secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 31 to the financial

statements.

The summary of the pledged assets is as follows:

(@)

(©

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, 100% of the shares of Shenzhen
Topknow Industrial Development Co., Ltd. were pledged to secure
certain bank loans.

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets (including property, plant
and equipment, equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, inventories, trade and bills receivables,
and cash and cash equivalents) of SPL and the buildings of the
Company located in Pingshan District, Shenzhen, totally amounting to
RMB2,341,096,000 were mortgaged to obtain loans from certain
banks (2020: RMB2,422,905,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the bank deposits secured for performance
guarantees’ margin and bank acceptances’ margin were
RMB11,581,000 (2020: RMB80,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the bond security deposits secured for the
performance bond margin were RMB87,000,000 (2020:
RMB87,000,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the buildings and leasehold land of the
Group located in Linyi City, Shandong Province and Pengzhou City,
Sichuan Province, totally amounting to RMB52,010,000 was
mortgaged to secure an unlimited guarantee from Shenzhen Gaoxintou
Co., Ltd., an independent third party that offers financing and
guarantee service (2020: RMB53,431,000).

41. 0000

ooobOooOoooooocooooao
0000000000000 O00310

oooooooooo

(@)

gooDoooooooOooooo
gooDo00o0OooDOOo0ooDO0o
goo01o000000000
goooooood

gopoO0ooooOoOoooOoooo
gooOosPLOO0O0O0O0O0O0O0O
gooooO0O0oooO0oooooao
gooobOOooOoooOoooo
goboooOooooOoooooa
goooooO0O0O0OOoCocOoOoa
gooooooooOoocoooo
2,341,096,00000 0000000
002,422,905,0000 M O00O0O0
oooooo

gooDooooOoooooooo
go0ooooooOoooooo
000000000 11,581,0000
000000000 080,00000

goo0ooooOooobooooao
goboboooO0ooobOooooao
08v,000,00000 0000000
0 O 87,000,0000 0O

gooooocoOooobooooao
gooooooooboooooo
gooooooooOoooooo
052,010,0000 00000000
go0oo0o0o0ooooODooOoOoO
gooooOoOOoOOoO0OO0oO0oooo
go0oooDoOODoOoOooDOoDoOoO
53,431,0000 OO
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Name and relationship

42. 00000
() JOoooooOoo

Name of related parties
oooooooad

Relationship with the Group
goooooo

Mr. Li Li and Ms. Li Tan
Oooooooooao

Shenzhen Leren Technology Co., Ltd.
O0ooOoocOoocOooon

Urumgi Jintiantu Equity Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

ooooooooooOoODOOoOoOOOoOoooo

Urumagi Feilashi Equity Investment Co., Ltd.
gobooobooobooboob

Mr. Shan Yu

oooo

Urumgi Shuidi Shichuan Equity Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (“‘Shuidi Shichuan)

oooooooooOoOoOoOOoOo0oOOoO0oO0oO0omooOonOn0m

Aridis Pharmaceuticals, Inc

OncoQuest Inc.

Resverlogix Corp.

Controlling Shareholders
goood

Shareholder of the Company
ooooo

Shareholder of the Company

ooooao

Shareholder of the Company
goooo

Shareholder and key management and a close
family member of the Controlling Shareholders
gbooboobooboobog

A company controlled by Shareholder, key
management and a close family member of the
Controlling Shareholders
0000000000000 0O0oOooOoOooO

Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
goooooo

Associate
oooo

Associate
ogooo
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (C%n jn, ed)

Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

(b) Significant related party transactions

(c)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material related party
transactions during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

2. 00 0000O0O

(b) OOOOCDOOD
000000000000000

goboooOooooOoooooao
gobooooOO0oooboooooo
oooooooooo

2021 2020
ooooo ooooog
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooog

Revenue from sales of products: ooooooo
Aridis Pharmaceutical, Inc Aridis Pharmaceuticals, Inc - 6,900
OncoQuest Inc. OncoQuest Inc. 2,794 16,502

Other related party transactions
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s

banking facilities were guaranteed by its related parties with details set
out in note 31 to these financial statements.

(o ODOOODOOD
O0O00O000000O00000

gooooocoOoooooooao
gooooooOoooooooao
ooo00o000DoDsid
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (C%n jn, ed) 42. 00000000
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (d DO0O0OoQooDoooo
As disclosed in the statement of financial position, the Group had the 0o0ooooOoooooooo
following outstanding balances with related parties at 31 December 00oo0DoooOooocooooo
2021 and 2020: goodooooooooooo
od
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Due from related parties ooooooo
Trade receivables (trade in nature) (Note (i) ooooooooooon
oooa@o

OncoQuest Inc. OncoQuest Inc. 61 912
Aridis Pharmaceutical, Inc. Aridis Pharmaceutical, INC 3,185 6,525
Other receivables (non-trade in nature) gooo0oOoDoooOoOoOoon
Resverlogix Corp. Resverlogix Corp. 40,842 41,798
Total receivables from related parties ooooooooon 44,088 49,235
Due to related parties oooonoo
Other payables (non-trade in nature) Joo000oooooOooog
Aridis Pharmaceuticals Inc. Aridis Pharmaceuticals Inc. 177 22
Mr. Shan Yu goooo 68 =
Deposit received (trade in nature) oooOooooooo
OncoQuest Inc. OncoQuest Inc. 5,978 8,091
Total payables to related parties ooooooooo 6,223 8,113

(i) Trade receivables due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

odoooooooooao
ooooooooooon
ooo

e
=
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (C»n i»"» ed)
(e) Compensation of key management personnel of the

2. 00 0000O0O
() OO OOOOOOOO

Group O
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oopooo goooo
Fees oo 300 300
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ooooooooon 14,124 15,847
Performance-related bonuses gooooo - 15,665
Pension scheme contributions goooooo 221 88
14,645 31,900

Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are included
in note 9 to these financial statements.

goooooOOooobOooooo
Oooooooed
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

43. 0000000000

oo0oOoO0oO0O0O0O0O0OO0O0OO0OO00On
ooo

2021 goooo
Financial assets oooog
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
fair value  through other

through comprehensive

profit or loss income
ooooo ooooo
oooo gooo
oooo uono Financial
oooo oooooo assets at Total
ooooo ooooo amortised oo
Mandatorily cost
designated Equity oooog
as such investments ooo
oooooo oooo oooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
oopooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
Financial assets at fair value through 00Doooooo
profit or loss oooooooa
ooooo 1,977,409 - - 1,977,409
Derivative financial instruments oo0ooono 248 - - 248
Equity investments designated oooooooOoOo
at fair value through other goooooao
comprehensive income ooooooao
oooo - 474,885 - 474,885
Financial assets included in other ooooooooo
non-current assets ooooao - - 88,952 88,952
Trade and bills receivables ooDooooo
ogooao - - 1,525,209 1,525,209
Due from related parties ooooooDao - - 44,088 44,088
Financial assets included in ooooooo
prepayments, other receivables ooooooao
and other assets ooooooooo - - 162,660 162,660
Pledged deposits ooooao - - 11,581 11,581
Time deposits oooao - - 1,440,000 1,440,000
Cash and cash equivalents gooooooa - - 1,479,633 1,479,633
1,977,657 474,885 4,752,123 7,204,665
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3.0 000 00000ad
(Cen |n_ed) 0ooo
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at oooCcoO0oooooooooooo
the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) oowoo
Financial liabilities ooono
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

ooooo

oood

gooo

RMB'000

goooo

Trade payables goooooo 385,787

Due to related parties ooooooo 245
Financial liabilities included in other J00000000DOooOOooooooo

payables and accruals 196,311

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ooooooooo 5,518,436

Lease liabilities oooo 135,755

6,236,534

SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. 00 0000000000000 0O ANNUAL REPORT 2021 [ [



Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. 0 0 00000000

(Cen jn, ed) 0ooo

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at oooCcoO0oooooooooooo
the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) oowoo

2020 goooo

Financial assets oooo

Financial
assets at fair
value through

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

profit or loss income
goooo ooooo
oooo gooo
oooo oooo Financial
oooo oooooo assets at Total
ooooo ooooo amortised oo
Mandatorily cost
designated Equity ooooog
as such investments ooo
oooooo oooo oooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
oopooo oopooo ooooo ooooao
Financial assets at fair value through 00Doooooo
profit or loss o0Doooooo
oooo 2,568,694 - - 2,568,694
Derivative financial instruments gooooao 6,949 - - 6,949
Equity investments designated at fair gooooooon
value through other comprehensive oooooooao
income goooooooo = 619,953 - 619,953
Financial assets included in other oooooooooo
non-current assets oooo = = 89,786 89,786
Trade and bills receivables ooooooooooao = = 1,666,216 1,666,216
Due from related parties doooooao - - 49,235 49,235
Financial assets included in 000Do0O00oooOoo
prepayments, other receivables oooooooa
and other assets gooao - - 196,585 196,585
Pledged deposits aooooa - - 80 80
Time deposits oooo - - 1,368,416 1,368,416
Cash and cash equivalents gooooooao - - 1,330,245 1,330,245
2,575,643 619,953 4,700,563 7,896,159
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3.0 000 00000ad
(Cen |n_ed) 0ooo
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at oooCcoO0oooooooooooo
the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) oowoo
Financial liabilities oooog
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ooooo
ood
ogooo
RMB’000
goooo
Trade payables goooooo 239,218
Due to related parties ooooooao 22
Financial liabilities included in other 0000000O00DOooOOoOoooooo
payables and accruals 169,202
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ooooooooo 5,567,834
Lease liabilities oooo 77,243
6,053,519
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44. 10000000 oOoOoad
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Odoon
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair values of the Group’s financial 0o0ooDo0DO0oOoODoDO0OOoOoOOoOO0OOOan
assets or liabilities approximated to their respective carrying amounts. 0000000 oooooooooo

ooooooooooooo

Management has determined that the carrying amounts of cash and cash 0o0oo0Doo0oooOoooDooooooan
equivalents, the current portion of time deposits and pledged deposits, trade ooo0ooooDooooDooooooan
and bills receivables, amounts due from related parties, financial assets 000Doo0ooDoooDooDooooon
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, trade payables, 00o0Doo0ooooDoDooOonooooan
amounts due to related parties, financial liabilities included in other payables 0000000000000 000a0
and accruals, the current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings and 0000000000 o0O0o0o0ooan
lease liabilities reasonably approximate to their fair values because these 000D0o00oO0oOoOoO0oo0Ooooan
financial instruments are mostly short term in nature. ooooooooooooooooan
O00C000o0O00OocOo0OooOOooo
oooo
The Group’s finance department headed by the financial controller is oo0o0ooooooooooOoOooo
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value goooOooOoOoooooooooo
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the finance oooooOoDoDooooooooon
department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments o0oo0Doooooooooooooan
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The directors ooo0DooooDoooooooooan
review the results of the fair value measurement of financial instruments 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
periodically for annual financial reporting. oono
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the 00000000000 oO0ooooo
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 000000000000 00000
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. oooooooOooooo
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair oo0o0ooCocooooooDooooog
values:
The fair values of long-term interest receivables and the debt investment ooooOooOoOooooooooon
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using o0ooDooooDoOoOoooooooan
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and ooo0oooooOoooDooooooan
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s ooo0ooooDooooDooooooan
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were assessed to be insignificant. 000o0DoDoooooooooooan
00000000000 oOO0ooooo
ooooo
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Notes to Financial Statements

gooogn

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (C%n |n, ed)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments have been valued based
on a market-based fair value technique that is appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value have been estimated using precedent transaction
method, binomial tree model and the guideline public company method
which require the directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) and comparable transactions. Those valuation techniques require
significant observable inputs, including market multiplier, risk-free interest
rate, volatility and liquidity discount which are available from public market.
The directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the
valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded
in other comprehensive income and profit or loss, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group has
estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a discounted
cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates of instruments
with similar terms and risks.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with counterparties,
principally investment in an associate’s derivative financial instruments,
including warrants, which are measured using binomial tree model, using
present value calculations. The model incorporates various market observable
inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, the underlying stock
price and interest rate curves.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 the mark-to-market value of the
derivative asset position was net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable
to derivative counterparty default risk.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, management has estimated the potential effect
of using reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to the valuation model.

gooooood
uouon

oooooOoOO0OOOO0oO0oOoOoooao
oooooocoooooooOoooaon
ooooOooooooooooooan
oobooOocooooocoooooon
ooooOooooooooooooan
oooocoooocooobooooooan
ooo0oOoOooooooOoooooan
o0oo0DoOoooDoOoooo0ooOoooan
o0ooo0ooDoooDOO0oOoooDOoooon
oboooooOooco0oDOoooooDOoon
ooooOocOoOooooooooooo
o0ooDoOoOoDoDoOOoOoDbDOoOoooDoo
ooo0oo0oO0oOooO0O0O0O0OO0OO0o0oO
oooooO0Ooooob0OOoOoooOOdn
oobO0oooO0oO0OOooooOOoooon
oooooooOoOooooobOOooooon
oooooooooooOooooooo

0do
0oo

ooboocoooOocOooobooooooan
ooboocoooocooooooooan
oooooOoOoOOOO0oO0oOooooan
obooooOooooooooOoooan
oo0oooooooooo

oooooooOOooooOOoOoOooogo
oo0oDo0O0oDOO0oOoooOoOoooooo
oo0oboooOo0ooOooooO0O00O
oobooooooooOooooooaon
ooboocoooOoOooooooooaon
oooooooooooooCoo

ooooODooooOOooobOOoao
ooOooooooOocoooOoooan
ooooODoooooooooooan
ooooooao

O 0o oo

oooooOoooooooooooon
ooo0oooOoooooOoOooooon
oooooOoOooooOooooooaon
oooooooooooooOooo
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44. 10000000 oOoOoad
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (C%n {n, ed) Oooooyon
Fair value hierarchy oooooad
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
Group’s financial instruments: oooo
Agqe-g meay, eda fai. al e: ooooooooonn
Aga 31 Decembe .2021 ooooooooooooon
Fair value measurement using
gooooooooo
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
goooboo goooo gooooo
oo googd oooo
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ooooo ooood ooooo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo gooooo ooooo ooooo
Equity investments designated OO0 OO0OOOOOO0O
at fair value through other goooooo
comprehensive income ooooooooo 14,713 460,172 - 474,885
Financial assets at fair value goooooooo
through profit or loss goooooooo
ooooo 3,690 1,973,719 - 1,977,409
Derivative financial instruments 0O 00O 0O OO - 248 = 248
18,403 2,434,139 - 2,452,542
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 4. 000 00oooooao
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (C»n Ln, ed) O0o0ooyood
Fair value hierarchy (Cen jn, ed) Oo0ooooyoo
Agyq€.g meay, eda fai. al e:(Con |n, ed) ooooooooooooon
Aga 31 Decembe 2020 ooooooooooonao

Fair value measurement using
gooooooooo

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
gooooo goooo oooooo
oo ogooo ogooo
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
goooo oooog ooooo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
Equity investments designated O O0OOO0OOOOO0OO0O
at fair value through other ooooooo
comprehensive income gooooooon 34,792 389,414 195,747 619,953
Financial assets at fair value ooooooon
through profit or loss gooooooon
ooooad 9,044 2,559,650 - 2,568,694
Derivative financial instruments 0O 0 OO O O - 6,949 - 6,949
43,836 2,956,013 195,747 3,195,596
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31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (C%n {n, ed)

Fair value hierarchy (Cen jn, ed)
Agqe 4 Mmeagy, _ed a fai. al e:(Cen jn, ed)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year are as

goooobd
Rayys

ooooooooooommon
00000000000000000

follows[ oo
2021 2020
gooooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo gooooo
Equity investments at fair value through 00ooooooooooooo
other comprehensive income oooooooon
As at 1 January oooog 195,747 =
Transfer oo - 209,286
Disposals 0o (194,562) -
Exchange realignment oooo (1,185) (13,539)
As at 31 December oooooooo - 195,747

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a financial asset classified under
the fair value hierarchy as Level 2 was transferred to Level 1 due to it being
listed. There were no other significant transfers between the fair value
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a financial asset classified under
the fair value hierarchy as Level 2 was transferred to Level 3 due to that
inputs of valuation models were not reliably available by the Group. The fair
values of the financial asset at 31 December 2020 was RMB195,747,000.

0000000000000 O00O0
ooooO00DO0O0OO0OO0OO0O0D0O000O
oooo00ooo0oO0oO0oooO0oo0oaon
Ooo00o0o00000o0O0O0O00000n
O0ooooooo0ooOooOoooooon

oooooOoOO0OOOO0oO0oOoOoooao
ooooocooooooooooan
oooooooooooooooan
ooooooOoOOOoO0oOoooooan
ooooocooooooooooan
ooooocooooooooooan
195,747,00000 O
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OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44. 1 000000000
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (C»n Ln, ed) Oo0o0ooyoo
Fair value hierarchy (Cen jn, ed) Oo0ooooyoo
Agqe o o B hich fai . al, e digch ged: ooooooooonnn
Aga 31 Decembe 2020 ooooooooooonao

Fair value measurement using
gooooooooo

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
gooooo goooo gooooo
od gooo gooo
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
goooo ooooo ooooo od
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooad oooood ooooo
Debt investment oooo - 74,206 - 74,206
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oooooooooooo

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (C%n {n, ed)

Fair value hierarchy (Cen jn, ed)
Liabili ey o & hich fai - al., eqae di_,cl'-‘_,ed:

Aga 31 Decembe .2021

gooooood
ugboyoog

uboooooo

oooooonoo

44 U

.0
O O
OO
oo

ooooooooooooon

Fair value measurement using
gooooooooo

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
gooooo goooo oooooo
oo good ogooo
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
goooo oooog ooooo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo goooo goooo gooooo
Interest-bearing bank and ooooooooo
other borrowings - 3,632,151 - 3,632,151
Ag a 31 Decembe .2020 ooooooooooooo
Fair value measurement using
goDoooooooo
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
gooooo goooo gooooo
oo oooo oooo
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ooooo ooooo ooooo oo
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ooooo ooooo ooooo oo0ooo
Interest-bearing bank and 0O00o0oooooo
other borrowings - 3,708,072 - 3,708,072
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Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. 0 0D 00 o0ooooad
AND POLICIES 0 ad
The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and cash oo0oooOoOoooooooOoOoOoo
equivalents, time deposits, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, 0Oo000ooo0oooooooooO
other receivables, trade payables and other payables and lease liabilities, oooCooOOoOooOoOoODoDoOOoDOoOoOoOg
which arise directly from its operations. The Group has other financial assets ooooooOooooooooooaon
and liabilities such as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, do0oDoooDooooooooooo
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive ooo0ooooDoooooooooan
income, derivative financial instruments, interest-bearing bank and other do0o0oDo0o0oooooooooooon
borrowings, and amounts due to related parties and due from related parties. 00o0o0oDooo0oDooonooooan
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the 00o0Doo0o0ooDooooDoonoooan
Group’s operations. 000000000 DoDOoOoooooaon
00000000000 O0O0OoOOooOo
0000000000000 oooo
ooo
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate oo0oooOoOoooooooOoOoOoo
risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors oo00o0DooOoOoooooooooO
review and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are 000000000000 ooooog
summarised below. oo0oO0ooOooOO0OO0o0O
Interest rate risk oogo
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 0000000000000 oOoOoo
primarily to the interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates. 0oo0oooooooooog
The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and O0ooO0ooOo0oOoooOoooOoo
variable rate debts. At 31 December 2021, approximately 94% of the oooQCOooooooooODODOOO
Group’s interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at fixed rates (2020: 87%). oooCooooooOoODoODOOoOoOoOO

00000000 000009%4%100
00 0087%00
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OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. 0 0D 00 o0ooooad
AND POLICIES (Cen {n. ed) O 07 0
Interest rate risk (Cen |n, ed) 0o000ooo
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible O0000ooDoOOoooooOooooOo
change in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s 00000O0oD0OO00oooOoDOoooaO
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the 000000000 0o0ooOoooon
Group’s equity. oo0ooooooooo
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax equity*
oo oooao 0o
oomooo obomooo oomooo*
RMB’000 RMB’000
ogoooo ooooo
2021 goooo
RMB ooo 25 (863) -
RMB ooo (25) 863 -
2020 ooooo
RMB ooo 25 (1,856) -
RMB ooo (25) 1,856 -
* Excluding retained profits * QOoOooooo
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31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

Foreign currency risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from

sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from its interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rate due to
changes in fair value of monetary assets and liabilities, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.

45,

goodgod

O O

aod
L7 00
ERERN
oboboocoooocooocoooooaon
ooooOooooooooooooan
oooooooo

oooooODoooooooooooan
oo

o0ooDoOoooDoOoDOOoooOoooaon
oooooooooooOoooooon
go0ooO0oOooooOoOoOoooooOoo
oo0o00O0oOocOO0OO0OOoOOO0OO0OOoO0OO

2021 2020
gooooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
RMB/USD gooooo
Strengthened 5% 0 0 5% (12,025) (15,394)
Weakened 5% 0 05% 12,025 15,394
RMB/EUR ooooog
Strengthened 5% 0 0 5% 3,745 5,418
Weakened 5% 0 0 5% (3,745) (5,418)

Credit risk

An impairment analysis was performed at 31 December 2021 and 2020 using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Mayim, m ey, %, e and, ea -end.4 gging aga ,
31 Decembe -2021 and 2020

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available without undue cost or
effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (C%n jn, ed)

45. 0000000 ooaao
L7 L7

uoooooo

Credit risk (C»n jn, ed)

At 31 December 2020

ooooooooooooo

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
120000
goooo oopoooooo
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
oooo cooo oooo ooo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo ooooo ooooo ooooo goooog
Financial assetsincluded O OO0O0OOO00OO
in other non-current ooooo
assets 89,786 - - - 89,786
Contract assets ooood = = - 20,477 20,477
Trade and bills ocopooooo
receivables* oooo* = = - 1,696,330 1,696,330
Financial assets included oopooooo
in prepayments, other oopooooo
receivables and other ooooo
assets oooo
— Normal** — [0 O == 209,958 - - - 209,958
— Doubtful** — [0 O == - - 4,382 - 4,382
Amounts due from ooooooo
related parties 41,798 - - 7,437 49,235
Pledged deposits ooooo 80 - - - 80
Time deposits oooo 1,368,416 - - - 1,368,416
Cash and cash ooooooono
equivalents 1,330,245 - - - 1,330,245
3,040,283 - 4,382 1,724,244 4,768,909
* For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for & 000000D000ODOOD0oDODOOOOO

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 24 to the
financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

O00oo0Do0O00O0OO00oO0O0O00O00oo0
0000000000240000
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. 0 000 o0oooooad
AND POLICIES (C%n jn, ed) NEyEys
Credit risk (C»n {n, ed) 0o0o0oooo
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset oooODoOoOoDoDoOoOobDooooDooo
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes o0ooDooooDoOoOoooooooan
observable data about the following events: o0oooDoooooooooooan

ooooo
. significant financial difficulty of the debtor; . ooooooooooono
. a breach of contract such as a default or past due event; . 0000o0O0O0oooOoOoOoO0O0
. it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial . jooDoooooooooooo
reorganisation oo

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment of whether a oooCooOOooOooOoOooooooog
financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial gooooODoOOoOOoOOoOOoOoooooao
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over oooooDoOooooooooooaon
the remaining life of the financial instrument. oo0ooooooooo
Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial assets oo0oooODoDoDOoOo0oO0ooOoooOoan
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets as well as an 0oo0o0o0oDooo0oDooOoooooan
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on 0000000000 o0O0o0Oo0ooan
historical settlement records and past experience. The Group recognises 0000000 0000o0O0oooan
allowance for financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other 0000000000 01200000
receivables based on 12-month ECLs and adjusts for forward-looking 0000000000 DD0OO0OO00ooOon
macroeconomic data. Otherwise, they are measured based on the lifetime 000Doo0ooDoOoOoooooooan
expected credit loss. oo0ooooooDoooooooon

obdoo0ooooOooOooOooooon
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. 0 000 o0oooooad
AND POLICIES (C»n |n, ed) L7 L7 [
Liquidity risk ooooao
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding oo0o0ooDooOoooooooOoooo
and flexibility through the use of internally generated cash flows from oooOooOOoOooooOoOOoOOoOoOoOoOg
operations and bank borrowings. The Group regularly reviews its major ooo0OoOoOoOoooooOoOoOoOoogd
funding positions to ensure that it has adequate financial resources in ooo0ooooDoOooooooooan
meeting its financial obligations. oo0oooooooooooog
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the ooooooooooOooooood
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as 0o0o0oooooooooooon
follows:
2021
goooo
Less than 1to Over
On demand 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
oo googd goog gooo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooo ooooo ooooao ooooo ooood

Trade payables oooooog - 385,787 - - 385,787
Financial liabilities included ocooooooo

in other payables and oooooo

accruals oooo 196,311 - - - 196,311
Interest-bearing bank oooooo

borrowings - 3,430,347 1,099,709 1,468,814 5,998,870
Due to related parties ooooooo 245 - - - 245
Lease liabilities oooo - 35,542 76,299 37,080 148,921

196,556 3,851,676 1,176,008 1,505,894 6,730,134

SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. 1000000000l 100 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 [ [



Notes to Financial Statements
OO0O00onoog

31 December 2021
oooooooooooo

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

45. 0000000 ooaao

AND POLICIES (C%n jn, ed) Eyays
Liquidity risk (C»n jn, ed) oo0ooooyoo
2020
ooooo
Less than 1to Over
On demand 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
oo gooo googd gooood oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo ooooo oo0ooo ooooo
Trade payables oooooo - 239,218 - - 239,218
Financial liabilities included ooooooog
in other payables and oooooo
accruals oooao 169,202 - - - 169,202
Interest-bearing bank oooooo
borrowings - 2,368,301 2,338,483 1,584,744 6,291,528
Due to related parties ooooooo 22 - - - 22
Lease liabilities oooo - 26,419 30,427 28,430 85,276
169,224 2,633,938 2,368,910 1,613,174 6,785,246

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’

value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders

or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed

capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or

processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2021

and 31 December 2020.

ooon
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. 0 000 o0oooooad
AND POLICIES (C%n jn, ed) NEyEys
Capital management (C%n {n, ed) Oooooonoo
The asset-liability ratios as at the end the reporting period are as follows: 0o000oooOOoooooooog
2021 2020
o0o0oo oo0ooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo ooooo
Total assets oooag 19,108,177 19,025,895
Total liabilities oooo 7,584,862 7,336,905
Asset-liability ratio oooooo 40% 39%
46. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 46. 1 00 O O
On 16 March 2022, the Company received a notice from the investor of the oooCcooooooooooooo
corporate bond 19 Hepalink, requiring the Company to repurchase 000190000000 00000
7,000,000 shares of 19 Hepalink according to the repurchase plan of the Jdddd0dOoOoOoOooooie00OoO
non-publicly issued corporate bond 19 Hepalink (stock code: 114455) in 000011445500 000000000
2019. The principal of the bond is RMB700,000,000. OOov,0000000190 0000000

000000o0700,000,0000 0

On 1 April 2022, the Company’s public offering of corporate bonds to 0d00o00ooOoOooOoooooan
professional investors in 2022 (hereinafter referred to as the “bonds’) will 000000000000 DOO0ooOOoOd
be no more than RMB500 million, and the issue price will be RMB100 each. 00000 o0oomoooooooag
The issuance time of the current bond is from 31 March 2022 to 1 April oo00s5000000000000A0
2022, the actual issuance scale is RMB500 million, and the coupon rate is g0 0000000 O0O0OOOOONO
3.9%. 00000000000 Oo0ooooo

O0000o0oO0O0O0O0o0O0O0soo0o0on
00003.9%0
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ooooooooooon

47. L0 googoo

COMPANY
2021 2020
ooooo ooooog
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooaono ooooao
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ooooo
Property, plant and equipment oooooooao 1,268,911 1,271,651
Right-of-use assets oooaono 110,739 99,666
Other intangible assets oooooo 7,569 8,521
Investments in associates gooooooo 562,579 853,077
Interests in subsidiaries gooooooog 2,889,904 3,333,484
Equity investments designated at fair value 0o00D0ooO0o0oooooooo
through other comprehensive income 0ooooooooon 31,863 31,863
Financial assets at fair value through ooooooooooao
profit or loss goooooooobo 361,320 452,657
Deferred tax assets oopooooo 74,145 24,436
Other non-current assets ooooooao 92,755 91,967
Total non-current assets goooooog 5,399,785 6,167,322
CURRENT ASSETS oooo
Inventories oad 1,870,376 1,100,886
Trade and bills receivables 000000 oOoooa 202,688 202,887
Prepayments, other receivables and oooooooOoooon
other assets goooao 212,975 362,638
Due from related parties gooooog 3,817,486 3,589,866
Financial assets at fair value through Joooooooooooo
profit or loss ooooooooao 940,340 821,257
Derivative financial instruments oooooo - 5,291
Time deposits oooo 1,440,000 1,368,416
Cash and cash equivalents gooooooono 440,767 524,846
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. 00000000000
COMPANY (C»n jn, ed)
2021 2020
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooaono ooooao
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ooooao
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ooooooooan 2,020,813 2,712,479
Deferred income gooo 2,596 3,286
Lease liabilities good 28,941 17,011
Total non-current liabilities gooooog 2,052,350 2,732,776
Net assets oooo 9,184,689 9,617,999
EQUITY oo
Share capital oo 1,467,296 1,467,296
Reserves (Note) gooooao 7,717,393 8,150,703
Total equity oooo 9,184,689 9,617,999
Li Li Shan Yu
ood ood
Director Director
oo oo
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ooooooooooon

COMPANY (C»n jn, ed)
Note: ooo
A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows: ooooooooooo
Share Fair Statutory
Share Merger option value Other surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
0oo oooo oooo
oooo oooo 0o oo oooo oo oooo oo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo oooodg ooooo ooooag ooooo
Balance at 1 January 2020 00oooooooooa 4248203  (1,996,731) 33,937 - 388,080 527,788 1,731,779 4,933,056
Total comprehensive income for theyear 0OCOO0C000 = = = 206 = = 45,712 45,918
Issuance of H shares upon listing on OOHOODOOOOOOO
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange 3,310,080 - - - - - - 3,310,080
Share of other reserves of associates oooooooooo - - - - 78,385 - - 78,385
Transfer from retained profits ooooooo = = = = = 4571 (4,571) =
Dividend declared to shareholders 0oooooo - - - - - - (224,496) (224,496)
Others oo - - - - 7,760 - - 7,760
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 000000000000 OO
0ooooooooD 7,558,283  (1,996,731) 33,937 206 474,225 532,359 1,548,424 8,150,703
Total comprehensive income fortheyear 00000000 - - - 16,652 - - (121,016) (104,364)
Share of other reserves of associates pooooooooo - - - - (97,672) - - (97,672)
Dividend declared to shareholders gooooooan - - - - - - (220,094) (220,094)
Others oo - - - - (11,180) - - (11,180)
At 31 December 2021 ooooooooooooo 7,558,283  (1,996,731) 33,937 16,858 365,373 532,359 1,207,314 7,717,393

48.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 11 April 2022.

oooooOoooooooooooon
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